
 
 
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

Enterprise Partnership Board 

 
 
WEDNESDAY, 10TH DECEMBER, 2008 at 14:00 HRS – CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S BOARD 
ROOM, L5 (N) RIVER PARK HOUSE. 
 
 
MEMBERS: See membership list below.   
 
AGENDA 
 
1. APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTIONS    
 
 To receive any apologies for absence.  

 
2. MINUTES  (PAGES 1 - 6)  
 
 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 8 September 2008 as a correct record.  

 
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 Members of the Board must declare any personal and/or prejudicial interests with 

respect to agenda items and must not take part in any decision required with respect 
to these items.  
 

4. URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 The Chair will consider the admission of any items of Urgent Business. (Late items 

will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New items will be 
considered under agenda Item 13 below).  
 

5. MAIN DISCUSSION ITEM -LAA REFRESH  (PAGES 7 - 20)  
 
6. LAA UPDATE  (PAGES 21 - 42)  
 
 A -Performance Management Highlight Report – Second Quarter 2008/09 

B –Enterprise Partnership Risk Register 
C -Working Neighbourhoods Fund Consultation  
 



 

2 

7. AREA BASED GRANT REVIEW  (PAGES 43 - 70)  
 
8. ESOL PROVISION IN HARINGEY    
 
 A verbal update will be provided.  

 
9. TACKLING WORKLESSNESS UPDATE  (PAGES 71 - 76)  
 
10. BUSINESS AND ENTERPRISE UPDATE  (PAGES 77 - 82)  
 
11. IMPACT OF THE CREDIT CRUNCH ON THE HARINGEY LABOUR MARKET    
 
 This report will be sent to follow.  

 
12. NO ONE WRITTEN OFF: REFORMING WELFARE TO REWARD RESPONSIBILITY  

(PAGES 83 - 106)  
 
13. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 To consider any new items of Urgent Business admitted under Item 4.  

 
14. ANY OTHER BUSINESS    
 
 To consider any items of AOB.  

 
15. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS    
 
 The date of the next scheduled meeting is 16 March 2009.  

 
Please note that the calendar for the new Municipal Year is being drafted at present. 
Once dates have been agreed members of the Board will be notified.   
 

 
 
Yuniea Semambo  
Head of Local Democracy and Member Services  
5th Floor 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 
1st December 2008  

Xanthe Barker 
Principal Committee Coordinator 
Tel: 020 8489 2957 
Fax: 020 8881 5218 
Email: xanthe.barker@haringey.gov.uk  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

3 

 
 
 

 
 
 

SECTOR 
GROUP 

AGENCY NO. 
OF 

REPS 

NAME OF REPRESENTATIVE 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

Haringey 
Council 

9 Dr Ita O’Donovan 
Councillor Kaushika Amin 
Councillor Pat Egan 
David Hennings 
Karen Galey 
Sean Burke 
Janette Karklins 
Clare Kowalska 
Denise Gandy 

Community Link 
Forum 
 
 

1 
1 
1 

Rod Cullen 
John Egbo 
Martha Osamor 
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

a
n

d
 

V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 
R

e
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti

v
e
s
 

HAVCO 1 Naeem Sheikh  

CONEL 1 Paul Head 
 

Haringey 
Teaching PCT 

1 Leo Atkins 

Jobcentre Plus 2 Walter Steel 
Linda Banton 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

s
k
il
ls

 

Learning and 
Skills North 
London 

1 Yolande Burgess 

Business Link for 
London 

1 Dennis Handel-Sam 

Greater London 
Enterprise 

1 Colin Compton 

Mall 
Management 
 

1 Michael Thompson 

North London 
Chamber of 
Commerce 

1 Huw Jones 

B
u

s
in

e
s

s
 a

n
d

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e
 

North London 
Business 

2 Gary Ince 
Shawna Stonehouse 

London 
Development 
Agency 

1 Isobel Rawlinson 

College Arts 1 Manoj Ambasna 

O
th

e
rs

/ 
O

b
s
e
rv

e
rs

 

Selby Trust 1 Emma Tate 

 TOTAL  27  



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF THE ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP BOARD (HSP) 
MONDAY, 8 SEPTEMBER 2008 

 
Present:  Dr Ita O’Donovan (Chair), Councillor Kaushika Amin, Leo Atkins, Linda 

Banton, Yolande Burgess, Sean Burke, Rod Cullen, John Egbo, Gary 
Ince, Sylvia Long, Sharmila Mitra, Martha Osamor, Naeem Sheikh, 
Michael Thompson.   
 

 
In 
Attendance:  

Juneed Asad, Xanthe Barker, LaShanta Beaton, Mamy Mwando, 
Ambrose Quashie, Martin Tucker.  
 

 
 

LC58. APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTIONS  
 
Apologies for absence were received from the following: 
 
Councillor Pat Egan 
Paul Head   -Sharmila Mitra substituted  
David Hennings 
Isobel Rawlinson 
Walter Steel  
 

LC59. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That, subject to the addition of Martha Osamor to the people listed as being present, 
the minutes of the meeting held on 11 June 2008 be confirmed as a correct record.  
 

LC60. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
No declarations of interest were made.  
 

LC61. URGENT BUSINESS  
 
No items of Urgent Business were raised.  
 

LC62. ENTERPRISE BOARD TERMS OF REFERENCE 2008/09  
 
The Board considered a report setting out its Terms of Reference for 2008/09.  
 
It was noted that amendments had been made to the Terms of Reference to reflect 
the objectives of the new Local Area Agreement (LAA) and to develop links between 
the Enterprise Board and the groups beneath it.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Terms of Reference, as set out, be approved. 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 2Page 1



MINUTES OF THE ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP BOARD (HSP) 
MONDAY, 8 SEPTEMBER 2008 

 
LC63. DISCUSSION ITEM -WELFARE REFORM GREEN PAPER: 'NO ONE WRITTEN 

OFF: REFORMING WELFARE TO REWARD RESPONSIBILITY  
 
The Board received, for discussion, the recently published Green Paper: ‘No One 
Written Off: Reforming Welfare to Reward Responsibility’.   
 
It was noted that this built on an earlier Green Paper entitled ‘In Work, Better Off: Next 
Steps to Full Employment’ and contained proposals that the Government believed 
would be crucial in achieving the aspiration of an 80 per cent full employment rate.  
 
A presentation was given setting out the key proposals contained within the Green 
Paper. These included: 
 

• Reducing the number of Incapacity Benefit (IB) Claimants by 1M 
• Reforming Job Seekers Allowance (JSA) 
• Introducing a new Employment Support Allowance (ESA) that would replace IB 

for new claimants from October 2008 
• Targeting of drug users and new measures to support drug users into work 
• Allowing people over sixty to access Work Focussed Interviews 
• A pilot for mandating JSA claimants to undergo a skills ‘Health Check’  
• Simplifying and streamlining the Benefit system 

   
Following the presentation the Board discussed the proposals contained within the 
Green Paper, the likely implications for the Partnership, and how individual 
organisations would address these.  
 
Concern was raised at the range of proposals contained within the Green Paper and 
the pressure this would place upon organisations; particularly those that would need 
to train their staff to reflect changes to the legislation.  
 
The Chair noted that individual organisations would need to put in place measures to 
respond to the proposals contained within the Green Paper. Although the consultation 
process had not yet concluded it was likely that the majority of the proposals 
contained within the Green Paper would be accepted. Therefore it was important that 
organisations began to plan how they would respond to this prior to changes to 
legislation.   
 
The Board discussed the proposed requirement for drug users to declare their 
addiction in order to obtain further support in gaining employment. In response to 
concern that this may further marginalise this group, the Board was advised that drug 
users were already offered a different level of support to other Job Seekers.  
 
In response to concerns that smaller organisations, particularly from the Voluntary and 
Community Sector, would be placed at a disadvantaged in terms of bidding for 
contracts, the Chair noted that there was an opportunity for individual organisations to 
develop new and more collaborative ways of working.  
 
The Board was advised the draft response already made reference to the current 
economic climate and how this would impact upon the proposals contained within the 
Green Paper. Reference had also been made to the need for flexibility around working 
with neighbouring Authorities on regional initiatives.  
 

Page 2



MINUTES OF THE ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP BOARD (HSP) 
MONDAY, 8 SEPTEMBER 2008 

 
The Board discussed the possibility of forming a sub-group to look at how the 
proposals contained within the report should be addressed and it was agreed that 
individual organisations should discuss this outside the meeting and bring back 
proposals to the next meeting of the Board.  
 
Responses to the Green Paper should be sent to Ambrose Quashie by 26 September.    
 
RESOLVED: 
 

i. That the Green Paper be noted. 
 

ii. That the comments made by the Board be incorporated within the response to 
the Green Paper.  

 
 

LC64. LOCAL AREA AGREEMENT: UPDATE  
 
The Board received a report setting out information in relation to Performance for 
Quarter 1 (April-June) and the Risk Management Strategy adopted by the HSP on 3 
July.  
 
Performance Highlight Report: 1st Quarter (April-June) 2008/09 
 
Included within the report were details of performance during the first quarter and it 
was noted that there were no areas of under performance during this period. At 
present there were several instances where targets had not yet been determined. 
Information would be included within the report for the 2nd Quarter once these had 
been set.   
 
Good progress had been made against NEET targets with the proportion of young 
people classified as NEET now at 8.4%, which was lower than the 2008/09 target of 
11% and the 2010 Stretch Target of 10.4%.  
 
The Board was advised that a delay in processing invoices had led to a distorted 
picture of spending against the Haringey Guarantee project. This would be rectified 
during the 2nd Quarter.  
 
Risk Management Strategy and Framework for the HSP 
 
The Board was advised that the HSP had approved the Risk Management Strategy 
(appended to the report) and as part of this Risk Registers were being introduced 
across the HSP and Thematic Boards.  
 
The Risk Management Strategy had been introduced in order to ensure that a uniform 
approach was adopted across the HSP and Thematic Boards in terms of risk 
management and identifying risks appropriately.   
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Performance Highlight Report and Risk Management Strategy be noted. 
 
 

Page 3



MINUTES OF THE ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP BOARD (HSP) 
MONDAY, 8 SEPTEMBER 2008 

 
LC65. TACKLING WORKLESSNESS UPDATE  

 
The Board considered a report setting out the progress that had been made against 
the main programmes aimed at addressing Worklessness in the Borough.  
 
Haringey Guarantee  
 
The Board was provided with an update on the Evaluation of the Haringey Guarantee 
originally received on 11 June. It was noted that the final Evaluation showed that the 
overall target had been achieved in terms of the number of people being assisted by 
the Haringey Guarantee. Targets in relation to the engagement of local businesses 
and volunteering had also been met.  
 
Concern was raised that there was little emphasis on the role of employers within the 
Evaluation. It was also noted that there was no reference to some of the largest 
employer groups within the Borough and it was suggested that this was indicative of 
either the lack of engagement with these groups, or the lack of knowledge amongst 
those conducting the survey.  
 
In response to concerns that there was not sufficient engagement with employers 
outside the Borough, the Board was advised that ways of developing links with 
employers outside the Borough were currently being considered.    
 
Northumberland Park: Families into Work  
 
The Families into Work project had now been successfully set up and would be 
formally launched in October 2008.  
 
The Board was advised that the project would aim to work with approximately one 
hundred families to remove ‘barriers’ to work. The project would address a broad 
range of issues affecting families and there would be joint working and involvement 
from a range of agencies. 
 
In response to a query from Job Centre Plus (JCP) it was agreed that there would be 
discussion between officers and JCP regarding how they could refer families to this 
project.  
 
North London Pledge  
 
It was noted that a total of £600K had been allocated to the delivery of the programme 
during the current financial year. A further £910K had been allocated for 2009/10.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 

i. That the developments and progress in relation to each of the programmes be 
noted.  

 
ii. That the development of a Strategic Partnership on Employer Engagement be 

approved as part of the Haringey Guarantee.  
 
 
 

Page 4



MINUTES OF THE ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP BOARD (HSP) 
MONDAY, 8 SEPTEMBER 2008 

 
 

LC66. REGENERATION DELIVERY PLAN  
 
The Board received the full Regeneration Strategy Delivery Plan 2008/11.  
 
It was noted that the Regeneration Strategy Delivery Plan 2008/11 had been agreed 
by the Council’s Cabinet on 15 July. Reports updating the Board on progress would 
be presented at future meetings.  
 
The Vice-Chair noted the need to ensure that the Voluntary and Community Sector 
was fully engaged in terms of employment proposals.  
 
In response to a query it was noted that Risk Management would be built in via the 
Boards new Risk Management assessment.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Regeneration Strategy Delivery Plan 2008/11 be noted.  
 
 

LC67. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS  
 
No new items of Urgent Business were raised.  
 
 

LC68. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  
 
The Board was advised that the Council’s new Child Poverty Strategy was out for 
consultation until the end of November. As there were no Board meetings scheduled 
before the deadline for responses, it had been agreed that the document should be 
circulated via email.  
 
There was agreement that in light of the new performance scorecard there was no 
longer a need for the Board to receive the Key Performance Indicators report.  
 
 

LC69. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 
The Board was asked to note the following dates of future meetings:  
 

• 10 December 2008, 2pm. 
• 9 March 2009, 2pm.  

 
 
The meeting closed at 3.20pm.  
 
 

Dr Ita O’Donovan 
 
Chair 
 

 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Meeting:  Enterprise Board        
 
Date:   10 December 2008  
 
Report Title: Local Area Agreement Refresh 
 
Report of: Karen Galey (Head of Economic Regeneration) 
 
Purpose  
 
To inform the Enterprise Board about the process for agreeing Haringey’s 
refreshed Local Area Agreement. 
 
To get the Enterprise Board’s approval to renegotiate the employment related 
targets in the Local Area Agreement. 
 
Summary 
 
The Local Area Agreement (LAA) refresh presents an opportunity to 
renegotiate existing National Indicator (NI) targets with the Government Office 
for London (GoL). 
 
It is proposed that a revised target for NI 153 (Working age people claiming 
out of work benefits in the worst performing neighbourhoods) to limit the 
increase in the out of work benefits claim rate to 3.9 percentage points is 
submitted to GoL. 
 
At the time of writing this report data for NI 171 (New business registration 
rate) remained unavailable. 
 
It is proposed that a revised target to support 70 long-term Incapacity Benefit 
(IB) claimants into sustained employment is submitted to GoL. 
 
The Learning and Skills Council (LSC) has submitted baselines and targets 
(up to 2009/10) for the two local skills indicators. 
 
It is proposed that for the Better Off Calculation (BOC) local indicator, 400 
BOCs will be completed for each of the three LAA years. 
 
The final deadline for agreeing the refreshed LAA is 2 March 2009. 
 
Recommendations 
 
1. That the Enterprise Board notes the timetable for completing the LAA 

refresh process. 
2. That the Enterprise Board agrees the revised targets that will be submitted 

to GoL. 
Financial/Legal Comments 

Agenda Item 5Page 7



 
N/A 
For more information contact: 
 
Name: Ambrose Quashie 
Title: Employment & Skills Policy Officer 
Tel: 020 8489 6914 
Email address: Ambrose.Quashie@haringey.gov.uk 
 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 Haringey’s LAA covering the period 2008/09 to 2010/11 was formally 

signed off by Government in July despite it being operational from April 
2008.   

 
1.2 A number of NIs included in Haringey’s LAA were deferred as data to set 

baselines and three year targets were unavailable; this includes NI 171.  
There were also a number of local indicators for which baselines and three 
year targets were not set; these include the two local skills indicators and 
the BOC indicator. 

 
1.3 The LAA refresh process will require baselines and targets to be set for all 

the 35 NIs included in Haringey’s LAA and the additional local indicators.  
These targets will be locked down for the three year LAA period and will 
be the basis upon which performance calculations will be made to 
determine LAA reward grant. 

 
2. Revising and setting LAA baselines/targets 
 
2.1 The LAA refresh also presents an opportunity to renegotiate existing NI 

targets.  In terms of the NIs that the Enterprise Board are responsible for, 
a revised target for NI 153 will be submitted. 

 
2.2 The current target for NI 153 is a 4.7 percentage point reduction in the out 

of work benefits claim rate by 2010/11.  The Enterprise Board is asked to 
approve the submission of a revised target to limit the increase in the out 
work benefits claim rate to 3.9 percentage points by 2010/11.  This target 
is based on an assumption that the number of people who are claimant 
count unemployed in the United Kingdom will increase to 2m by 2010.  
This was one of four target options derived and a paper setting out the 
proposed target methodology is appended to this report. 

 
2.3 At the time of writing this report, data for NI 171 remained unavailable 

although it is expected that data will be available before the end of the 
year to set a baseline and three year targets. 

 
2.4 The current LAA stretch target to support long-term IB claimants into 

sustained employment has proved challenging.  So far only 12 long-term 
IB claimants have been supported into sustained employment against a 
target of 180 to be achieved by March 2010.  Remedial action has been 
implemented, including explicit targets around supporting IB claimants into 
sustained employment being inserted into the delivery contracts for 
Haringey Guarantee providers and the introduction of a Condition 

Page 8



Management Programme, delivered by the Teaching Primary Care Trust  
However, despite this remedial action, achieving the target will remain a 
significant challenge, which will become harder considering the current 
economic climate.  For these reasons, the Enterprise Board is asked to 
approve the submission of a revised target to support 70 long-term IB 
claimants into sustained employment by March 2010.  This figure was 
derived principally from estimates that it costs, locally, approximately £10k 
to support a long-term IB claimant into sustained employment. 

 
2.5 For the BOC local indicator the Enterprise Board is asked to approve a 

target to achieve 400 BOCs for each of the three LAA years. 
 
2.6 The LSC have submitted baselines and targets up to 2009/10 for the two 

local skills indicators.  Targets have not been set for 2010/11 as the LSC 
will, at this time, have been replaced by the Skills Funding Agency.  The 
baselines and targets are set out below: 

 
  

Adults achieving a Skills for Life qualification and entered 
employment and those gaining a qualification in the workplace 
 

• Baseline: qualifications - 150; jobs - 0; qualifications in the workplace – 
180. 

• 2008/09 target: qualifications – 350; jobs – 140; qualifications in the 
workplace – 600. 

• 2009/10 target: qualifications – 420; jobs – 140; qualifications in the 
workplace – 810. 

 
Adults achieving a full level two qualification and entered employed 
and those gaining a qualification in the workplace 
 

• Baseline: qualifications - 740; jobs - 0; qualifications in the workplace – 
400. 

• 2008/09 target: qualifications – 740; jobs – TBC; qualifications in the 
workplace – 900. 

• 2009/10 target: qualifications – 740; jobs – TBC; qualifications in the 
workplace – 1,800. 

 
3. LAA refresh timetable 
 
3.1 An overview of the timetable in terms of getting the LAA refresh agreed is 

presented below: 
 

• 19 January 2009 – 1st draft of refreshed LAA submitted to GoL. 
• 16 February 2009 – Negotiations completed with GoL in order to meet 

report deadlines 
• 2 March 2009 – Final refreshed LAA submitted to GoL. 
 

3.2 A more detailed timetable is appended to this report. 
 

Page 9



Appendix 1: LAA refresh timetable 

Work area  Timescale Date 
achieved 

Lead 
officers 

Comment  

Inform thematic lead support officers about the proposed LAA 
refresh arrangements (subject to GOL confirmation) via HSP 
co-ordinators groups 

September 
08  

18/9/08 Louisa 
Aubeeluck 

Co-ordinators to identify key 
areas of risk to re-open 
negotiations on 

Draft list of all targets within current LAA that need finalising, 
plus identification of targets for potential renegotiation 

October 08 10/10/08 Louisa 
Aubeeluck 

Draft list forwarded to 
performance team for 
confirmation and comment 

Open discussions locally about targets that may need revising, 
by exception only. Email targets leads and theme leads with 
the requirements of the refresh and their areas for action over 
the coming months. 

October 08  Louisa 
Aubeeluck 

 

Email GOL list of targets we would like to re-open negotiations 
on and request approval and conformation through GOL leads 
for go-ahead on these 

October 08  Louisa 
Aubeeluck 

 

LAA Target leads to set out proposals for 3 year targets for 
deferred indicators and to set out business case for revising 
targets to designated national indicators. Target leads to seek 
target sign off through their directors, appropriate cabinet 
members and theme board chairs  

November 
December 
08 

 Target 
leads 

 

Liaise with GOL on initial proposed targets to be put forward Ongoing - 
Dec /Jan 
09 

 Louisa / 
target 
leads  

 

Draft report and present to PMG seeking approval of refreshed 
LAA to be submitted 

January 09   Louisa / 
Mary 
Connolly 

 

Submission to GOL of partnerships revised LAA; detailing any 
revised year 2 and 3 targets for designated indicators, by 

19th 
January 

 Louisa 
Aubeeluck 

 

P
a

g
e
 1

0



 

exception only, and; proposed targets for year two and three 
for the deferred indicator set 

2009 

Place survey results submitted to CLG. 2008 results to form 
baseline for perception indicators 

30th 
January 
2009 

 Catherine / 
Richard  

 

16 attainment targets for academic year 2009 to be submitted 
to National Strategies  

30th 
January 
2009 

 Sharon 
Shoesmith 

 

Liaise with GOL and GOL Theme  Leads to agree deferred 
targets and revision to designated non deferred targets, by 
exception only 

20th Jan – 
28th Feb 09 

 Louisa and 
Target 
Leads  

 

Present to PMG/HSP final refreshed LAA for sign off –also 
need to go through Cabinet and full council reporting structures  

Feb/ Mar 
09 (dates 
TBC) 

 Mary 
Connolly 

 

Final submission to GOL of refreshed LAA for sign off 2nd March 
09 

 Louisa   

Late March GOL submit adopted LAAs to Secretary of State for 
sign off 

31/3/09  GOL  

P
a
g
e
 1

1



Appendix 2: NI 153 revised target methodology 
 
Introduction 
 
Included in Haringey’s Local Area Agreement (LAA) is a target to reduce the out 
of work benefits1 claim rate in the worst performing neighbourhoods by 4.7 
percentage points by 2010/11 (National Indicator 153 (NI 153)).  The upcoming 
LAA refresh presents an opportunity to renegotiate this target.  This opportunity is 
timely considering the current turbulence that is engulfing the global economy.  
There are increasing signs that the destruction left by the credit crunch is now 
impacting on the real economy with the labour market being a major victim.  The 
figures below set out the story so far: 
 
• For the three months to September 2008, UK ILO (International Labour 

Organisation)2 unemployment hit 1.82 million, the highest level for 11 years 
and up by 182,000 over the year. 

• The UK employment rate currently stands at 74.4 per cent down 0.4 
percentage points from the previous quarter and down 0.2 percentage points 
over the year. 

• The UK claimant count (seasonally adjusted) was 980,900 in October 2008, 
up 36,500 compared to the previous month and up 154,800 over the year.  
This is the highest the claimant count has been in 7 years. 

• In the three months to October 2008 there were 589,000 vacancies in the UK, 
down by 40,000 over the previous quarter and down 83,000 over the year. 

• The Chartered Institute of Personnel and Development has reported that the 
balance between the number of new employers expecting to increase staff in 
the next 3 months and those expecting to cut staff fell from +41 a year ago to 
+2 this autumn. 

• In Haringey the claimant count (not seasonally adjusted) was 6,753 in 
October 2008, up 67 compared to previous month and up 33 over the year.  
Since May 2008, the claimant count in Haringey has risen by 7.6 per cent (or 
479). 

 
The indications are that conditions will continue to deteriorate with many 
economists forecasting that ILO unemployment could increase to as high as 3m 
and the number of people who are claimant count unemployed could rise to 2.5m 
by 2010. 
 
The International Monetary Fund (IMF), European Commission (EC) and the 
Bank of England (BoE) are all predicting a harsher than expected recession in 
the UK.  More specifically: the IMF estimates that the UK will be the worst hit 
developed country in 2009 with the economy shrinking by 1.3 per cent in 2009; 
the EC estimates that the UK will suffer the deepest recession of the mature 
European Union member states with the economy contracting by 1 per cent and 
growing by only 0.4 per cent in 2010; and BoE Governor, Mervyn King, recently 
predicted that the economy will fall back by 2 per cent in the first half of 2009 with 
growth returning towards the end of the year. 
 

                                                 
1 Out of work benefits include Job Seekers Allowance, Incapacity Benefits, Income Support and Pension Credit 
2
 The ILO definition of unemployment captures people who: have looked for work in the last 4 weeks and are available to 

start work in the next two weeks, and people who are waiting to start a new job after a successful application.  As a 
consequence this a wider measure than the number of people claiming unemployment related benefits. 

Page 12



The recent falls in sterling against the euro (€1.1890 at Wednesday 12 November 
– an all time low) and dollar (below $1.50 against recent highs of over $2) add 
further credence to the view that the prospects for the UK economy look 
decidedly gloomy.   
 
Local areas will not be immune from this economic deterioration and it is in light 
of this that a reduction in Haringey’s NI 153 target of a 4.7 percentage point 
reduction should be sought.  This is particularly important considering that 
Haringey, as a local area, will have little control over national and global 
economic forces.  The sections below set out the model used to estimate a set of 
revised target options. 
 
The revised target model  
 
The baseline for NI 153 is based on a four quarter average covering the period 
August 2006 to May 2007, giving a rate of 28.5 per cent3.  Subsequent data show 
that this rate fell to 26.8 per cent over the period August 2007 to May 2008.   
 
Four scenarios have been created based on the number of people who are 
claimant count unemployed in the UK increasing to 1m, 1.5m, 2m or 2.5m by 
2010.  To work out how this could impact on Haringey’s worst performing 
neighbourhoods an average share of the four possible national claimant count 
totals is calculated4.  This is based on shares observed since May 2008 (i.e. 
since Haringey’s claimant count numbers started to increase).  The results of this 
exercise are set out in the table below: 
 
Table 1: Worst performing neighbourhoods share of UK claimant count, 
May 2008 to October 2008 

 
 
The observed average share ratio of 0.002543 is applied to the scenario totals of 
1m, 1.5m, 2m and 2.5m, which result in the following: 
 
Table 2: Estimated claimant count numbers in the worst performing 
neighbourhoods, 2010 (unadjusted) 

 
However, the claimant count data used in this exercise are based on the monthly 
data published by the Office for National Statistics (ONS).  The data used for 
measuring NI 153 are based on quarterly benefits data published by the 
Department for Work and Pensions (DWP).  The data sources produce different 
results mainly because the data is collected on different days in the month.  The 
figures shown in Table 2 therefore have to be adjusted to take account of this 

                                                 
3 It has been announced that pending clarification of the precise methodology used to measure NI 153 data for this 
indicator has been withdrawn.  The data available before withdrawal are being used in this model. 
4 These figures are based on the non-seasonally adjusted national totals to allow for comparisons with smaller areas.  The 
national figures reported for October 2008 will therefore differ from those reported earlier in this paper 

Page 13



difference.  This is done by calculating the average difference between the data 
observed on an annualised basis between May 2005 and May 2008.  The results 
of this exercise are shown in the table below: 
 
Table 3: Average difference between ONS and DWP claimant count figures, 
May 2005 to May 2008 

 
The observed average difference ratio of 5.2071 is then applied to the figures in 
Table, which gives the following: 
 
Table 4: Estimated claimant count numbers in the worst performing 
neighbourhoods, 2010 (adjusted) 

 
These figures are only based on people who are claimant count unemployed and 
doesn’t include people assigned to the other key benefit claim groups that are 
included in the definition of NI 153: Incapacity Benefits, lone parents (claiming 
Income Support) and others on income related benefits (including Income 
Support and Pension Credit).  However, the most recent data available covering 
these groups is up to May 2008 (i.e. before the labour market began to contract).  
Therefore it is assumed that these benefit claim levels will remain stable for the 
remainder of the LAA period with the estimated increased claimant count 
numbers added on top. 
 
It is also assumed for the purposes of this model that the working age population 
will remain stable over the LAA period. 
 
The estimates derived from this model will so far only provide estimates for the 
period August 2009 to May 2009.  To estimate figures for August 2008 to May 
2010 the midpoint observations for the differences between the August 2007 to 
May 2008 and August 2009 to May 2010 data are used.  The results of this 
exercise are shown in the table below: 
 
Table 5: Estimated out of work benefit figures up to August 2009 to May 
2010 

Page 14



The final step is to estimate benefit claim rates for August 2010 to May 2011.  
Two estimation methods are used: linear trend analysis and average trend 
analysis.  To ensure that these analyses are as robust as possible historical data 
from the period August 2001 to May 2002 are used.  The results of this exercise 
are presented in the tables below5: 
 
Table 6: Estimates out of work benefits claim rates (linear trend) 

 
Table 7: Estimates out of work benefits claim rates (average trend) 

 
To finalise the four target options the averages of the trend analyses were 
calculated, set out in the table below: 
 
Table 8: Target reductions scenarios 

 
From this model the four target options are: 
 
1. Option 1 (based on 1m people being claimant count unemployed by 

2010) – reducing the out work benefits claim rate by 1.8 percentage points 
2. Option 2 (based on 1.5m people being claimant count unemployed by 

2010) – limiting the increase in the out of work benefits claim rate to no more 
than 1.0 percentage points. 

3. Option 3 – (based on 2m people being claimant count unemployed by 
2010) – limiting the increase in the out of work benefits claim rate to no more 
than 3.9 percentage points. 

4. Option 4 – (based on 2.5m people being claimant count unemployed by 
2010) – limiting the increase in the out of work benefits claim rate to 6.7 
percentage points 

                                                 
5 Data up to August 2003 to May 2004 will differ from those reported on Floor Targets Interactive (FTI).  This is because 
the data on FTI are based on unrevised experimental Super Output Area population estimates published by ONS.  The 
data reported in this paper account for the revisions made to the population estimates. 

Page 15



 
Recommendation 
 
Based on the gloomy prospects for the UK economy, outlined earlier in this 
paper, it is not unrealistic to assume that claimant count unemployment will rise 
above 1.5m, which means that options 1 and 2 should probably be discounted.  
The case for a rise in claimant count unemployment to 2.5m is probably not 
strong enough at present to warrant recommending option 4.  It is therefore 
recommended that option 3 is taken up and a revised target to limit the increase 
in the out of work benefits to 3.9 percentage points is submitted.  

Page 16



Appendix 2a: Out of work benefits claim rate based on 1m claimant count 
unemployment 

% of working age population

24.0

25.0

26.0

27.0

28.0

29.0

30.0

31.0

August

2001 to

May 2002

August

2002 to

May 2003

August

2003 to

May 2004

August

2004 to

May 2005

August

2005 to

May 2006

August

2006 to

May 2007

August

2007 to

May 2008

August

2008 to

May 2009

August

2009 to

May 2010

August

2010 to

May 2011

%

Actual data Linear trend Average trend
 

 
Appendix 2b: Out of work benefits claim rate based on 1.5m claimant count 
unemployment 

% of working age population

24.0

25.0

26.0

27.0

28.0

29.0

30.0

31.0

August

2001 to

May 2002

August

2002 to

May 2003

August

2003 to

May 2004

August

2004 to

May 2005

August

2005 to

May 2006

August

2006 to

May 2007

August

2007 to

May 2008

August

2008 to

May 2009

August

2009 to

May 2010

August

2010 to

May 2011

%

Actual data Linear trend Average trend

Page 17



Appendix 2c: Out of work benefits claim rate based on 2m claimant count 
unemployment 
 

% of working age population

20.0

25.0

30.0

35.0

40.0

August

2001 to

May 2002

August

2002 to

May 2003

August

2003 to

May 2004

August

2004 to

May 2005

August

2005 to

May 2006

August

2006 to

May 2007

August

2007 to

May 2008

August

2008 to

May 2009

August

2009 to

May 2010

August

2010 to

May 2011

%

Actual data Linear trend Average trend

 
 
Appendix 2d: Out of work benefits claim rate based on 2.5m claimant count 
unemployment 
 
 

% of working age population

20.0

25.0

30.0

35.0

40.0

August

2001 to

May 2002

August

2002 to

May 2003

August

2003 to

May 2004

August

2004 to

May 2005

August

2005 to

May 2006

August

2006 to

May 2007

August

2007 to

May 2008

August

2008 to

May 2009

August

2009 to

May 2010

August

2010 to

May 2011

%

Actual data Linear trend Average trend
 

Page 18



Appendix 2e: Haringey’s worst performing neighbourhoods 
 

 

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



A 
 

 
 
Meeting:  Enterprise Partnership Board       
 
Date:   10 December 2008   
 
Report Title: Performance Management Highlight Report – Second 

Quarter 2008/09 
 
Report of: Karen Galey – Head of Economic Regeneration  
 
 
Purpose  
 
To update the Enterprise Board on the key enterprise related LAA 
performance highlights from the second quarter of 2008/09. 
 
Summary 
 
The key performance highlights are in relation to NEETs and the Job Seekers 
Allowance component of the stretch target to support 230 people from the 12 
most deprived wards into sustained employment. 
 
Performance in relation to the Incapacity Benefit stretch target remains a 
concern.  An attempt to renegotiate this target will be made as part of the LAA 
refresh. 
 
Legal/Financial Implications 
 
N/A. 
 
Recommendations 
 
That the Enterprise Board notes this report. 
 
For more information contact: 
 
Name: Ambrose Quashie 
Title: Employment & Skills Policy Officer 
Tel: 020 8489 6914 
Email address: ambrose.quashie@haringey.gov.uk 
 
 
1. Introduction 
 

Agenda Item 6Page 21



1.1 This report provides highlight information in relation to the indicators 
included in the Enterprise Theme Board’s performance scorecard.  The 
scorecard contains all the relevant indicators included in Haringey’s Local 
Area Agreement (LAA) (National Indicators (NIs), stretch targets and local 
indicators). 

 
1.2 Data for NI 171 (New business registration rate), at the time of writing this 

report, remain unavailable.  It is expected that data will be available in time 
for the LAA refresh (a report on the LAA refresh is included in the agenda 
pack for this meeting). 

 
1.3 Due to methodological issues, data for NI 153 (Working age people 

claiming out of work benefits in the worst performing neighbourhoods) 
have been withdrawn pending these issues being resolved.  The data for 
Haringey, which were available before withdrawal have been included in 
the scorecard, for information.  The data show that between August 2006 
to May 2007 and August 2007 to May 2008 the out of work benefits claim 
rate in Haringey’s worst performing neighbourhoods fell from 28.5 per cent 
to 26.8 per cent. 

 
1.4 In terms of the LAA local indicators, the Learning and Skills Council has 

submitted draft targets in anticipation of the LAA refresh. 
 
1.5 The key highlights from this quarter’s scorecard are performance in 

relation to NI 117 (16 to 18 years olds not in education, employment or 
training (NEETs)) and the stretch target related to the number of people 
from the worst twelve worst helped into sustained work.   

 
1.6 The proportion of NEETs in Haringey is currently 9.5 per cent.  Although 

this is higher than the figure reported in quarter 1 of 8.4 per cent, current 
performance remains below the 2008/09 target of 11.0 per cent and the 
2010 stretch target level of 10.4 per cent. 

 
1.7 In quarters 1 and 2, 29 people from the 12 target wards were supported 

into sustained employment.  The 60 per cent threshold, in terms of the Job 
Seekers Allowance component, upon which reward grant is payable has 
already been met. 

 
2. Exception commentary 
 
2.1 Performance in relation to the Incapacity Benefit (IB) stretch target 

remains a concern with 3 sustained jobs reported in quarters 1 and 2.  
Since April 2007, 12 long-term IB claimants have been supported into 
sustained employment against a target of 180.  To turn this around, explicit 
targets around supporting IB claimants into work have been included in the 
contracts issued to Haringey Guarantee providers.  A Condition 
Management Programme, managed by the Teaching Primary Care Trust, 
has been introduced, which is available to appropriate Haringey 
Guarantee participants.  Also, the number of outreach facilities has been 
increased with outreach events being held jointly with Job Centre Plus. 

 

Page 22



Quarterly Performance Review - 2008/09 Quarter 2

Blank 07/08 08/09 Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 YTD Progress

Enterprise
NI 153

LAA

Target Lead

Comment

NI 171 LAA

Target Lead

Comment

Local

LAA local

Target Lead

Comment

Amber Amber Amber

N/A 0 0 0

Local

LAA local

Target 

Lead

Comment

Q - 150

J - 0

Q - 180

Local

LAA local

Target 

Lead

Comment

Q - 740

J - 0

Q- 400

Working age people claiming out of work benefits in the 
worst performing neighbourhoods 

TBC

Data for NI 153 has been withdrawn pending clarification of the 
precise methodology.  The data available before withdrawal 
showed:

Year to May 2007 (baseline): 28.5%
Year to August 2007: 28.1%
Year to November 2007: 27.5%
Year to February 2008: 27.1%
Year to May 2008: 26.8%

New business registration rate 
TBC

Data for this indicator remain unavailable

Adults achieving a full level two qualification and entered 
employed and those gaining a qualification in the 
workplace

Qualifications - 740
Jobs - TBC
Qualifications in the workplace - 900

Number of registered Haringey Guarantee participants 
with a completed better off calculation

400

Haringey Guarantee providers have been trained on how to use 
the better off calculation software and we expect performance to 
significantly improve in quarters 3 and 4.

Adults achieving a Skills for Life qualification and entered 
employment and those gaining a qualification in the 
workplace

Qualifications - 350
Jobs - 140
Qualifications in the workplace - 600

1 of 3 Produced by Policy and Performance Team 01/12/08

Page 23



Blank 07/08 08/09 Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 YTD Progress

Stretch

LAA stretch

Target Lead

Comment

Green Green Green

22 7 29

Stretch

LAA stretch

Target Lead

Comment

Red Red Red

2 1 3

Stretch NI 79
LAA Cross 

Target Cutting

Comment

66.0%

NI 116 LAA Cross 

Target Cutting

Comment

36.4% (06/07 

provisional)

Stretch NI 117
LAA Cross 

Target Cutting

Comment

Green Green Green

10.4% 8.4% 9.5% 9.5%

NI 1

LAA Cross

Target cutting
Comment

78.0%

Achievement of a Level 2 qualification by the age of 19 

68%

Annual collection.  Data collected from number of different 
sources and published in DSL statistical first release in February. 

Proportion of children in poverty 

34.5%

New indicator monitored annually

16 to 18 year olds who are not in education, training or 
employment (NET) 
11%

85

Achieving this stretch target remains a significant challenge and 
we will be seeking to renegotiate this target as part of the LAA 
refresh.

It is also worth noting that other London boroughs such as 
Islington and Bromley are also struggling with similar targets and 
are unlikely to meet them.

Number of people from the worst twelve wards helped into 
sustained work

Number of people on incapacity benefit for more than six 
months helped into sustained employment

% of people who believe people from different 
backgrounds get on well together in their local area

81%

This will be measured by the Place Survey in September 2008, 
with the results expected in January 2009

74 (40 JSA and 34 Lone Parents)

The 7 sustained job outputs achieved in quarter 2 are broken 
down as: 6 long-term JSA claimants; and 1 lone parents.  We 
are on course to achieve this stretch target and the 60% 
threshold upon which reward grant is payable has already been 
achieved in relation to the JSA component of the target.

We expect these figures to substantially increase in quarters 3 
and 4 as participants are supported through their action plans 
addressing their barriers to work.

NI 1, 2006/07

78
78.9 78.6

74

76

78

80

Haringey England London

%

2 of 3 Produced by Policy and Performance Team 01/12/08

Page 24



Blank 07/08 08/09 Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 YTD Progress

NI 4 LAA Cross

Target cutting
Comment

41.0%

NI 6 LAA Cross

Target 

cutting
Comment

NI 7 LAA Cross

Target 

cutting
Comment

NI 140 LAA Cross

Target cutting
Comment

70.0%

% of people who feel that they can influence decisions in 
43%

This will be measured by the Place Survey in September 2008 
with the results expected in January 2009

Participation in regular volunteering
This will be measured by the Place Survey but the target and 
baseline deferred until 2009, when a statistically significant 
improvement will be agreed as part of year 1 refresh

The citizenship survey has been released with national level 
statistics.  Below are the headline figures for the volunteering 
question  

Environment for a thriving third sector
Baseline not available, to be set with targets as part of year 1 
refresh

Fair treatment by local services
71%

Measured by the Place Survey in September 2008, with the 
results expected in January 2009

NI 4, 2006/07 

41

31.8

39.5

20

25

30

35

40

45

Haringey England London

%

Participation in volunteering - England

47 50 50 47
41 44 43 41

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

2001 2003 2005 Apr - Dec 2007%
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri

n
g

 a
t 

le
a

s
t 

o
n

c
e

 a
 m

o
n

th

All adults

Group at
risk of
social
exclusion

3 of 3 Produced by Policy and Performance Team 01/12/08

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



   

          B 
 

 
 
Meeting:  Enterprise Board      
 
Date:   10 December 2008  
 
Report Title: Enterprise Board Risk Register 
 
Report of: Karen Galey – Head of Economic Regeneration 
 
Purpose  
 
The present the Enterprise Board Risk Register. 
 
 
Summary 
 
The Haringey Strategic Partnership (HSP), at its meeting on 3 July 2008, 
formally approved a Risk Management Strategy.  This strategy requires each 
HSP Theme Board and the Performance Management Group (PMG) to 
produce a Risk Register, which identifies the key risks and remedial actions 
associated with delivering the LAA targets they lead on (National Indicators 
and Stretch Targets). 
 
The Risk Register will also cover generic risks including membership, data 
and information management, governance and non-delivery of outcomes. 
 
The Enterprise Board Risk Register is appended to this report. 
 
Recommendations 
 
1. That the Enterprise Board agrees the Risk Register. 
 
2. That the Enterprise Board agrees to update the Risk Register on a six 

monthly basis. 
 
Financial/Legal Comments 
 
N/A 
For more information contact: 
 
Name: Ambrose Quashie 
Title: Employment & Skills Policy Officer 
Tel: 020 8489 6914 
Email address: Ambrose.Quashie@haringey.gov.uk 

Page 27



 
Introduction 
 
The HSP, at its meeting on 3 July 2008, formally approved a Risk 
Management Strategy.  This strategy requires each HSP Theme Board and 
the PMG to produce a Risk Register, which identifies the key risks and 
controls associated with delivering the LAA targets they lead on (National 
Indicators and Stretch Targets). 
 
The Risk Register also covers generic risks including membership, data and 
information management, governance and non-delivery of outcomes. 
 
The purpose of the Risk Register is to ensure that the HSP Theme Board and 
the PMG are aware and take ownership of the risks associated with delivering 
the LAA outcomes. 
 
It is important that the Risk Register is kept up to date so that the Enterprise 
Board continues to be aware of and own the risks associated with delivering 
its LAA outcomes.  To achieve this it is recommended that the risk register is 
updated on a six monthly basis. 
 
The Enterprise Board Risk Register is appended to this report. 
 
Appendices 
 
Risk Register referred to above.   
 
 

Page 28



Appendix 1: Enterprise Board risk register 

This document sets out the HSP Enterprise Board key risks, as per our agreed approach. The risks are based upon the LAA targets, 
which have been included below for information:  

i. NI153 – Working age people claiming out of work benefits in the worst performing neighbourhoods 
ii. NI 171 – New business registration rate 
iii. Stretch (1) – Number of people from the worst twelve wards supported into sustained work 
iv. Stretch (2) – Number of people on Incapacity Benefit for more than 6 months supported into sustained employment  

 

 

Key to the Risk Register: 

Ref: Details the reference number (usually the National Indicator) for the risk. 

Risk Identified: Details the risk identified by the PMG or Theme Board. 

Inherent Risk: Is assessed by Impact (I) and Likelihood (L).  The Inherent risk is the impact of the risk occurring, and how likely it is to 
occur, without any mitigating actions in place to address the risk.  The Impact and Likelihood of the risks are scored from Low to High 
according to the schedule in Appendix 1 of this report. The rankings can be tied into the overall HSP risk framework. 

Controls: The actions and processes which are currently in place to manage the risk identified. 

Residual Risk: Is assessed on the same rankings as Inherent Risk. The Residual Risk is the impact and likelihood of the risk occurring 
with the current controls in place.  

Further Action: Where there is outstanding residual risk, further actions have been identified by the Theme Board to reduce the 
exposure of the Theme Board to the risk.  A separate action plan, including a timetable for implementation of the further actions, will be 
produced where appropriate.  

P
a
g
e
 2

9



 

Inherent Risk Controls Residual Risk 

 

Further Action Ref Risk Identified 

Impact L.hood  Impact L.hood  

Lack of continuity of membership across the theme board 

EP1 Lack of continuity of 
membership impacts on the 
ability to deliver on 
outcomes/targets: 
• High turnover of members 
• Inability to recruit and/or  

retain right members 
• Non-attendance of 

members at meetings 
• Lack of continuity and/or 

succession planning 
 

Risk Owner: Enterprise 
Board Chair 

 

M L • Agreed recruitment procedures 
for Theme Board membership 

• Enterprise Board membership 
reviewed on an annual basis  

• Responsibility for filling posts 
identified 

• Training & Development for 
Theme Board members   

• Reporting processes to 
highlight and identify vacancies 
and/or non-attendance 

 
 
Control Owner: Enterprise 
Board Co-ordinator 

L L • Action plan to 
address 
identified 
gaps to be 
drawn up 

• To be 
included as a 
regular 
agenda item 
at Enterprise 
Board 
meetings 

Data Quality and/or Information management arrangements  

EP2 • Data are not robust and/or 
timely enough to 
effectively monitor and 
manage performance 

 

H L • Effective quality monitoring of 
internal performance data e.g. 
Haringey Guarantee 
employment outcomes 

• Lobby central Government for 
improvements to external data 

M L • Review of 
existing data 
collection 
and 
monitoring 
processes 

P
a

g
e
 3

0



Inherent Risk Controls Residual Risk 

 

Further Action Ref Risk Identified 

Impact L.hood  Impact L.hood  

Risk Owner: Head of 
Economic Regeneration  

e.g. employment and 
business start ups 

 
Control Owner: Head of 
Economic Regeneration 

and action 
plan to fill 
gaps 

Governance arrangements 

EP3 • Lack of strategic direction 
impacts on the ability to 
deliver on 
outcomes/targets 

• Lack of continuity of 
membership impacts on 
the ability to deliver on 
outcomes/targets 

 

Risk Owner: Enterprise 
Board Chair 

H L • Terms of Reference are 
reviewed on an annual basis 

• Positions of Chair and Vice 
Chair are reviewed on an 
annual basis 

• Enterprise Board membership 
is reviewed on an annual 
basis 

 

Control Owner: Enterprise 
Board Co-ordinator 

M L • Action plan 
to address 
identified 
gaps to be 
drawn up 

Non-delivery of outcomes; allocation of resources, commissioning, spend, linkages to other theme boards/cross-cutting work not 
identified 

EP4 • LAA outcomes are not 
delivered 

• Delivery projects do not 
meet spend profile 

• Enterprise Board 

H L • Delivery partners are regularly 
monitored on outcome and 
financial performance. 

• Performance and progress 
reports are received at every 
Enterprise Board meeting. 

H L • Action plan 
to address 
identified 
gaps to be 
drawn up 

• Evaluating 

P
a
g
e
 3

1



Inherent Risk Controls Residual Risk 

 

Further Action Ref Risk Identified 

Impact L.hood  Impact L.hood  

membership is not wide 
enough to ensure linkages 
to other theme 
boards/cross cutting work 

 
Risk Owner: Head of 
Economic Regeneration  

• Enterprise Board membership 
is reviewed on an annual 
basis 

• Enterprise Board 
representative attends the 
HSP Co-ordinators meetings. 

Control Owner: Head of 
Economic Regeneration 

the role of 
delivery 
partners 
where 
appropriate 

Working age people claiming out of work benefits in the worst performing neighbourhoods 

NI 153 • The economy continues to 
deteriorate resulting in 
benefit claim rates 
increasing rather than 
decreasing 

• Increased financial costs 
incurred (e.g. Housing 
Benefit) due to rising 
number of people claiming 
unemployment related 
benefits 

• Delivery partners do not 
achieve specified outcome 
targets 

 

 

H 

 

 

 

 

 

 

M 

 

 

 

 

 

• Delivery partners are regularly 
monitored on outcome and 
financial performance. 

• Performance and progress 
reports are received at every 
Enterprise Board meeting. 

• Increasing the role of the 
Haringey Guarantee to 
support people who have 
recently become unemployed. 

• Increasing the support offer to 
businesses through the 
Employer Zone and Single 
Business Account. 

• Improving employer 

 

H 

 

M 

• Conduct 
further 
research into 
the impact of 
the current 
economic 
climate on 
Haringey. 

• Evaluating 
the role of 
Haringey 
Guarantee 
delivery 
partners 
where 
appropriate. 

P
a

g
e
 3

2



Inherent Risk Controls Residual Risk 

 

Further Action Ref Risk Identified 

Impact L.hood  Impact L.hood  

Risk Owner: Regeneration 
Manager (Employment & 
Skills) and External Relations 
Manager (JCP) 

 

engagement, through 
initiatives such as the 
Employer Zone and Local 
Employment Partnerships to 
widen the employment 
opportunities available to 
Haringey Guarantee residents 

• Holding information sessions 
and events to support people 
to maximise their incomes  

• Placing Haringey Guarantee 
advisers in local Job Centre 
Plus offices. 

 
Control Owner: Regeneration 
Manager (Employment & Skills) 
and External Relations Manager 
(JCP) 

New business registration rate  

NI 171 • The economy continues to 
deteriorate making it more 
difficult for businesses to 
generate the turnover 
£67k to become VAT 
registered automatically.  

M M • Promote the benefits of 
voluntary registration through 
our ABG funded programme. 

• Identify new markets that are 
viable during an economic 
downturn and focus business 

M L • Evaluating 
the role and 
performance 
of delivery 
partners in 
business 

P
a
g
e
 3

3



Inherent Risk Controls Residual Risk 

 

Further Action Ref Risk Identified 

Impact L.hood  Impact L.hood  

Or inhibiting the number 
of start-up businesses in 
the borough. 

Risk Owner: Business and 
Enterprise Manager 

start-up programmes in those 
areas. 

 
Control Owner: Business and 
Enterprise Manager 

support and 
advice 
provided 
within the 
borough. 

 

Number of people from the worst twelve wards supported into sustained work 

Stretch 
(1) 

• The economy continues to 
deteriorate making it more 
difficult to engage with 
long-term Job Seekers 
Allowance claimants and 
lone parents 

• Delivery partners do not 
achieve specified outcome 
targets 

Risk Owner: Regeneration 
Manager (Employment Skills) 

H L • Delivery partners are regularly 
monitored on outcome and 
financial performance. 

• Performance and progress 
reports are received at every 
Enterprise Board meeting. 

• Increasing the outreach 
facilities from which the 
Haringey Guarantee operates. 

• Improving employer 
engagement, through 
initiatives such as the 
Employer Zone to widen the 
employment opportunities 
available to Haringey 
Guarantee residents 

 

H L • Evaluating 
the role of 
Haringey 
Guarantee 
delivery 
partners 
where 
appropriate. 

P
a

g
e
 3

4



Inherent Risk Controls Residual Risk 

 

Further Action Ref Risk Identified 

Impact L.hood  Impact L.hood  

Control Owner: Regeneration 
Manager (Employment & Skills) 

Number of people on Incapacity Benefit for more than six months supported into sustained employment 

Stretch 
(2) 

• Current performance in 
relation to this stretch 
target continues to be 
weak 

• The economy continues to 
deteriorate making it more 
difficult to engage with 
long-term Incapacity 
Benefit claimants  

Risk Owner: Regeneration 
Manager (Employment & 
Skills) 

H L • Increasing the outreach 
facilities from which the 
Haringey Guarantee operates. 

• Delivery partners are regularly 
monitored on outcome and 
financial performance. 

• Performance and progress 
reports are received at every 
Enterprise Board meeting. 

• Improving employer 
engagement, through 
initiatives such as the 
Employer Zone to widen the 
employment opportunities 
available to Haringey 
Guarantee residents 

• Revising contractual 
arrangements with Haringey 
Guarantee providers to 
ensure that they are targeted 
to support Incapacity Benefit 

H L • Evaluating 
the role of 
delivery 
partners 
where 
appropriate. P

a
g
e
 3

5



Inherent Risk Controls Residual Risk 

 

Further Action Ref Risk Identified 

Impact L.hood  Impact L.hood  

claimants 
• Seeking to renegotiate this 

stretch target with central 
government 

Control Owner: Regeneration 
Manager (Employment & Skills) 

 

P
a

g
e
 3

6



Appendix A1 

 
Impact and Likelihood Scales  

To be used as a guide in assessing risk ratings: 

Descriptor Impact Guide Likelihood Guide 

 
LOW 
 
 
 
MEDIUM 
 
 
HIGH 
 
 
 

 
No or limited impact. Financial loss up to £10,000, or no 
impact outside single objective or no adverse publicity 
 
 
Financial loss up to £300,000, or impact on many other 
processes, or local adverse publicity, or regulatory 
sanctions (such as intervention, public interest reports) 
 
Financial loss up to £1 million, or major impact at strategic 
level, or closure/transfer of business 

 
Up to 10% likely to occur in next 12 months 
 
 
 
Up to 40% likely to occur in next 12 months 
 
 
Up to 90% likely to occur in next 12 months 

 
 

 

P
a
g
e
 3

7



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



 

C 
 

 
 
 
Meeting:  Enterprise Board       
 
Date:   10 December 2008    
 
Report Title: Working Neighbourhoods Fund Consultation 
 
Report of: Karen Galey (Head of Economic Regeneration) 
 
Purpose  
 
To inform the Enterprise Board about the current consultation on the 
allocation of the Working Neighbourhoods Fund. 
 
Summary 
 
Communities and Local Government (CLG) published a consultation 
document, ‘The Working Neighbourhoods Fund (WNF) 2009-11: Revising the 
Third Criterion,’ on 5 November about revising the criteria for allocating the 
Working Neighbourhoods Fund for 2009-2011.  
 
The proposed revisions to the allocation criteria would result in Haringey 
receiving a small increase in its WNF allocation of £86,390 for 2009-2011, 
based on the figures in the consultation document. 
 
The deadline for responding to the consultation is 9 January 2009. 
 
Recommendations 
 
1. That the Enterprise Board notes this report. 
 
2. That the Enterprise Board agrees that Haringey should support the revised 

methodology proposal. 
 
Financial/Legal Comments 
 
N/A 
For more information contact: 
 
Name: Ambrose Quashie 
Title: Employment & Skills Policy Officer 
Tel: 020 8489 6914 
Email address: Ambrose.Quashie@haringey.gov.uk 

Page 39



 
 
 
 
1. Introduction  
 
1.1 Communities and Local Government (CLG) published a consultation 

document, ‘The Working Neighbourhoods Fund (WNF) 2009-11: Revising 
the Third Criterion,’ on 5 November about revising the criteria for allocating 
the Working Neighbourhoods Fund between 2009-2011.  The deadline for 
responding to the consultation is 9 January 2009.    

 
2. Current allocation criteria 
 
2.1 The current WNF allocation criteria is set our below: 
 

• A Local Authority (LA) with 20 per cent or more of their Lower Layer 
Super Output Areas (LSOAs) in the most deprived 10 per cent of 
LSOAs nationally on the employment domain of the Index of Multiple 
Deprivation (IMD 2007). 

• A LA with 20 per cent or more of their LSOAs in the most deprived 10 
per cent of LSOAs nationally on the overall IMD 2007. 

• A LA that is ranked among the 40 areas with the highest combined 
benefit/non-employment rate.  

 
2.2 A LA that meets at least one of these criteria would be eligible for WNF.  

Haringey met all three of these criteria. 
 
2.3 LAs that were eligible for the 2007/08 round of Neighbourhood Renewal 

Fund (NRF) but not for WNF would receive: 60% of their 2007/08 NRF 
allocation in 2008/09; 40% of their 2008/09 WNF allocation in 2009/10; 
and no funding in 2010/11. 

 
3. Revising the allocation criteria  
 
3.1 The proposals in the consultation centre on the third allocation criterion 

and in particular, the benefits component.  The benefits included in this 
component are Job Seekers Allowance, Incapacity Benefit and lone 
parents claiming Income Support.  The original benefit claim rates were 
calculated using 2001 Census population figures. 

  
3.2 When the benefit claim rates were originally calculated the population 

figures excluded people living in communal establishments.  When the 
rates were recalculated to take into account the communal establishment 
population this resulted into two LAs, Camden and Westminster, becoming 
ineligible for WNF and therefore only eligible for transitional payments from 
2008-2010.  This process also resulted in Waltham Forest becoming an 
eligible authority.  Under the Government’s proposed revised allocation 
criteria, Camden and Westminster would receive 60 per cent of the 
2008/09 WNF allocation in 2009/10 and 40 per cent of their 2009/10 WNF 
allocation in 2010/11. 

 

Page 40



3.3 In an attempt to make the third allocation criterion more equitable the 
Government is proposing the following: 

 
• Updating the benefit claimant data so that data for February 2007 to 

November 2007 are used. 
• Updating the employment data (from the Annual Population Survey) so 

that data for January 2007 to December 2007 are used. 
• Replacing the 2001 Census population data with data from the 2007 

mid-year population estimates. 
• Raising the cut off point from 40 to 50 LAs.  Keeping the cut off point at 

40 would result in 59 LAs being eligible for WNF, while a cut off point of 
50 would leave 65 LAs eligible for WNF. 

• Retaining the 50:50 weighting attached to the benefits and employment 
data. 

 
3.4 The Government has identified at least two LAs (Brent and West 

Somerset) as being adversely affected by these changes.  It is proposed 
that these LAs are treated in the same way as Camden and Westminster 
so that they receive 60 per cent of their 2008/09 WNF allocation in 
2009/10 and 40 per cent of their 2009/10 WNF allocation in 2010/11.  The 
special transitional arrangements that the Government is proposing will not 
affect the overall WNF grant which is available in 2009/10 and 2010/11 

 
3.5 For this consultation, views are sought on, but not restricted to, the 

following issues: 
 

1. Revising the third criterion using the updated benefits, employment and 
population data. 

2. Extending the cut-off point for eligibility from 40 to 50 LAs 
 
4. Implications for Haringey  
 
4.1 The financial implications for Haringey as a result of these proposals are 

set out below: 
 

Original WNF 2009/10 allocation: £7,821,441 
Revised WNF 2009/10 allocation: £7,844,413 
Difference: £22,972 
 
Original WNF 2010/11 allocation: £8,059,054 
Revised WNF 2010/11 allocation: £8,122,472  
Difference: £63,418 
 
Total difference: £86,390 

 
4.2 So, it can be seen that Haringey would benefit from a slight increase in its 

WNF allocations for 2009/10 and 2010/11.  Therefore it would probably be 
advisable to support the revised methodology as any counter proposals 
could have a negative impact.   

 
4.3 Under the revised methodology Haringey would continue to meet all three 

of the allocation criteria. 

Page 41



 
4.4 The revised methodology would result in Enfield becoming eligible for 

WNF and with Waltham Forest also now an eligible WNF authority this 
could create opportunities to strengthen existing partnership interventions 
such as the North London Pledge. 

 
 

Page 42



 
 
Meeting:  Enterprise Partnership Board       
 
Date:   10 December 2008   
 
Report Title: Area Based Grant Review 
 
Report of: Martin Tucker - Regeneration Manager (Employment 

& Skills) 
 
 
Purpose   
 
To inform the Board of the recent ABG Review and its recommendations and 
to begin consideration of the commissioning of the Enterprise Board’s ABG 
allocation in 2009/10 and 2010/11. 
 
Summary 
  
A review of the Area Based Grant was carried out over July and August 2008 
 
The review has recommended that as the ABG is allocated to local authorities 
on a 3 year basis this stability should be extended to thematic boards and that 
theme boards will receive two year allocations of ABG from April 2009. 
 
Theme Boards should commission programmes of activities and interventions 
to support delivery and achievement of partnership priorities and LAA 
outcomes and national indicators. Further theme boards also hold the 
responsibility for de-commissioning programmes of activity and interventions 
where performance is poor and projects are not delivering against outcomes. 
 
The Enterprise Board should now commence the process of commissioning 
the Enterprise ABG Programme for 2008/09 including the decommissioning of 
any current underperforming projects. 
 
The indicative ABG allocation for Enterprise is £1.6million in 2009/10 and 
£1.463 in 2010/11.  In 2008/09 the allocation is £1.2million. 
 
Legal/Financial Implications            
 
N/A 
 
Recommendations 
 

1. That the Board note the contents of the HSP Chair’s Letter and the 
ABG Review Report 

 
2. That the Board now commence the process of commissioning the 

Agenda Item 7Page 43



Enterprise ABG Programme for 2009/10 and 2010/11 including the 
decommissioning of any current underperforming projects through 
either: 

 

• convening special meeting(s) of the Board to consider the 
development and agreement of an Enterprise Commissioning 
Prospectus and Plan or; 

• establish a Commissioning Sub-Group of the Board to meet and 
agree the Enterprise Commissioning Prospectus and Plan 
reporting back to a full meeting of the Board 

 
3. That as a first step in this process the Board agree headline 

programme of activity and interventions relating to LAA outcomes 
namely: 

 
• Tackling Worklessness including the Haringey Guarantee and 

Families into Work and;  
• Business Support and Enterprise 

 
For more information contact: 
 
Name:  Martin Tucker 
Title:     Regeneration Manager (Employment & Skills) 
Tel: 020 8489 2932 
Email address: martin.tucker@haringey.gov.uk 
 

Background 

 

In November 2007 the Department for Communities and Local Government 
detailed the arrangements for the new Area Based Grant as part of the 
publication 'Development of the New LAA Framework' Operational Guidance.  
 
The ABG is a non-ring fenced revenue grant, which local authorities are free 
to use “as they see fit to support the delivery of local, regional and national 
priorities in their areas, including the achievement of LAA target”. As of April 
2008, the ABG was allocated on a three-year basis to maximise stability and 
certainty. The allocations for years two and three are indicative and may be 
subject to change. 
 
The allocation to Haringey Council for the next three year period is £22.24m 
2008/09, £23.537m 2009/10 and £23.343m 2010/11. The Haringey Strategic 
Partnership agreed the allocations to the Thematic Boards for 2008/09 based 
on a steady state pending a review at six months. 
 
The allocation to the Enterprise Theme Board in 2008/09 was £1.2m. 
Indicative allocations for Enterprise is £1.6million in 2009/10 and £1.463 in 
2010/11. 
 
A review of the Area Based Grant was carried out over July and August 2008 
 

Page 44



The review has recommended that as the ABG is allocated to local authorities 
on a 3 year basis this stability should be extended to thematic boards and that 
theme boards will receive two year allocations of ABG from April 2009. 
 
Theme Boards should commission programmes of activities and interventions 
to support delivery and achievement of partnership priorities and LAA 
outcomes and national indicators. Further theme boards also hold the 
responsibility for de-commissioning programmes of activity and interventions 
where performance is poor and projects are not delivering against outcomes. 
 
Enterprise Commissioning Prospectus and Plan 

 
The Board need to consider how to take forward the recommendations of the 
ABG Review around commissioning and decommissioning programmes of 
activity and interventions which support delivery and achievement of 
partnership priorities and LAA outcomes and national indicators. 
 
Haringey Council and the HSP are reviewing current commissioning and 
procurement activities with a view to moving towards more strategic 
commissioning.   
 
In light of this the Board need to consider current activities and future needs in 
a strategic commissioning perspective. 
 
Current ABG programmes of activity are: 
 

(a) Haringey Guarantee 
(b) Families into Work 
(c) Business Support and Enterprise 
Each of these programmes are rated GREEN – The Haringey Guarantee 
had an AMBER rating at the end of Quarter 1 but this has now been 
remedied. 

 
LAA outcomes which these contribute to are: 
 

i. NI 153 – Working age people claiming out of work benefits in the worst 
performing neighbourhoods 

ii. NI 171 – New business registration rate 
iii. Stretch (1) – Number of people from the worst twelve wards supported 

into sustained work 
iv. Stretch (2) – Number of people on Incapacity Benefit for more than 6 

months supported into sustained employment   
Plus local indicators on 

v. Number of registered Haringey Guarantee participants with a 
completed better off calculation 

vi. Adults achieving a Skills for Life qualification and entered employment 
and those gaining a qualification in the workplace 

vii. Adults achieving a full level two qualification and entered employed and 
those gaining a qualification in the workplace 

 
Baselines and targets for outcomes ii, vi and vii are yet to be established and 
Haringey is looking to renegotiate outcomes I and iv as part of the LAA 

Page 45



Refresh.  However these will remain the main outcomes and indicators that 
the Enterprise Board will have responsibility for in performance management. 
 
Indicative ABG allocation for the Enterprise Board should be confirmed by late 
December/early January and the Enterprise Board need to be prepared to 
begin the commissioning/decommissioning process early to ensure delivery 
early in the next municipal year to meet partnership priorities and LAA 
outcomes and indicators. 
 
It is proposed that the Board require officers from Economic Regeneration to 
work on a draft Enterprise Board Commissioning Prospectus and Plan 
outlining the strategic approach to commissioning, strategic approach on 
tackling worklessness, skills development, business support and enterprise, 
identifying gaps in provision, examples of good practice and setting out 
priorities for programmes of activity and interventions with indicative funding 
allocations.  The draft will also include guidelines for partners and external 
agencies to apply to deliver programmes of activity and interventions and the 
process whereby commissioning will be determined and approved. (This 
approach was followed in the original commissioning of the Haringey 
Guarantee in 2006.) 
 
This draft Enterprise Board Commissioning Prospectus and Plan to be 
completed by end of January 2009 and considered by the Board in either: 
 

(a) a special meeting of the Board in February or  
(b) the establishment of Enterprise Board ABG Commissioning 

Group who will meet to consider the draft and report back to the 
full Board. 

 
Following approval of the Commissioning Prospectus and Plan the 
programmes of activity and interventions for 2009/10 and 2010/2011 are 
commissioned in March/April 2009. 
 

Appendices   
 
Appendix 1: Letter from Leader of the Council and Chair HSP to Theme 
Board Chairs 
Appendix 2: Area Based Grant Review Report 
 

Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



ABG Review v0.5 HSP  1

Meeting:  Haringey Strategic Partnership

Date:   4 November 2008 

Report Title: Area Based Grant Review

Report of: Sharon Kemp 

 Assistant Chief Executive Policy, Performance, 

Partnerships & Communication 

1. PURPOSE 

1.1 To present the findings of the Area Based Grant (ABG) review. 

1.2 To make recommendations for improving the management and monitoring of 
activity funded through the ABG. 

2. SUMMARY 

2.1 A review of ABG activity took place in July / August 2008, as requested by the 
Performance Management Group (PMG).

2.2 144 projects were assessed against agreed criteria.  Of these, 116 (81%) 
received a GREEN overall status, 22 (15%) were assessed as AMBER and 6 
(4% as RED).

2.3 Appendix 1 shows the detailed outcomes of the review. 

2.4 A number of recommendations are made in section 3 for improving the 
management and monitoring of activity funded through the ABG. 

2.5 The review process has been assessed against Compact criteria and was found 
to be fair and transparent. 

2.6 Section 8 summarises the requirements for the financial management and 
reporting of the area based grant. 

Page 49



ABG Review v0.5 HSP  2

3. RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1 That clear, measurable objectives and outputs, linked to outcomes, are agreed 
with the Thematic Boards at project start-up and prior to funding being agreed.  
The review and assessment process must also be agreed at this time.  The 
Haringey Strategic Partnership (HSP) has already agreed that Thematic Boards 
have responsibility for financial and performance management. 

3.2 That there should be a link between ABG funded activity and the delivery of local 
and national priorities, including the achievement of LAA targets.  The HSP may 
consider mapping all activity, regardless of funding sources, contributing to a 
particular outcome as part of a future Commissioning Framework.  This will 
enable a holistic view of activities across all partner organisations and will 
provide opportunities for improved planning, reduction of duplication and 
achievement of value for money. 

3.3 That consideration is given to rationalising the number of projects within the ABG 
i.e. where projects have common objectives these could be grouped and 
reported as a single programme.  For example, projects BP14 and BP-15 
(Vulnerable Communities Programme and Working with Education & Voluntary 
Sectors).  As with the previous recommendation, this will provide opportunities 
for improved planning, reduction of duplication and achievement of value for 
money.

3.4 That the discipline of regular monitoring and reporting, against agreed objectives 
and spend for each project is embedded across all ABG funded activity as set 
out in the agreed performance management framework for the HSP.

3.5 That principles of project and programme management based on national best 
practice is applied to the management of ABG activity. 

3.6 From April 2008 the government allocated the ABG on a three-year basis to 
maximise stability and certainty.  It is recommended that this arrangement is 
extended to the HSP theme boards’ ABG funded activity, subject to meeting the 
requirements of an annual review.

3.7 That from 2009/10 a fund is created within the ABG allocation, to manage 
unforeseen risks and underperformance against the delivery of outcomes.

3.8 That consideration is given to aligning ABG funding allocation with existing 
business planning across partner organisations.  This will enable improved 
planning and alignment of resources.  Appendix 2 shows a proposed timetable.

3.9 That the PMG provides the outcome of this review to the Thematic Boards and 
for them to take action to ensure that activity funded through their allocated grant 
will deliver against the agreed outcomes.  Remedial action taken will need to be 
detailed in the quarterly thematic performance report.

Page 50



ABG Review v0.5 HSP  3

4. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

4.1 In November 2007 the Department for Communities and Local Government 
detailed the arrangements for the new Area Based Grant as part of the 
publication 'Development of the New LAA Framework' Operational Guidance.  
Further guidance was published in February 2008. 

4.2 The ABG is a non-ring fenced revenue grant, which local authorities are free to 
use “as they see fit to support the delivery of local, regional and national priorities 
in their areas, including the achievement of LAA target”.  As of April 2008, the 
ABG was allocated on a three-year basis to maximise stability and certainty.  The 
allocations for years two and three are indicative and may be subject to change.

4.3 Haringey Council took the decision in the spirit of partnership to share the 
information on expenditure covered within the ABG and to maximise its usage 
against the Local Area Agreement outcomes.

4.4 The allocation to Haringey Council for the next three year period is £22.24m 
2008/09, £23.537m 2009/10 and £23.343m 2010/11.  The Haringey Strategic 
Partnership agreed the allocations to the Thematic Boards for 2008/09 based on 
a steady state pending a review at six months.

4.5 A number of specific grants have been moved into the ABG, which is the sum of 
all the specific grants from 2008/09 – 2010/11.  The specific grants are shown in 
Appendix 1.  This is a transitional measure and ABG guidance states that there is 
no expectation that funding is used to support the objectives of the former 
specific grants.  However, for some of these grants, such as preserved rights, 
there are long-term commitments that are linked to statutory duties that the 
service must continue to deliver.  Additional funding streams may be included 
over the three year period, where Government Departments wish to make extra 
money available to authorities to address new policy concerns. 

5. REVIEW PROCESS 

5.1 The review process was conducted over a period of six weeks starting in the 
week of 21 July 2008.  A review team drawn from across the council, including 
Partnerships, Policy and Performance, the Voluntary Sector Team and 
Supporting People, was setup to undertake this review.  All projects funded 
under the Area Based Grant were required to participate in the review as a 
condition of their funding agreement.

5.2 The review took the opportunity to test the ABG review process against the new 
Compact Assessment Framework.  The voluntary sector was invited to provide 
independent scrutiny to the process.

5.3 Checks were built into the review process at different stages to ensure fairness 
and consistency of assessment and to give project managers the opportunity to 
clarify or provide further information where needed.  

Page 51



ABG Review v0.5 HSP  4

5.4 The key stages in the process were: 

 A letter sent out to all project managers, setting out the review requirements and 
providing the review form template to be returned within 2 weeks.

 A second letter sent out the following week, confirming the review process and 
the assessment criteria.  This was followed up with a phone call, to check receipt 
and understanding of the requirements. 

 Projects assessed by a member of the review team.  Potential conflicts of 
interests were considered and mitigated when assigning reviewers.   

 Projects assessed by a second reviewer, prior to the initial assessment being 
collectively agreed by the team. 

 Project managers given the opportunity to provide clarification or additional 
information, where required.  This was predominantly done through review 
meetings, but where small clarifications were required a phone call was deemed 
sufficient.

 The final assessment, as set out in this report, was collectively agreed by the 
review team.

5.5 During the review process it became necessary to modify the use of traffic lights 
to enable a more accurate assessment.  Where delivery of outputs was unclear, 
an AMBER traffic light was applied.  The review team found that actual 
expenditure at activity level was not always available on SAP.  It was therefore 
felt to be more appropriate to use spend reported on the review form.  If 
variances were no more than £1,000 a GREEN status was applied. 

6. THE REVIEW FINDINGS 

General comments 

6.1 The review highlighted the wide-ranging, partnership working that contributes to 
the delivery of improved outcomes for Haringey’s residents.   

6.2 The majority of the review forms were completed within tight timescales and 
project managers were available to provide additional information where 
required.

6.3 144 projects were assessed against agreed criteria.  Of these, 116 (81%) 
received a GREEN overall status, 22 (15%) were assessed as AMBER and 6 
(4% as RED).

6.4 Whilst 121 (84%) of projects received a GREEN assessment for progress against 
their objectives / outcomes / outputs, a significant number of the projects did not 
have profiled, measurable outputs.  Many of the review forms were weak in 
detailing achievement against stated outputs.   

Page 52



ABG Review v0.5 HSP  5

6.5 A number of projects were in place before the introduction of the new National 
Indicators and the new LAA.  As a result the link between activity and LAA 
outcome targets is not explicitly made.  This was recognised when the allocations 
to the Thematic Boards were agreed, with 2008/09 being a transitional year.

6.6 The team found that knowledge of the project was not embedded, which meant 
that there were difficulties in accessing information if project managers were not 
available.  In some cases there were discrepancies between named and actual 
project managers. 

6.7 The size of projects varied from £1,200 to £2.3m.  A number of the projects 
contribute to the same objectives and are managed by the same teams.  
Consideration should be given to combining these projects in a meaningful way 
to ensure clarity against delivery, improved value for money and reduction in 
duplication.  For example, projects BP14 and BP-15 (Vulnerable Communities 
Programme and Working with Education & Voluntary Sectors) could be 
combined.

6.8 The review highlighted the need for a change in culture to one where the added 
value delivered through the ABG funded activity is clearly evidenced and 
reported.  This will enable all partners to have the confidence that each project 
contributes to the agreed outcomes. 

.
Findings by thematic board 

6.9 Below is a summary of the assessment by thematic board.  Appendix 1 provides 
the detailed assessment for each project.

Thematic Board Amount 
(£m) * 

No of 
projects

GREEN AMBER RED 

Safer Communities 2.066 19 15 4

Better Places 1.944 17 15 2  

Integrated Housing 0.200 2 2   

Enterprise 1.200 3 2 1  

Children & Young 
People

9.894 44 37 6 1 

Wellbeing 5.143 49 37 9 4 

Neighbourhoods & 
Capacity 

1.793 9 8  1 

Total 22.240 144 116 22 6 
* This amount excludes carry forwards, which are shown in Appendix 1. 

Page 53



ABG Review v0.5 HSP  6

Projects that have been assessed as RED overall are: 

Children & Young People Thematic Board 

CY-11 4YP and Family Planning Nurse (£64,250)

The aim of this project is to fund a specialist nurse to provide additional clinical 
support to a service specifically for young people at the sexual health clinic at St. 
Anne’s Hospital. 

This project has been assessed as RED overall due to the difficulties in recruiting a 
specialist nurse for a short-term and therefore the project is delayed. 

Wellbeing Thematic Board 

WB-26 Appropriate Adult Training for B-Tech Award (£15,000)

The aim of this project is to provide training for people aged 18 and over to make 
welfare representations for juveniles and vulnerable adults detained in police 
custody.

This project has been assessed as RED overall as the achieved outputs are not 
meeting the targets, whilst profiled budget is on spend. 

WB-27 Approved Social Work Services (Canning Crescent) (£80,800)
WB-29 Social Workers (North Tottenham) (£50,000)
WB-30 Social Workers Running Costs (£34,200)

The purpose of these three projects is to fund social worker posts and to contribute 
towards running costs. 

All three projects have been assessed as RED overall as limited information has 
been provided on achievement against objectives.  This has been agreed with the 
project manager.  Further information has been provided, but this has not altered the 
RAG assessment. 

Neighbourhoods & Capacity Thematic Board 

NC-09 Voluntary Sector Development (HAVCO) (£35,000)

The purpose of this project is to provide support and training to 30 third sector 
organisations.  The funding will go towards employing a training and skills 
development officer. 

This project has been assessed as RED overall.  This has been agreed with the 
project manager.  No achievement was made against the stated 
objectives/outcomes/outputs.  Full spend against profile has been paid out to 
HAVCO, but only £1,495 has been spent against overheads. 

Page 54



ABG Review v0.5 HSP  7

7. COMPACT ASSESSMENT 

7.1 The ABG review has been the first to pilot the draft Compact proofing toolkit.  
The aim was to measure the review against the principles contained within the 
Compact.  This compact assessment supports accountability and transparency of 
this review.

7.2 The Compact proofing of the ABG review process identified key strengths, 
including fairness, transparency and consistency of the assessment process and 
regular communication with partners through the HSP and Thematic Boards. 
 The key areas to address are feedback and communicating success which will 
be strengthened in the next ABG review.

7.3 The Compact assessment carried out as part of the ABG Review will be 
scrutinized by Compact Voice to assess the overall effectiveness of the Compact 
proofing toolkit.

8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

8.1 The Area Based Grant (ABG): General Guidance 2008 provides guidance to 
local authorities on the new Area Based Grant, what it is, its relationship to LAA 
grant, how it will be paid and  accounting and reporting requirements.  

8.2 In Haringey, all ABG is allocated to directorate budgets and is included within 
individual cash limited budgets and expenditure will be contained within those 
cash limits. 

Accounting and Reporting Requirements 

8.3 As ABG is a non-ring fenced general grant, the council will not be required to 
provide any additional information to auditors other than that provided in our 
statutory accounts.

8.4 Financial control will be exercised through normal council procedures for budget 
management and ABG will be treated as a non specific grant supporting general 
expenditure. Individual ABG projects will not, therefore, be recorded and 
monitored through the council’s statutory accounts. Utilisation of ABG will be 
monitored generally through outputs, outcomes and spend.

How the HSP should be monitoring spend 

8.5 The performance framework agreed by the HSP allows for quarterly monitoring 
and reporting of performance, activity and spend.  Embedding the framework, as 
well as introducing project management principles, will provide the mechanism 
for monitoring expenditure against grant allocation.   

Carry forward 

8.6 Given ABG is a non-ring fenced grant, unlike the previous funding streams such 
the NRF where carry forwards had to be agreed by Government Office, the 
Council will agree carry forwards at year-end. Therefore, under spend requests 

Page 55



ABG Review v0.5 HSP  8

relating to ABG will be considered by the Cabinet under the Council’s normal 
year-end carry forward procedures along with all other revenue and capital 
balances. 

For more information contact:

Name: Eve Pelekanos 

Title:    Head of Policy & Performance 

Tel: 020 8489 2508 

Name: Christel Kirk 

Title:    Project & Programme Manager 

Tel: 020 8489 3373 

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 – Detailed findings of the ABG review 
Appendix 2 – Linking ABG activity allocation to Business Planning 

Page 56



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 -
 D

e
ta

il
e

d
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 o

f 
th

e
 A

B
G

 r
e

v
ie

w

P
N

r
P

ro
je

c
t

P
ro

je
c

t 
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

S
e

c
to

r
F

u
n

d
in

g

S
tr

e
a

m

2
0

0
8

 /
 0

9
 

A
B

G

A
ll

o
c

a
ti

o
n

P
ro

fi
le

d

S
p

e
n

d

 R
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 

S
p

e
n

d

 Y
T

D
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

Spend Profile Returned

Overall RAG Status

Progress

Spend

C
o

m
m

e
n

t

S
a

fe
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 T

h
e

m
a

ti
c

 B
o

a
rd

S
C

-

0
1

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 C

C
T

V
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 S
a

fe
ty

 a
n

d
 T

ra
ff

ic
 E

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

C
C

T
V

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

P
ro

v
id

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

A
s
s
is

ti
n

g
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 i
n

 d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 C
C

T
V

 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

P
ro

v
id

e
  

a
d

v
ic

e
 o

n
 p

u
b

lic
 a

re
a

 

C
C

T
V

 s
u

rv
e

ill
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
m

o
te

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 

o
f 

tr
a

ff
ic

 a
n

d
 p

a
rk

in
g

.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
2

5
,0

0
0

6
,2

5
0

  
  

  
  

  
6

,0
0

0
 

(2
5

0
)

A
A

G

C
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
h

in
d

 s
c
h

e
d

u
le

; 
re

c
o

v
e

ry
 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

d
. 

 T
h

e
re

 i
s
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
 w

it
h

 r
e

g
a

rd
s
 

to
 i
n

s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
fu

n
d

in
g

, 
w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

 t
e

a
m

 i
s
 

a
tt

e
m

p
ti
n

g
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
.

S
C

-

0
2

P
o

s
it
iv

e
 F

u
tu

re
s

D
iv

e
rs

io
n

 o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 1
1

-1
9

 a
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
, 

c
ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 a
n

ti
 s

o
c
ia

l 

b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r,

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 v
a

ri
o

u
s
 s

p
o

rt
in

g
, 

a
rt

 a
n

d
 

p
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

Y
P

S
M

G
5

,0
0

0
1

,2
5

0
  

  
  

  
  

1
,2

5
0

 
0

R
E

V
IE

W
E

D
 A

S
 P

A
R

T
 O

F
 P

O
S

IT
IV

E
 

F
U

T
U

R
E

S
 I

N
 C

Y
P

S

S
C

-

0
3

T
ie

r 
4

 s
p

o
t 

p
u

rc
h

a
s
in

g
F

u
n

d
in

g
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e

 c
o

s
t 

o
f 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

h
ig

h
 c

o
s
t 

T
ie

r 
4

 p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 a

n
d

 f
a

m
ili

e
s
 w

it
h

 s
e

v
e

re
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
c
e

 

m
is

u
s
e

 p
ro

b
le

m
s
. 

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

Y
P

S
M

G
1

2
,9

9
4

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 -

 
0

G
G

G

S
C

-

0
4

A
S

B
 G

ra
n

t
O

ff
ic

e
r 

is
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

c
o

-o
rd

in
a

ti
n

g
 a

ll 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 w
o

rk
 t

o
 p

re
v
e

n
t,

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 a
n

d
 d

e
a

l 

w
it
h

 A
S

B
 a

n
d

 H
a

te
 C

ri
m

e

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

S
S

C
F

2
0

,0
0

0
6

,4
0

8
  

  
  

  
  

6
,4

0
8

 
0

G
G

G

S
C

-

0
5

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 B
o

a
rd

s
 A

n
n

u
a

l 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 P

la
n

s

A
lig

n
e

d
 w

it
h

 P
o

lic
e

 B
a

s
ic

 C
o

m
m

a
n

d
 U

n
it
 

fu
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 a
n

 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
 p

la
n

 t
h

a
t 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

s
 t

h
e

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 i
n

 

S
a

fe
r 

fo
r 

A
ll 

2
0

0
8

-2
0

1
1

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
2

4
1

,3
0

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 -
 

0

G
G

G

S
C

-

0
6

S
a

fe
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 P

ro
v
is

io
n

D
e

liv
e

rs
 t

h
e

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
 

w
o

rk
 i
n

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
. 

F
u

n
d

s
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
 o

f 
c
ri
m

e
 

p
o

lic
y
, 

a
n

a
ly

s
is

, 
re

s
e

a
rc

h
, 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
, 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 k

e
y
 p

o
s
ts

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 Y
O

S
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
4

6
4

,3
0

0
5

4
,7

8
5

  
  

  
  

5
4

,7
8

5
 

0

G
G

G

S
C

-

0
7

S
e

n
io

r 
P

ra
c
ti
ti
o

n
e

r 
s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

 

m
is

u
s
e

S
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

 m
is

u
s
e

 a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 

re
la

te
d

 s
ta

ff
. 

In
c
lu

d
e

s
 c

o
-w

o
rk

in
g

 o
n

 

c
o

m
p

le
x
 c

h
ild

c
a

re
 c

a
s
e

s
 w

h
e

re
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
c
e

 

m
is

u
s
e

 i
s
 a

 k
e

y
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

Y
P

S
M

G
4

7
,6

1
3

1
1

,9
0

3
  

  
  

  
1

5
,0

0
0

 
3

,0
9

7

A
A

G

U
n

c
le

a
r 

a
n

d
 u

n
q

u
a

n
ti
fi
a

b
le

 o
u

tp
u

ts
. 

  
S

p
e

n
t 

m
o

re
 t

h
a

t 
2

5
%

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

w
it
h

 n
o

 s
p

e
n

d
 p

ro
fi
le

. 

S
p

e
n

d
 p

ro
fi
le

 r
e

m
a

in
s
 o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
. 

 N
o

te
d

 

th
a

t 
a

g
e

n
c
y
 c

o
s
t 

is
 a

b
o

v
e

 A
B

G
 g

ra
n

t 

a
llo

w
a

n
c
e

; 
h

a
v
e

 c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 

w
ill

 b
e

 m
e

t 
b

y
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 u

n
it
 b

u
d

g
e

t.

S
C

-

0
8

A
d

d
re

s
s
in

g
 &

 R
e

d
u

c
in

g
 

D
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 V

io
le

n
c
e

F
o

c
u

s
e

d
 o

n
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 

g
e

n
d

e
r 

a
b

u
s
e

 i
n

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 i
n

it
ia

ti
n

g
 

a
c
ti
o

n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 t

a
rg

e
t 

p
e

rp
e

tr
a

to
rs

, 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 

p
u

b
lic

 i
n

to
le

ra
n

c
e

 o
f 

D
V

 a
n

d
 p

re
v
e

n
t 

D
V

 

h
a

p
p

e
n

in
g

.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
8

2
,4

0
0

1
8

,4
5

9
  

  
  

  
1

5
,8

9
5

 
(2

,5
6

4
)

G
G

G

M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

%
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
t;

 r
e

c
o

v
e

ry
 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

d
.

S
C

-

0
9

V
ic

ti
m

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 c
o

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 e

m
o

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
a

l 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 

a
ll 

v
ic

ti
m

s
 o

f 
c
ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 b
e

re
a

v
e

m
e

n
t 

b
y
 

h
o

m
ic

id
e

.

V
o

l 
&

 

C
o

m
m

W
N

F
5

3
,0

0
0

1
3

,2
5

0
  

  
  

  
1

3
,0

0
0

 
(2

5
0

)

G
G

G

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 a

m
a

lg
a

m
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 V
ic

ti
m

 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 B
M

E
 p

ro
je

c
t 

in
 C

Y
P

S
 C

Y
-1

2
.

1
 o

f 
1
3

Page 57



P
N

r
P

ro
je

c
t

P
ro

je
c

t 
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

S
e

c
to

r
F

u
n

d
in

g

S
tr

e
a

m

2
0

0
8

 /
 0

9
 

A
B

G

A
ll

o
c

a
ti

o
n

P
ro

fi
le

d

S
p

e
n

d

 R
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 

S
p

e
n

d

 Y
T

D
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

Spend Profile Returned

Overall RAG Status

Progress

Spend

C
o

m
m

e
n

t

S
C

-

1
0

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 P

o
lic

e
 P

ro
v
is

io
n

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 a
im

 t
o

 r
e

p
lic

a
te

 t
h

e
 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

e
s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

p
e

rs
o

n
a

l 

ro
b

b
e

ry
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

o
ff

e
n

c
e

s
 u

n
d

e
r 

N
I 

s
 1

5
 &

 1
6

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
3

1
5

,0
0

0
7

6
,7

4
6

  
  

  
  

6
8

,6
8

4
 

(8
,0

6
2

)

G
G

R

M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

%
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
t.

S
C

-

1
1

Y
o

u
th

 O
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 -
 

A
s
y
lu

m
 W

o
rk

e
r

F
u

n
d

s
 c

a
s
e

w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 a
s
y
lu

m
 s

e
e

k
e

rs
 /

 

re
fu

g
e

e
s
 a

n
d

 f
o

re
ig

n
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

ls
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

 

re
s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 a

n
d

 e
th

n
ic

a
lly

 s
e

n
s
it
iv

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

.

V
o

l 
&

 

C
o

m
m

W
N

F
4

1
,5

0
0

1
0

,3
7

4
  

  
  

  
1

2
,2

5
3

 
1

,8
7

9

G
G

G

U
p

 t
o

 5
%

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

t;
 r

e
c
o

v
e

ry
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

d
.

C
a

s
e

 l
o

a
d

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

d
 b

y
 c

o
u

rt
s
. 

S
C

-

1
2

D
A

A
T

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 

G
ra

n
t

C
o

-o
rd

in
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
d

ru
g

 a
n

d
 a

lc
o

h
o

l 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
tr

e
a

tm
e

n
t 

p
la

n
. 

In
c
lu

d
e

s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
, 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t,

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t,
 c

o
-

o
rd

in
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 a
ll 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 /

  
a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ti
e

s
 w

o
rk

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

S
S

C
F

8
7

,0
0

0
2

1
,7

5
0

  
  

  
  

2
1

,7
5

0
 

0

G
G

G

S
C

-

1
3

A
S

B
A

T
R

e
s
p

o
n

d
s
 t

o
 c

a
s
e

s
 o

f 
A

S
B

 i
n

 p
ri
v
a

te
 a

n
d

 

p
u

b
lic

 s
e

c
to

r 
a

n
d

 t
o

 p
ro

te
c
t 

th
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

 a
ff

e
c
ts

 o
f 

A
S

B
. 

D
e

liv
e

rs
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

A
S

B
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 v

a
ri
o

u
s
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 

A
S

B
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

S
S

C
F

2
2

9
,5

0
0

5
7

,3
7

5
  

  
  

  
5

6
,1

9
0

 
(1

,1
8

5
)

G
G

G

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 a

m
a

lg
a

m
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 A
S

B
A

T
 

In
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 (

S
C

-1
4

).
 

S
C

-

1
4

A
S

B
A

T
 I

n
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
S

u
p

p
o

rt
s
 a

 s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

C
C

T
V

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
5

5
,0

0
0

8
,6

9
2

  
  

  
  

  
8

,6
9

6
 

4
G

G
G

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 a

m
a

lg
a

m
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 A
S

B
A

T
 

(S
C

-1
3

).

S
C

-

1
5

C
o

s
m

ic
S

p
e

c
ia

lis
t 

s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

 m
is

u
s
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 

a
d

v
ic

e
 t

o
 p

a
re

n
ts

 a
n

d
 c

a
re

rs
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 w

it
h

 

a
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
c
e

 m
is

u
s
e

 p
ro

b
le

m
, 

w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 o
r 

a
re

 v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 a
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
c
e

 

m
is

u
s
e

 p
ro

b
le

m
 o

r 
w

h
o

 a
re

 a
ff

e
c
te

d
 b

y
 

s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

 m
is

u
s
e

.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

Y
P

S
M

G
4

3
,5

8
8

0
  

  
  

  
2

7
,9

9
9

 
2

7
,9

9
9

A
G

R

M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

%
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

t.

S
C

-

1
6

Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
rs

o
n

s
 S

u
b

s
ta

n
c
e

 

M
is

u
s
e

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a

to
r

P
o

s
t 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 w
ill

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
-

o
rd

in
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

 m
is

u
s
e

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

Y
P

S
M

G
4

4
,5

4
7

1
1

,1
3

7
  

  
  

  
2

5
,6

7
3

 
1

4
,5

3
6

A
G

R

R
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 5
0

%
 o

f 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
s
p

e
n

t 
in

 

fi
rs

t 
fo

u
r 

m
o

n
th

s
.

S
C

-

1
7

S
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

 M
is

u
s
e

 W
o

rk
e

r 
- 

L
A

C

A
 s

e
n

io
r 

p
ra

c
ti
ti
o

n
e

r 
(q

u
a

lif
ie

d
 s

o
c
ia

l 

w
o

rk
e

r)
 b

a
s
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 L
C

A
S

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

in
p

u
t 

to
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 a
n

d
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

Y
P

S
M

G
4

5
,3

4
0

1
1

,3
3

5
  

  
  

  
1

1
,2

2
0

 
(1

1
5

)

G
G

G

S
C

-

1
8

P
re

v
e

n
ti
n

g
 V

io
le

n
t 

E
x
tr

e
m

is
m

 

F
u

n
d

P
ro

m
o

te
 v

a
lu

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 M

u
s
lim

 f
a

it
h

, 

c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 e

x
tr

e
m

is
t 

id
e

o
lo

g
y
 a

n
d

 c
re

a
te

 a
 

w
id

e
r 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 o
f 

Is
la

m
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

.

4
0

%
 P

u
b

lic
, 

6
0

%
 V

o
l 
&

 

C
o

m
m

P
V

E
F

1
7

9
,0

0
0

2
1

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
1

0
,0

0
0

 
(1

1
,0

0
0

)

G
G

A

M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

%
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
t;

 r
e

c
o

v
e

ry
 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

d
. 

 D
e

la
y
e

d
 s

p
e

n
d

 a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 

th
e

 l
a

te
 n

o
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
fu

n
d

in
g

.

S
C

-

1
9

A
n

ti
 B

u
rg

la
ry

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 P
ro

je
c
t 

(R
e

d
u

c
e

 A
c
q

u
is

it
iv

e
 C

ri
m

e
)

T
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
a

l 
a

s
s
is

ta
n

c
e

 

to
 e

ld
e

rl
y
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 v

ic
ti
m

 o
f 

b
u

rg
la

ry
 o

r 
b

u
rg

la
ry

 a
rt

if
ic

e
.

V
o

l 
&

 

C
o

m
m

W
N

F
4

0
,0

0
0

1
0

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
1

0
,6

1
4

 
6

1
4

G
G

G

S
C

-

2
0

V
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

rs
o

n
s
 

W
o

rk
e

r

W
o

rk
 w

it
h

 v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

 m
is

u
s
e

 t
o

 

p
re

v
e

n
t 

N
E

E
T

s
 a

n
d

 s
ig

n
p

o
s
t 

to
 t

re
a

tm
e

n
ts

 

w
h

e
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
. 

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

Y
P

S
M

G
3

5
,0

0
0

8
,7

5
0

  
  

  
  

  
8

,7
5

0
 

0

G
G

G

S
a

fe
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 T

o
ta

l
2

,0
6

7
,0

8
2

3
4

9
,4

6
4

  
  

  
3

7
4

,1
6

7
 

2
4

,7
0

3

2
 o

f 
1
3

Page 58



P
N

r
P

ro
je

c
t

P
ro

je
c

t 
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

S
e

c
to

r
F

u
n

d
in

g

S
tr

e
a

m

2
0

0
8

 /
 0

9
 

A
B

G

A
ll

o
c

a
ti

o
n

P
ro

fi
le

d

S
p

e
n

d

 R
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 

S
p

e
n

d

 Y
T

D
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

Spend Profile Returned

Overall RAG Status

Progress

Spend

C
o

m
m

e
n

t

B
e

tt
e

r 
P

la
c

e
s

 T
h

e
m

a
ti

c
 B

o
a

rd

B
P

-

0
1

A
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
o

ld
e

r 
a

n
d

 d
is

a
b

le
d

 

p
e

o
p

le
. 

P
ro

je
c
t 

in
c
lu

d
e

s
 t

ra
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 

v
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a

l 
p

e
o

p
le

.

V
o

l 
&

 

C
o

m
m

W
N

F
8

0
,0

0
0

1
9

,9
8

6
  

  
  

  
1

9
,9

8
6

 
0

G
G

G

B
P

-

0
2

S
tr

e
e

t 
W

a
rd

e
n

s
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e

 S
tr

e
e

t 
W

a
rd

e
n

s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

.
P

u
b

lic
 

S
e

c
to

r

S
S

C
F

1
3

9
,0

0
0

3
4

,7
4

9
  

  
  

  
3

4
,7

4
9

 
0

G
G

G

B
P

-

0
3

F
in

s
b

u
ry

 P
a

rk
 E

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

rs

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 

c
o

v
e

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 t
r-

b
o

ro
u

g
h

 a
re

a
 o

f 
F

in
s
b

u
ry

 

P
a

rk
.

V
o

l 
&

 

C
o

m
m

W
N

F
3

0
,0

0
0

7
,5

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
7

,5
0

0
 

0

G
G

G

B
P

-

0
4

G
re

e
n

 O
u

tr
e

a
c
h

 
C

o
o

rd
in

a
te

d
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
f 

n
a

tu
re

 

c
o

n
s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
, 

re
c
re

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

v
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

, 

in
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 B

T
C

V

V
o

l 
&

 

C
o

m
m

W
N

F
1

0
0

,0
0

0
2

0
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

2
0

,0
0

0
 

0

G
G

G

B
P

-

0
5

P
a

rk
s
 C

le
a

n
s
in

g
 

E
n

h
a

n
c
e

d
 P

a
rk

s
 a

n
d

 O
p

e
n

 S
p

a
c
e

s
 c

le
a

n
in

g
 

a
n

d
 h

y
g

ie
n

e
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
s
 d

u
ri
n

g
 s

u
m

m
e

r 

m
o

n
th

s

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
1

5
0

,0
0

0
4

8
,5

0
0

  
  

  
  

4
8

,5
0

0
 

0

G
G

G

B
P

-

0
6

T
o

tt
e

n
h

a
m

 H
ig

h
 R

o
a

d
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r

H
ig

h
 R

o
a

d
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
th

ro
u

g
h

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 b

ro
k
e

ra
g

e
 w

it
h

 k
e

y
 a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
6

0
,0

0
0

1
4

,4
0

2
  

  
  

  
1

4
,4

0
2

 
0

A
A

G

A
g

re
e

d
 w

it
h

 p
ro

je
c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

r 
th

a
t 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

ta
rg

e
ts

  
/ 

 o
u

tp
u

ts
 n

e
e

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

c
la

ri
fi
e

d
.

B
P

-

0
7

F
ly

 T
ip

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

C
le

a
ra

n
c
e

 o
f 

fl
y
-t

ip
s
 o

n
 u

n
re

g
is

te
re

d
 l
a

n
d

 i
n

 

th
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

. 
A

ls
o

, 
p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 c
o

-o
ri
g

in
a

te
d

 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 f
o

r 
a

ll 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
1

5
0

,0
0

0
1

6
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
4

,9
1

4
 

(1
1

,0
8

6
)

A
A

R

M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

%
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
t;

 o
u

tp
u

ts
 p

a
rt

ia
lly

 

m
e

t.

B
P

-

0
8

G
ra

ff
it
i 
&

 F
ly

-P
o

s
ti
n

g
 R

e
m

o
v
a

l 
P

ro
v
id

e
 a

 g
ra

ff
it
i 
re

m
o

v
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

o
 

p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

ly
 r

e
m

o
v
e

 g
ra

ff
it
i 
in

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 

c
a

lls
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 f

ro
m

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
7

5
,0

0
0

2
4

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

8
,1

4
8

 
(1

5
,8

5
2

)

G
G

G

M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

%
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
t 

d
u

e
 t

o
 l
a

te
 

re
c
e

ip
t 

o
f 

in
v
o

ic
e

s
.

B
P

-

0
9

L
it
te

r 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

lit
te

r 
b

in
s
, 

c
ig

a
re

tt
e

 b
u

tt
 b

in
s
 

a
n

d
 d

o
g

 w
a

s
te

 b
in

s
. 

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
1

3
5

,0
0

0
3

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

8
,0

1
1

 
5

,0
1

1
G

G
G

M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

%
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

t;
 r

e
c
o

v
e

ry
 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

d
.

B
P

-

1
0

M
o

b
ile

 C
le

a
n

-U
p

 T
e

a
m

s
 &

 

S
tr

e
e

t 
C

le
a

n
in

g

P
ro

v
id

e
 m

o
b

ile
 c

le
a

n
 u

p
 t

e
a

m
s
 t

o
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

c
o

n
c
e

n
tr

a
te

d
 c

le
a

n
 u

p
 o

f 
lit

te
r 

a
n

d
 d

e
tr

it
u

s
 

th
a

t 
n

o
rm

a
l 
s
w

e
e

p
in

g
 c

a
n

n
o

t 
a

d
d

re
s
s
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
2

0
0

,0
0

0
5

1
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

3
0

,0
4

0
 

(2
0

,9
6

0
)

G
G

R

M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

%
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
t.

B
P

-

1
1

S
a

tu
rd

a
y
 N

ig
h

t 
C

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 

T
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 2

 v
e

h
ic

le
s
 t

o
 c

le
a

r 
w

a
s
te

 f
ro

m
 

th
e

 m
a

in
 r

o
a

d
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 o

n
 S

a
tu

rd
a

y
 

n
ig

h
ts

.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
7

0
,0

0
0

1
8

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
1

2
,0

8
6

 
(5

,9
1

4
)

G
G

G

M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

%
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
t;

 r
e

c
o

v
e

ry
 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

d
. 

 L
a

te
 s

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 o

f 
in

v
o

ic
e

s
.

B
P

-

1
2

S
tr

e
e

t 
W

a
s
h

in
g

 
P

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
 l
im

it
e

d
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
f 

p
ro

-

a
c
ti
v
e

 p
a

v
e

m
e

n
t 

w
a

s
h

in
g

 a
n

d
 r

e
a

c
ti
v
e

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

o
 d

e
a

l 
w

it
h

 s
p

ill
a

g
e

s
. 

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
3

8
,5

0
0

9
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
6

,2
6

6
 

(2
,7

3
4

)

G
G

R

M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

%
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
t.

B
P

-

1
3

S
tr

e
e

t 
E

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

S
a

la
ry

 c
o

s
ts

 o
f 

6
 S

tr
e

e
t 

E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 t

o
 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
te

 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
 o

f 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
c
ri
m

e

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
2

5
0

,0
0

0
6

2
,5

0
0

  
  

  
  

6
2

,5
0

0
 

0

G
G

G

B
P

-

1
4

V
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

A
s
 a

b
o

v
e

.
P

u
b

lic
 

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
5

0
,0

0
0

1
1

,5
5

0
  

  
  

  
2

0
,9

8
6

 
9

,4
3

6

G
G

G

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 a

m
a

lg
a

m
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 B
P

-1
5

.

M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

%
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

t;
 r

e
c
o

v
e

ry
 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

d
. 

 E
a

rl
y
 s

p
e

n
d

 c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

ts
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

3
 o

f 
1
3

Page 59



P
N

r
P

ro
je

c
t

P
ro

je
c

t 
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

S
e

c
to

r
F

u
n

d
in

g

S
tr

e
a

m

2
0

0
8

 /
 0

9
 

A
B

G

A
ll

o
c

a
ti

o
n

P
ro

fi
le

d

S
p

e
n

d

 R
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 

S
p

e
n

d

 Y
T

D
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

Spend Profile Returned

Overall RAG Status

Progress

Spend

C
o

m
m

e
n

t

B
P

-

1
5

W
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 &

 

V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 S
e

c
to

rs
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 

fi
tn

e
s
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 /

 s
p

o
rt

s
 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 a

m
o

n
g

 y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le

C
o

o
rd

in
a

te
d

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
s
p

o
rt

s
 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
, 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 c

e
le

b
ra

to
ry

 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n

 c
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
e

c
to

r.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
1

0
0

,0
0

0
3

5
,4

7
6

  
  

  
  

3
5

,4
7

6
 

0

G
G

G

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 a

m
a

lg
a

m
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 B
P

-1
4

.

B
P

-

1
6

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 C

le
a

r-
U

p
s
 

A
ll 

e
lig

ib
le

 h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s
 i
n

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 a

re
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 w
it
h

 a
 f

re
e

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
u

p
 t

o
 1

5
 

b
u

lk
y
 i
te

m
s
 o

n
c
e

 p
e

r 
y
e

a
r.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
8

0
,0

0
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 -

 
0

G
G

G

B
P

-

1
7

R
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 P

ro
je

c
ts

P
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
 o

f 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 w
a

s
te

 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
2

1
5

,0
0

0
5

3
,7

4
7

  
  

  
  

4
3

,8
2

8
 

(9
,9

1
9

)

G
G

R

M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

%
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
t.

 L
a

c
k
 o

f 
c
la

ri
ty

 

a
ro

u
n

d
 s

p
e

n
d

 b
re

a
k
d

o
w

n
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

p
ro

fi
le

.

B
e

tt
e

r 
H

a
ri

n
g

e
y

 T
o

ta
l

1
,9

2
2

,5
0

0
4

2
9

,4
1

0
  

  
  

3
7

7
,3

9
2

 
(5

2
,0

1
8

)

In
te

g
ra

te
d

 H
o

u
s

in
g

 T
h

e
m

a
ti

c
 B

o
a

rd
0

IH
-

0
1

T
a

c
k
lin

g
 F

u
e

l 
P

o
v
e

rt
y
 

R
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 i
n

c
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

fu
e

l 
p

o
v
e

rt
y
 i
n

 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
, 

th
e

re
b

y
 e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
e

v
e

ry
 

re
s
id

e
n

t 
liv

e
s
 i
n

 a
 w

a
rm

, 
c
o

m
fo

rt
a

b
le

 h
o

m
e

 

w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e
y
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o

 a
ff

o
rd

 t
o

 h
e

a
t.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
5

1
,0

0
0

9
,5

1
9

  
  

  
  

  
9

,9
0

0
 

3
8

1

G
G

G

IH
-

0
2

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

&
 R

e
p

a
ir
s
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 -

 H
M

O
s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

H
M

O
 

L
ic

e
n

s
in

g
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 T

h
e

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 A

c
t 

2
0

0
4

.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
1

7
1

,0
0

0
4

2
,7

5
0

  
  

  
  

4
2

,7
5

0
 

0

G
G

G

In
te

g
ra

te
d

 H
o

u
s

in
g

 T
o

ta
l

2
2

2
,0

0
0

5
2

,2
6

9
  

  
  

  
5

2
,6

5
0

 
3

8
1

E
n

te
rp

ri
s

e
 T

h
e

m
a

ti
c

 B
o

a
rd

0

E
N

-

0
1

C
it
y
 G

ro
w

th
 &

 E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 t

h
a

t 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 t

h
a

t 

e
q

u
ip

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

k
ill

s
, 

k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 b

e
c
o

m
e

 

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

lly
 s

e
lf
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

d
.

7
0

%
 P

u
b

lic
, 

3
0

%
 V

o
l.
 

W
N

F
2

5
0

,0
0

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 -
 

0

G
G

G

E
N

-

0
2

 T
h

e
 H

a
ri
n

g
e

y
 G

u
a

ra
n

te
e

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 e

n
g

a
g

e
 

w
o

rk
le

s
s
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 1

2
 “

w
o

rs
t 

w
a

rd
s
” 

in
 H

a
ri
n

g
e

y
 b

y
 a

s
s
e

s
s
in

g
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 t
o

 

s
u

s
ta

in
e

d
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 a
g

re
e

in
g

 a
n

 

a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 o
f 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 r
e

tu
rn

 t
o

 w
o

rk
.

7
0

%
 P

u
b

lic
, 

3
0

%
 V

o
l.
 

W
N

F
6

3
1

,0
0

0
1

9
0

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
8

9
,0

9
3

 
(1

0
0

,9
0

7
)

A
A

R

A
g

re
e

d
 w

it
h

 p
ro

je
c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

r 
th

a
t 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

ta
rg

e
ts

  
/ 

 o
u

tp
u

ts
 n

e
e

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

c
la

ri
fi
e

d
. 

 M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

%
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
t;

 l
a

c
k
 o

f 

c
la

ri
ty

 a
ro

u
n

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 s
p

e
n

d
.

E
N

-

0
3

F
a

m
ili

e
s
 i
n

to
 W

o
rk

A
 m

u
lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 i
n

 N
o

rt
h

u
m

b
e

rl
a

n
d

 

P
a

rk
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 w

id
e

r 
s
o

c
ia

l 
e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
 

is
s
u

e
s
 b

y
 w

o
rk

in
g

 i
n

te
n

s
iv

e
ly

 w
it
h

 f
a

m
ili

e
s
 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 l
if
e

 c
h

a
n

c
e

s
 o

f 
a

ll 
fa

m
ily

 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
3

1
9

,0
0

0
1

9
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

1
5

,3
9

7
 

(3
,6

0
3

)

G
G

A

P
ro

je
c
te

d
 s

p
e

n
d

 f
o

r 
a

d
v
e

rt
is

in
g

 c
o

s
ts

 a
n

d
 I

T
 

s
o

ft
w

a
re

 w
a

s
 o

v
e

re
s
ti
m

a
te

d
. 

  
It

 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

t 
w

ill
 b

e
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 t
o

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 

w
o

rk
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 s
c
h

e
m

e
.

E
n

te
rp

ri
s

e
 T

o
ta

l
1

,2
0

0
,0

0
0

2
0

9
,0

0
0

  
  

  
1

0
4

,4
9

0
 

(1
0

4
,5

1
0

)

C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
 T

h
e

m
a

ti
c

 B
o

a
rd

C
Y

-

0
1

E
x
p

o
s
u

re
 C

 /
 F

w
d

 f
m

 2
0

0
7

 /
 

0
8

P
A

Y
P

1
8

,4
8

7
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 -
 

0
  

  
 -

 
C

A
R

R
Y

 F
O

R
W

A
R

D
 -

 R
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
ro

je
c
t

C
Y

-

0
2

P
o

s
it
iv

e
 F

u
tu

re
s

D
iv

e
rs

io
n

 o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 1
1

-1
9

 a
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
, 

c
ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 a
n

ti
 s

o
c
ia

l 

b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r,

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 v
a

ri
o

u
s
 s

p
o

rt
in

g
, 

a
rt

 a
n

d
 

p
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
4

0
,5

2
7

9
,9

2
4

  
  

  
  

1
1

,1
7

3
 

1
,2

4
9

G
G

G

M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

%
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

t;
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
s
o

m
e

 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 p

a
id

 i
n

 a
d

v
a

n
c
e

. 
 R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 

a
m

a
lg

a
m

a
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 C
Y

-0
4

, 
C

Y
-0

5
, 

C
Y

-0
6

, 

C
Y

-0
7

 a
n

d
 C

Y
-0

8
.

4
 o

f 
1
3

Page 60



P
N

r
P

ro
je

c
t

P
ro

je
c

t 
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

S
e

c
to

r
F

u
n

d
in

g

S
tr

e
a

m

2
0

0
8

 /
 0

9
 

A
B

G

A
ll

o
c

a
ti

o
n

P
ro

fi
le

d

S
p

e
n

d

 R
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 

S
p

e
n

d

 Y
T

D
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

Spend Profile Returned

Overall RAG Status

Progress

Spend

C
o

m
m

e
n

t

C
Y

-

0
3

P
ri
m

a
ry

 T
e

a
m

 S
a

la
ry

 C
o

s
ts

T
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 L

A
’s

 c
e

n
tr

a
l 
c
o

s
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
s
ta

ff
 l
e

a
d

in
g

 o
n

 t
h

e
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

a
n

d
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 t

h
e

 

a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
v
e

 c
o

s
ts

 o
f 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 t
h

e
 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

P
N

S
C

C
A

1
7

3
,0

0
0

4
3

,2
6

5
  

  
  

  
4

3
,2

6
3

 
(2

)

G
G

G

C
Y

-

0
4

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 C

o
h

e
s
io

n
 -

 Y
o

u
th

 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

D
iv

e
rs

io
n

a
ry

 a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ta

l 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

fo
r 

th
o

s
e

 a
g

e
d

 1
3

-1
9

 a
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
s
o

c
ia

l 

e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

ri
m

e
. 

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

P
A

Y
P

1
1

1
,0

0
0

2
7

,4
9

0
  

  
  

  
2

7
,4

9
0

 
0

G
G

G

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 a

m
a

lg
a

m
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 C
Y

-0
2

, 
C

Y
-

0
5

, 
C

Y
-0

6
, 

C
Y

-0
7

 a
n

d
 C

Y
-0

8
.

C
Y

-

0
5

P
A

Y
P

 -
 H

o
lid

a
y
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

D
iv

e
rs

io
n

a
ry

 a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ta

l 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

fo
r 

th
o

s
e

 a
g

e
d

 8
-1

9
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
s
o

c
ia

l 

e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

ri
m

e
. 

5
0

%
 P

u
b

lic
, 

5
0

%
 V

o
l 
&

 

C
o

m
m

P
A

Y
P

4
6

6
,2

0
0

1
2

3
,6

6
0

  
  

  
1

2
3

,6
6

0
 

0

G
G

G

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 a

m
a

lg
a

m
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 C
Y

-0
2

, 
C

Y
-

0
4

, 
C

Y
-0

6
, 

C
Y

-0
7

 a
n

d
 C

Y
-0

8
.

C
Y

-

0
6

P
o

s
it
iv

e
 F

u
tu

re
s
 -

 

D
iv

e
rs

io
n

a
ry

 S
p

o
rt

in
g

 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie

s

D
iv

e
rs

io
n

 o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 1
1

-1
9

 a
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
, 

c
ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 a
n

ti
 s

o
c
ia

l 

b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r,

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 v
a

ri
o

u
s
 s

p
o

rt
in

g
, 

a
rt

 a
n

d
 

p
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

P
A

Y
P

8
6

,6
6

9
1

6
,9

5
0

  
  

  
  

1
6

,9
5

0
 

0

G
G

G

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 a

m
a

lg
a

m
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 C
Y

-0
2

, 
C

Y
-

0
4

, 
C

Y
-0

5
, 

C
Y

-0
7

 a
n

d
 C

Y
-0

8
. 

C
Y

-

0
7

S
u

m
m

e
r 

U
n

iv
e

rs
it
y

A
 h

ig
h

 q
u

a
lit

y
, 

in
te

g
ra

te
d

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
h

o
lid

a
y
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
h

a
t 

w
ill

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 

lif
e

 c
h

a
n

c
e

s
, 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 s
e

n
s
e

 o
f 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 t
a

c
k
le

 s
o

c
ia

l 
e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

P
A

Y
P

5
5

,5
0

0
2

6
,3

8
1

  
  

  
  

3
2

,2
0

4
 

5
,8

2
3

G
G

G

U
p

 t
o

 5
%

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

t 
a

g
a

in
s
t 

to
ta

l 
P

A
Y

P
 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

(C
Y

-0
2

, 
C

Y
-0

4
, 

C
Y

-0
5

, 
C

Y
-0

5
, 

C
Y

-

0
6

, 
C

Y
-0

7
);

 r
e

c
o

v
e

ry
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

d
.

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 a

m
a

lg
a

m
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 C
Y

-0
2

, 
C

Y
-

0
4

, 
C

Y
-0

5
, 

C
Y

-0
6

 a
n

d
 C

Y
-0

8
.

C
Y

-

0
8

Y
o

u
n

g
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

T
o

 b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 t
o

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 f
o

r 
2

 y
e

a
rs

 

a
c
ro

s
s
 H

a
ri
n

g
e

y
. 

C
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 

s
u

m
m

e
r 

2
0

0
8

, 
it
 w

ill
 d

e
liv

e
r 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

e
n

tr
e

p
re

n
e

u
r 

s
k
ill

s
 t

o
 t

h
o

s
e

 a
g

e
d

 1
1

–
1

9

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

P
A

Y
P

4
5

,3
2

5
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 -
 

0

G
G

G

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 a

m
a

lg
a

m
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 C
Y

-0
2

, 
C

Y
-

0
4

, 
C

Y
-0

5
, 

C
Y

-0
6

 a
n

d
 C

Y
-0

7
.

C
Y

-

0
9

C
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 C
a

re
Im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e

 C
a

re
 M

a
tt

e
rs

 -
 T

im
e

 f
o

r 

C
h

a
n

g
e

 w
h

it
e

 p
a

p
e

r 
2

0
0

7
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

h
ild

re
n

 

a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

rs
o

n
’s

 B
ill

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 f

o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 c
a

re
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

C
M

W
P

2
8

0
,0

0
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 -

 
0

G
G

G

C
Y

-

1
0

S
o

c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 r

e
fo

rm
E

n
a

b
le

s
 H

a
ri
n

g
e

y
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 

le
v
e

ls
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 q

u
a

lif
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

c
h

ild
re

n
’s

 s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 s

ta
ff

.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

C
S

C
W

R
2

8
0

,0
0

0
5

,5
7

4
  

  
  

  
1

2
,5

1
8

 
6

,9
4

4

G
G

R

M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

%
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

t.
  

M
o

s
t 

o
f 

th
e

 s
p

e
n

d
 

w
ill

 t
a

k
e

 p
la

c
e

 i
n

 J
u

ly
 a

n
d

 O
c
to

b
e

r.

C
Y

-

1
1

4
Y

P
 a

n
d

 F
a

m
ily

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 

N
u

rs
e

N
u

rs
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 a
n

 i
n

te
g

ra
l 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 4
Y

P
 

n
e

tw
o

rk
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 a
 h

o
lis

ti
c
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 

c
lin

ic
a

l 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 a
 s

e
rv

ic
e

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
6

4
,2

5
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

3
,1

2
3

 
3

,1
2

3

R
R

R

N
o

 p
ro

je
c
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
, 

n
o

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

re
c
o

v
e

ry
 

d
u

e
 t

o
 i
n

a
b

ili
ty

 t
o

 r
e

c
ru

it
 t

o
 s

h
o

rt
-t

e
rm

 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

p
o

s
t 

in
 s

p
e

c
ia

lis
t 

a
re

a
.

C
Y

-

1
2

Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
rs

o
n

s
 a

n
d

 E
th

n
ic

 

M
in

o
ri
ty

 D
e

v
 P

ro
je

c
t

S
e

rv
ic

e
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 a
d

v
ic

e
 t

o
 

y
o

u
n

g
 a

n
d

 B
M

E
 v

ic
ti
m

s
 o

f 
c
ri
m

e
.

V
o

l 
&

 

C
o

m
m

W
N

F
3

8
,7

5
9

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 -

 
0

A
A

G

F
o

llo
w

in
g

 c
la

ri
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 a
t 

re
v
ie

w
 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
, 

it
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

u
n

c
le

a
r 

w
h

a
t 

o
u

tr
e

a
c
h

 

w
o

rk
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 

s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 B
M

E
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
.

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
 a

m
a

lg
a

m
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 V
ic

ti
m

 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 B
M

E
 S

C
-0

9
.

C
Y

-

1
3

F
re

e
 T

ra
v
e

l
D

e
liv

e
rs

 a
 f

u
n

c
ti
o

n
 l
a

rg
e

ly
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

b
y
 t

h
e

 M
a

y
o

r’
s
 f

re
e

 t
ra

v
e

l 
g

u
a

ra
n

te
e

 t
o

 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
a

g
e

 c
h

ild
re

n
. 

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

E
R

T
F

T
3

,0
0

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 -
 

0

G
G

G

C
Y

-

1
4

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 T
ra

v
e

l
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

in
 c

o
m

p
ly

in
g

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

g
e

n
e

ra
l 
d

u
ty

 o
n

 s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 t
ra

v
e

l.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

S
T

G
D

1
6

,0
0

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 -
 

0
G

G
G

C
Y

-

1
5

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 T
ra

v
e

l 
C

 /
 F

w
d

 f
m

 

2
0

0
7

 /
 0

8

S
T

G
D

1
6

,5
0

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 -
 

0
C

A
R

R
Y

 F
O

R
W

A
R

D
 -

 R
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
ro

je
c
t

5
 o

f 
1
3

Page 61



P
N

r
P

ro
je

c
t

P
ro

je
c

t 
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

S
e

c
to

r
F

u
n

d
in

g

S
tr

e
a

m

2
0

0
8

 /
 0

9
 

A
B

G

A
ll

o
c

a
ti

o
n

P
ro

fi
le

d

S
p

e
n

d

 R
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 

S
p

e
n

d

 Y
T

D
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

Spend Profile Returned

Overall RAG Status

Progress

Spend

C
o

m
m

e
n

t

C
Y

-

1
6

B
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

Im
p

ro
v
e

 b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

a
n

d
 a

tt
e

n
d

a
n

c
e

, 
re

d
u

c
e

 

e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 c

ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 t
o

 

m
e

e
t 

th
e

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 

s
u

it
a

b
le

 e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 e

x
c
lu

d
e

d
 f

ro
m

 s
c
h

o
o

l.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

S
D

G
8

5
2

,2
0

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 -
 

0

G
G

G

C
Y

-

1
7

B
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 C

 /
 F

w
d

 f
m

 2
0

0
7

 /
 

0
8

S
D

G
1

4
0

,8
2

3
1

1
9

,3
5

3
  

  
  

1
1

9
,3

5
3

 
0

C
A

R
R

Y
 F

O
R

W
A

R
D

 -
 R

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
ro

je
c
t

C
Y

-

1
8

E
x
te

n
d

e
d

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
S

u
p

p
o

rt
s
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 f
u

ll 
c
o

re
 

o
ff

e
r 

o
f 

e
x
te

n
d

e
d

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
.

4
5

%
 P

u
b

lic
, 

5
5

%
 V

o
l 
&

 

C
o

m
m

E
X

S
S

U
4

0
2

,0
0

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 -
 

0

G
G

G

C
Y

-

1
9

E
x
te

n
d

e
d

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 C

 /
 F

w
d

 f
m

 

2
0

0
7

 /
 0

8
 

E
X

S
S

U
3

3
2

,9
0

0
4

,0
3

8
  

  
  

  
  

4
,0

3
8

 
0

C
A

R
R

Y
 F

O
R

W
A

R
D

 -
 R

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
ro

je
c
t

C
Y

-

2
0

B
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

&
 A

tt
e

n
d

a
n

c
e

 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

n
t

S
u

p
p

o
rt

s
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

f 

b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

a
n

d
 m

e
e

t 
a

tt
e

n
d

a
n

c
e

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 i
n

 

o
rd

e
r 

to
 r

a
is

e
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 o

f 
a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
a

t 

K
e

y
 S

ta
g

e
 3

 a
n

d
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 4

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 

a
n

n
u

a
l 
ta

rg
e

ts
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

S
N

S
C

C
A

6
3

,0
0

0
1

5
,7

5
0

  
  

  
  

1
5

,7
5

0
 

0

G
G

G

C
Y

-

2
1

C
o

n
n

e
x
io

n
s

P
ro

v
id

e
s
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
, 

a
d

v
ic

e
, 

g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
. 

A
im

s
 t

o
 r

e
m

o
v
e

 b
a

rr
ie

rs
 t

o
 

le
a

rn
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 a

n
d

 h
e

lp
 y

o
u

n
g

 

p
e

o
p

le
 m

a
k
e

 a
 s

m
o

o
th

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 

a
d

u
lt
h

o
o

d
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
in

g
 l
if
e

.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

C
o

n
n

e
x
io

n
s

2
,2

9
9

,0
0

0
4

4
6

,0
0

0
  

  
  

4
5

7
,1

4
2

 
1

1
,1

4
2

A
A

G

U
n

c
le

a
r 

o
n

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

h
o

w
 i
t 

is
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 i
t 

ta
rg

e
ts

 /
  

o
u

tp
u

ts
.

C
Y

-

2
2

S
c
h

o
o

l 
In

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
P

ro
v
id

e
 e

x
tr

a
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 

o
f 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 o
r 

a
g

re
e

d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

S
IG

4
8

,0
0

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 -
 

0

G
G

G

C
Y

-

2
3

S
c
h

o
o

l 
In

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 C

 /
 F

w
d

 

fm
 2

0
0

7
 /

 0
8

S
IG

5
1

,8
0

0
1

2
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

1
2

,0
0

0
 

0
C

A
R

R
Y

 F
O

R
W

A
R

D
 -

 R
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
ro

je
c
t

C
Y

-

2
4

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 F
u

n
d

P
ro

v
id

e
 m

o
re

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

d
 

p
re

v
e

n
ti
v
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 a

g
e

d
 5

 t
o

 1
3

 y
e

a
rs

 a
n

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

ir
 

fa
m

ili
e

s
 /

 c
a

re
rs

, 
to

 h
e

lp
  

b
re

a
k
 t

h
e

 c
y
c
le

 o
f 

p
o

v
e

rt
y
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

C
F

 (
In

c
 

o
n

tr
a

c
k
)

6
5

4
,1

0
0

5
0

,2
5

0
  

  
  

  
5

0
,0

1
2

 
(2

3
8

)

G
G

G

C
Y

-

2
5

F
a

ir
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
P

o
s
t 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

a
re

n
ts

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

t 
th

e
 

p
o

in
t 

o
f 

s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r,
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 a
d

v
ic

e
 

a
n

d
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 f

o
r 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 

fa
m

ili
e

s
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

C
A

4
6

,0
0

0
1

1
,4

9
0

  
  

  
  

1
6

,8
7

8
 

5
,3

8
8

A
G

R

M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

%
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

t;
 A

B
G

 a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

s
a

la
ry

 c
o

s
t 

o
n

ly
. 

 A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
m

o
n

e
y
 s

p
e

n
t 

o
n

 

tr
a

n
s
la

te
d

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

p
a

re
n

ts
 a

n
d

 l
a

p
to

p
 

w
it
h

 s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

s
o

ft
w

a
re

.

C
Y

-

2
6

F
a

ir
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 C

 /
 

F
w

d
 f

m
 2

0
0

7
 /

 0
8

C
A

4
4

,0
0

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 -
 

0
  

  
 -

 
C

A
R

R
Y

 F
O

R
W

A
R

D
 -

 R
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
ro

je
c
t

C
Y

-

2
7

C
re

a
ti
n

g
 O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

B
e

tt
e

r 
L

iv
in

g
 /

 B
re

a
k
fa

s
t 

C
lu

b
s

P
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

fr
e

e
 b

re
a

k
fa

s
t 

c
lu

b
 p

la
c
e

s
 t

o
 

e
lig

ib
le

 c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 7
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 1
 

s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

l.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
1

1
4

,6
5

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 -
 

0

G
G

G

In
v
o

ic
e

s
 f

o
r 

la
s
t 

te
rm

 d
u

e
 i
n

 J
u

ly
.

C
Y

-

2
8

C
it
y
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 C

e
n

tr
e

P
ro

v
id

e
 i
n

n
o

v
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 I
C

T
 f

o
r 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n

 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
. 

A
v
a

ila
b

le
 a

s
 a

 c
e

n
tr

a
l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
 o

f 

e
x
p

e
rt

is
e

 f
o

r 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t

o
 u

s
e

.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

S
D

G
2

3
8

,0
0

0
5

9
,5

0
0

  
  

  
  

5
9

,4
9

9
 

(1
)

G
G

G

C
Y

-

2
9

C
it
y
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 C

e
n

tr
e

 C
 /

 F
w

d
 

fm
 2

0
0

7
 /

 0
8

S
D

G
2

5
,3

2
3

2
5

,3
2

3
  

  
  

  
2

5
,3

2
3

 
0

C
A

R
R

Y
 F

O
R

W
A

R
D

 -
 R

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
ro

je
c
t

6
 o

f 
1
3

Page 62



P
N

r
P

ro
je

c
t

P
ro

je
c

t 
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

S
e

c
to

r
F

u
n

d
in

g

S
tr

e
a

m

2
0

0
8

 /
 0

9
 

A
B

G

A
ll

o
c

a
ti

o
n

P
ro

fi
le

d

S
p

e
n

d

 R
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 

S
p

e
n

d

 Y
T

D
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

Spend Profile Returned

Overall RAG Status

Progress

C
Y

-

3
0

E
x
c
e

lle
n

c
e

 i
n

 C
it
ie

s
R

a
is

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

, 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

 e
x
c
e

lle
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 

tr
a

n
s
fo

rm
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
f 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
s
m

a
ll 

g
ro

u
p

s
 o

f 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
d

e
p

ri
v
a

ti
o

n

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

S
D

G
2

1
3

,6
0

0
3

4
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

3
3

,9
9

9
 

(1
)

G
G

G

C
Y

-

3
1

E
x
c
e

lle
n

c
e

 i
n

 C
it
ie

s
 C

 /
 F

w
d

 

fm
 2

0
0

7
 /

 0
8

S
D

G
6

0
,0

5
3

3
7

,2
3

0
  

  
  

  
3

7
,2

3
0

 
0

C
A

R
R

Y
 F

O
R

W
A

R
D

 -
 R

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
ro

je
c
t

C
Y

-

3
2

IC
T

 i
n

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
T

o
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 e

n
h

a
n

c
e

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 

te
a

c
h

in
g

 a
n

d
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 i
n

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 t
o

 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
m

o
d

e
rn

is
e

 t
h

e
 w

a
y
 i
n

 w
h

ic
h

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 

a
re

 r
u

n
 a

n
d

 o
rg

a
n

is
e

d

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

S
D

G
1

5
1

,0
0

0
3

7
,7

8
0

  
  

  
  

3
7

,7
4

9
 

(3
1

)

G
G

G

C
Y

-

3
3

S
c
h

o
o

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
v
is

it
s
 

th
a

t 
g

iv
e

 a
 b

a
la

n
c
e

 o
f 

c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 

to
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
. 

S
IP

s
 n

e
g

o
ti
a

te
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
ta

rg
e

ts
 

a
n

d
 h

a
v
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 

c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

S
IP

S
7

8
,0

0
0

1
2

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
1

5
,0

0
0

 
3

,0
0

0

G
G

A

M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

%
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

t.
  

W
h

ils
t 

s
p

e
n

d
 h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 a
g

re
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

r;
 a

 

re
v
is

e
d

 s
p

e
n

d
 p

ro
fi
le

 r
e

m
a

in
s
 o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
.

C
Y

-

3
4

S
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

P
a

rt
 o

f 
n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
d

ri
v
e

 t
o

 r
a

is
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 a
n

d
 s

e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 c
h

ild
re

n
's

 e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 

a
tt

a
in

m
e

n
t 

w
it
h

 f
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 c

o
re

 s
u

b
je

c
t 

a
re

a
s
 

in
 n

e
e

d
 o

f 
g

re
a

te
s
t 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

S
N

S
C

C
A

1
4

9
,0

0
0

3
7

,2
5

6
  

  
  

  
3

7
,2

4
8

 
(8

)

G
G

G

C
Y

-

3
5

H
e

a
lt
h

y
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 

B
u

ild
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 w

it
h

in
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 t

o
 e

n
a

b
le

 t
h

e
m

 

to
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 a
n

d
 m

a
in

ta
in

 H
e

a
lt
h

y
 S

c
h

o
o

l 

s
ta

tu
s
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

E
H

P
7

2
,0

0
0

3
7

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
1

2
,7

5
8

 
(2

4
,2

4
2

)

G
G

A

M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

%
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
t.

  
W

h
ils

t 
th

e
 

o
ri
g

in
a

l 
s
p

e
n

d
 p

ro
fi
le

 w
a

s
 c

o
n

fi
rm

e
d

 a
s
 

in
c
o

rr
e

c
t 

b
y
 t

h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

r;
 a

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 

s
p

e
n

d
 p

ro
fi
le

 r
e

m
a

in
s
 o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
.

C
Y

-

3
6

H
e

a
lt
h

y
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 C

 /
 F

w
d

 f
m

 

2
0

0
7

 /
 0

8

E
H

P
5

2
,2

0
0

7
,3

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
7

,3
0

0
 

0
C

A
R

R
Y

 F
O

R
W

A
R

D
 -

 R
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
ro

je
c
t

C
Y

-

3
7

C
F

 O
n

tr
a

c
k

W
o

rk
 w

it
h

 8
 –

 1
8

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 t

o
 p

re
v
e

n
t 

e
n

tr
a

n
c
e

 t
o

 y
o

u
th

 j
u

s
ti
c
e

 s
y
s
te

m
 a

n
d

 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 t
h

o
s
e

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 o
ff

e
n

d
e

d
 a

n
d

 

re
c
e

iv
e

d
 r

e
p

ri
m

a
n

d
s
 t

o
 p

re
v
e

n
t 

re
-

o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

C
F

 (
In

c
 

o
n

tr
a

c
k
)

3
7

8
,9

0
0

7
3

,3
4

8
  

  
  

  
7

3
,3

4
8

 
0

G
G

G

C
Y

-

3
8

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 a
n

d
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

c
h

o
o

ls

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

S
C

L
S

 t
o

 h
e

lp
 

th
e

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

"E
v
e

ry
 C

h
ild

 

M
a

tt
e

rs
"

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
1

2
,7

5
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 -

 
0

G
G

G

C
Y

-

3
9

R
e

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 P

ro
je

c
t

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 r
e

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 

w
o

rk
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 Y
O

S

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
4

2
,7

5
0

8
,9

1
6

  
  

  
  

  
9

,4
0

9
 

4
9

3

G
G

G

C
Y

-

4
0

Y
O

S
 P

a
re

n
ti
n

g
 W

o
rk

e
r

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 p
a

re
n

ti
n

g
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 w
o

rk
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 Y
O

S

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
4

2
,7

5
0

1
0

,1
5

0
  

  
  

  
  

9
,8

8
6

 
(2

6
4

)

G
G

G

C
Y

-

4
1

Y
o

u
th

 O
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 &

 Y
o

u
th

 

P
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
 (

fo
rm

e
rl
y
 Y

IS
P

)

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

a
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
o

ff
e

n
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 t

h
o

s
e

 w
h

o
 a

re
 a

t 
th

e
 

e
a

rl
y
 s

ta
g

e
s
 o

f 
o

ff
e

n
d

in
g

.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
7

2
,7

5
0

1
8

,1
8

9
  

  
  

  
1

0
,8

2
7

 
(7

,3
6

2
)

G
G

R

M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

%
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
t 

d
u

e
 t

o
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

in
g

 

is
s
u

e
s
.

C
Y

-

4
2

Y
o

u
th

 O
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

C
o

re
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
u

lt
i-
d

is
c
ip

lin
a

ry
 Y

O
S

 

in
 H

a
ri
n

g
e

y

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
2

9
2

,0
0

0
7

3
,6

0
0

  
  

  
  

7
2

,5
7

2
 

(1
,0

2
8

)
G

G
G

C
Y

-

4
3

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 S

h
e

d
A

d
v
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 i
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 a

m
o

n
g

s
t 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 u

s
in

g
 m

u
s
ic

, 

d
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 d

ra
m

a
. 

V
o

l 
&

 

C
o

m
m

S
D

G
7

3
,0

0
0

1
8

,2
5

0
  

  
  

  
1

8
,2

4
9

 
(1

)

G
G

G

7
 o

f 
1
3

Page 63



P
N

r
P

ro
je

c
t

P
ro

je
c

t 
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

S
e

c
to

r
F

u
n

d
in

g

S
tr

e
a

m

2
0

0
8

 /
 0

9
 

A
B

G

A
ll

o
c

a
ti

o
n

P
ro

fi
le

d

S
p

e
n

d

 R
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 

S
p

e
n

d

 Y
T

D
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

Spend Profile Returned

Overall RAG Status

Progress

Spend

C
o

m
m

e
n

t

C
Y

-

4
4

C
h

ild
 a

n
d

 a
d

o
le

s
c
e

n
t 

m
e

n
ta

l 

h
e

a
lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

P
ro

v
id

e
 m

u
lt
i 
d

is
c
ip

lin
a

ry
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 m
e

n
ta

l 

h
e

a
lt
h

 p
ro

b
le

m
s
 a

n
d

 d
is

o
rd

e
rs

 f
o

r 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t,
 t

re
a

tm
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

C
A

M
H

S
8

9
5

,0
0

0
2

2
3

,7
5

0
  

  
  

1
0

4
,9

6
9

 
(1

1
8

,7
8

1
)

A
A

R

M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

%
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
t.

  
T

w
o

 d
if
fe

re
n

t 

s
p

e
n

d
 p

ro
fi
le

s
 r

e
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 o

n
 f

o
rm

 w
h

ic
h

 

re
q

u
ir
e

s
 c

la
ri
fy

in
g

. 
 U

n
c
le

a
r 

o
n

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

fi
rs

t 
q

u
a

rt
e

r 
ta

rg
e

ts
, 

b
u

t 
a

 n
e

w
 I

T
 

s
y
s
te

m
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e

 t
o

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 

th
is

 g
o

in
g

 f
o

rw
a

rd
. 

 N
e

e
d

 t
o

 o
n

ly
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 

o
n

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 f

o
rm

 i
f 

th
is

 i
s
 t

o
 r

e
m

a
in

 a
s
 o

n
e

 

p
ro

je
c
t.

C
Y

-

4
5

G
o

v
e

rn
o

r 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 

T
ra

in
in

g
 U

n
it

M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

o
 r

e
c
ru

it
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 t
o

 

b
e

c
o

m
e

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
o

rs
, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 t

h
o

s
e

 

fr
o

m
 B

M
E

 b
a

c
k
g

ro
u

n
d

s
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

S
D

G
1

,2
0

0
1

,2
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

1
,2

2
0

 
2

0

G
G

G

C
Y

-

4
6

S
p

e
c
ia

l 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
N

e
e

d
s

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 S

p
e

e
c
h

, 
L

a
n

g
u

a
g

e
 

a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 (
S

L
C

S
) 

in
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 T

e
a

c
h

in
g

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 

C
a

re
 T

ru
s
t.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

S
D

G
3

1
4

,0
0

0
7

8
,4

9
7

  
  

  
  

7
8

,4
9

7
 

0

G
G

G

C
Y

-

4
7

S
p

e
c
ia

l 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
N

e
e

d
s
 C

 /
 

F
w

d
 2

0
0

7
 /

 0
8

S
D

G
2

7
,3

7
3

1
2

,1
1

1
  

  
  

  
1

2
,1

1
1

 
0

C
A

R
R

Y
 F

O
R

W
A

R
D

 -
 R

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

p
ro

je
c
t

C
Y

-

4
8

Im
p

ro
v
in

g
 L

it
e

ra
c
y
 -

 n
o

w
 

k
n

o
w

n
 a

s
 I

m
p

ro
v
in

g
 

F
u

n
c
ti
o

n
a

l 
S

k
ill

s
 (

w
it
h

 w
o

rk
 

re
la

te
d

 f
o

c
u

s
)

T
a

rg
e

te
d

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 l
it
e

ra
c
y
 

s
k
ill

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 E

n
g

lis
h

 K
S

3
 &

 K
S

4

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
1

1
9

,9
0

0
2

9
,9

7
5

  
  

  
  

5
9

,7
0

4
 

2
9

,7
2

9

G
G

A

M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

%
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

t.
  

W
h

ils
t 

e
a

rl
y
 

s
p

e
n

d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

g
re

e
d

, 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

r;
 a

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 s
p

e
n

d
 p

ro
fi
le

 r
e

m
a

in
s
 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

.

C
Y

-

4
9

1
4

-1
9

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
P

ro
v
id

e
 d

e
d

ic
a

te
d

 a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 t
o

 a
 

v
a

ri
e

ty
 o

f 
g

ro
u

p
s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 d

ir
e

c
t 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d

 a
c
c
re

d
it
a

ti
o

n
 

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

1
4

-1
9

 F
F

P
7

6
,0

0
0

3
2

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
3

7
,5

0
0

 
5

,5
0

0

G
G

R

M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

%
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

t.

C
Y

-

5
0

P
a

re
n

ta
l 
In

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 p
a

re
n

ta
l 
a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

in
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

a
s
 a

 k
e

y
 t

o
o

l 
fo

r 
ra

is
in

g
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it
h

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
1

3
9

,1
6

4
1

8
,3

4
4

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 -
 

(1
8

,3
4

4
)

G
G

R

M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

%
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
t.

C
Y

-

5
1

T
e

e
n

a
g

e
 P

re
g

n
a

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 

T
e

e
n

a
g

e
 P

a
re

n
ts

F
o

c
u

s
e

s
 o

n
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

h
a

t 
a

d
d

re
s
s
 t

e
e

n
a

g
e

 

c
o

n
c
e

p
ti
o

n
s
, 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 t
a

rg
e

ti
n

g
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 

ri
s
k
 t

a
k
in

g
 b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 

a
n

d
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

T
P

1
7

0
,0

0
0

1
5

,5
0

1
  

  
  

  
3

3
,8

1
8

 
1

8
,3

1
7

A
A

G

U
p

 t
o

 5
%

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

t;
 r

e
c
o

v
e

ry
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

d
.

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
is

s
u

e
 a

ro
u

n
d

 b
a

s
e

lin
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
b

e
in

g
 

u
s
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
a

rg
e

t 
n

o
t 

b
e

in
g

 m
e

t.
 

C
Y

-

5
2

T
e

e
n

a
g

e
 P

re
g

n
a

n
c
y
, 

S
e

x
u

a
l 

H
e

a
lt
h

  
&

 P
a

re
n

ta
l 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

B
u

ild
 o

n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

rs
 w

o
rk

 b
y
 t

a
rg

e
ti
n

g
 

y
o

u
n

g
 f

a
th

e
rs

 a
n

d
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 t
h

ir
d

 

c
h

ild
re

n
’s

 n
e

tw
o

rk
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
1

0
2

,7
5

0
2

5
,6

8
8

  
  

  
  

2
4

,3
3

6
 

(1
,3

5
2

)

A
A

A

U
p

 t
o

 5
%

 u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

t.
 O

u
tp

u
ts

 p
a

rt
ia

lly
 m

e
t.

F
u

ll 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
to

 b
e

 m
a

d
e

 w
h

e
n

 d
a

ta
 i
s
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
.

C
Y

-

5
3

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 c

h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 r
e

v
ie

w

E
n

a
b

le
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

to
 f

u
lf
il 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 d

u
ty

 o
f 

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 a

ll 
c
h

ild
 d

e
a

th
 i
n

 c
a

re
 c

a
s
e

s

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

C
D

R
P

6
8

,0
0

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 -
 

0
G

G
G

C
Y

-

5
4

S
c
h

o
o

l 
T

ra
v
e

l 
A

d
v
is

o
rs

 S
a

la
ry

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

c
h

o
o

l 
T

ra
v
e

l 
P

la
n

s
 

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

S
T

A
A

2
3

,0
0

0
5

,7
5

1
  

  
  

  
  

5
,7

0
0

 
(5

1
)

G
G

G

C
Y

-

5
5

U
n

a
llo

c
a

te
d

E
H

P
2

9
,0

8
7

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 -

 
0

  
  

 -
 

U
N

A
L

L
O

C
A

T
E

D

C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
1

0
,6

6
3

,2
4

0
1

,8
4

4
,7

8
4

  
 1

,7
6

3
,8

0
6

 
(8

0
,9

7
8

)

W
e

ll
 B

e
in

g
 T

h
e

m
a

ti
c

 B
o

a
rd

W
B

-

0
1

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 C
a

re
rs

P
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

c
u

lt
u

ra
lly

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

a
n

d
 r

e
s
p

it
e

 t
o

 c
a

re
rs

 i
n

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

C
G

9
2

7
,2

0
0

7
6

3
,1

0
0

  
  

  
2

6
7

,9
1

8
 

(4
9

5
,1

8
2

)

A
G

R

M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

%
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
t;

 p
ro

fi
le

 i
s
 

in
a

c
c
u

ra
te

 a
n

d
 n

e
e

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
. 

 O
n

e
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

re
v
ie

w
 f

o
rm

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 s

u
b

m
it
te

d
 

in
s
te

a
d

 o
f 

5
.

W
B

-

0
2

R
e

a
p

in
g

 t
h

e
 B

e
n

e
fi
ts

 
O

u
tr

e
a

c
h

 p
ro

je
c
t 

in
 t

h
e

 S
O

A
 w

a
rd

s
 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 a
d

v
ic

e
 /

 a
s
s
is

ta
n

c
e

 o
n

 b
e

n
e

fi
t 

e
n

ti
tl
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 d

e
b

t.

V
o

l 
&

 

C
o

m
m

W
N

F
9

7
,0

0
0

2
3

,9
8

5
  

  
  

  
2

3
,0

4
0

 
(9

4
5

)

G
G

G

8
 o

f 
1
3

Page 64



P
N

r
P

ro
je

c
t

P
ro

je
c

t 
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

S
e

c
to

r
F

u
n

d
in

g

S
tr

e
a

m

2
0

0
8

 /
 0

9
 

A
B

G

A
ll

o
c

a
ti

o
n

P
ro

fi
le

d

S
p

e
n

d

 R
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 

S
p

e
n

d

 Y
T

D
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

Spend Profile Returned

Overall RAG Status

Progress

Spend

C
o

m
m

e
n

t

W
B

-

0
3

P
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
D

is
a

b
ili

ti
e

s
 

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 l
e

g
a

c
y
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 

p
la

c
e

d
 i
n

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
c
a

re
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

P
R

G
I

5
0

,8
7

6
1

2
,7

1
9

  
  

  
  

1
2

,7
2

0
 

1

G
G

G

W
B

-

0
4

A
c
c
e

s
s
in

g
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 

T
h

ro
u

g
h

 I
n

d
iv

id
u

a
lis

e
d

 

B
u

d
g

e
ts

P
ro

v
id

e
s
 i
n

te
n

s
iv

e
, 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

lly
 t

a
ilo

re
d

 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 

in
to

 p
a

id
 w

o
rk

. 

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
1

5
,5

0
0

2
,0

8
0

  
  

  
  

  
3

,2
9

7
 

1
,2

1
7

G
G

R

M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

%
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

t.

W
B

-

0
5

C
y
c
lin

g
 C

lu
b

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 r
u

n
n

in
g

 o
f 

a
 c

y
c
le

 c
lu

b
 w

it
h

 

s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 a

d
a

p
te

d
 b

ik
e

s
 f

o
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 

le
a

rn
in

g
 d

is
a

b
ili

ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

rs
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
9

,5
0

0
2

,1
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

2
,5

2
4

 
4

2
4

G
G

G

W
B

-

0
6

W
e

lf
a

re
 t

o
 W

o
rk

 f
o

r 
 D

is
a

b
le

d

P
e

o
p

le

C
o

-o
rd

in
a

te
s
 t

h
e

 W
e

lf
a

re
 t

o
 W

o
rk

 f
o

r 

d
is

a
b

le
d

 p
e

o
p

le
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 d

is
a

b
le

d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a

m
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
&

 s
k
ill

s
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
4

0
,0

0
0

1
2

,5
4

0
  

  
  

  
1

2
,5

4
0

 
0

G
G

G

W
B

-

0
7

2
0

%
 o

f 
T

o
ta

l 
C

a
re

rs
 G

ra
n

t 

A
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 C

Y
P

S

P
ro

v
id

e
 s

h
o

rt
 b

re
a

k
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 c

h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 

fa
m

ili
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 

c
a

re
rs

.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

C
Y

P
S

2
3

1
,8

0
0

5
7

,8
0

0
  

  
  

  
5

7
,8

0
0

 
0

A
A

R

O
u

tp
u

ts
 n

o
t 

q
u

a
n

ti
fi
e

d
. 

 M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

%
 

u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

t.

W
B

-

0
8

H
o

m
e

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 W
o

rk
e

rs
 &

 

O
u

tr
e

a
c
h

  
S

tr
e

e
t 

D
ri
n

k
e

rs

A
d

v
ic

e
, 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 's

tr
e

e
t 

d
ri
n

k
e

rs
' a

n
d

 p
ro

b
le

m
 d

ri
n

k
e

rs
 i
s
o

la
te

d
 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

ir
 o

w
n

 h
o

m
e

s
.

V
o

l 
&

 

C
o

m
m

W
N

F
7

8
,0

0
0

2
0

,0
7

2
  

  
  

  
1

9
,2

0
2

 
(8

7
0

)

G
G

G

W
B

-

0
9

L
ib

ra
ri
e

s
 f

o
r 

L
if
e

T
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

s
 h

ig
h

ly
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 

lib
ra

ri
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

e
n

tr
e

 a
n

d
 e

a
s
t 

o
f 

th
e

 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
1

9
4

,5
0

0
5

3
,8

0
0

  
  

  
  

4
2

,0
0

6
 

(1
1

,7
9

4
)

G
G

G

M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

%
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
t;

 r
e

c
o

v
e

ry
 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

d
.

W
B

-

1
0

T
h

e
 S

ix
8

fo
u

r 
C

e
n

tr
e

Im
p

ro
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 f

o
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 

s
e

v
e

re
 a

n
d

 e
n

d
u

ri
n

g
 m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 

p
ro

b
le

m
s
 b

y
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n

g
 s

o
c
ia

l 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
, 

w
e

llb
e

in
g

 a
n

d
 t

ra
in

in
g

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 p

o
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

a
 r

e
tu

rn
 t

o
 c

o
lle

g
e

 o
r 

w
o

rk
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
7

8
,0

0
0

1
9

,5
0

0
  

  
  

  
1

9
,5

0
0

 
0

G
G

G

W
B

-

1
1

H
e

a
lt
h

 i
n

 M
in

d
 -

 M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

T
h

e
ra

p
e

u
ti
c
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 a
n

d
 g

ra
d

u
a

te
 m

e
n

ta
l 

h
e

a
lt
h

 w
o

rk
e

rs
 

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
7

3
,0

0
0

1
8

,2
5

2
  

  
  

  
1

1
,0

3
0

 
(7

,2
2

2
)

G
G

R

M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

%
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
t 

d
u

e
 t

o
 v

a
c
a

n
c
y
 

w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 b
e

 f
ill

e
d

 i
n

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r.

W
B

-

1
2

A
le

x
a

n
d

ra
 R

o
a

d
P

ro
v
id

e
s
 e

m
e

rg
e

n
c
y
 2

4
 h

o
u

r 
c
a

re
 t

o
 

p
re

v
e

n
t 

h
o

s
p

it
a

l 
a

d
m

is
s
io

n
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
p

it
e

 c
a

re
 

to
 m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 

c
a

re
rs

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

M
H

G
1

2
8

,2
0

0
3

2
,0

5
0

  
  

  
  

3
2

,0
5

2
 

2

G
G

G

W
B

-

1
3

C
la

re
n

d
o

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

S
e

rv
ic

e
 f

o
r 

a
d

u
lt
s
 r

e
c
o

v
e

ri
n

g
 f

ro
m

 s
e

v
e

re
 

a
n

d
 e

n
d

u
ri
n

g
 m

e
n

ta
l 
ill

n
e

s
s
 r

e
c
e

iv
in

g
 a

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 f

ro
m

 s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

M
H

G
5

6
,6

0
1

1
4

,1
5

0
  

  
  

  
1

4
,1

5
1

 
1

G
G

G

W
B

-

1
4

C
S

W
 A

s
s
e

rt
iv

e
 O

u
tr

e
a

c
h

p
ro

v
id

e
 i
n

te
n

s
iv

e
 d

a
ily

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 m
e

n
ta

l 

h
e

a
lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 l
iv

in
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 o

w
n

 

h
o

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 c
lie

n
ts

 l
iv

in
g

 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
tl
y
 a

n
d

 s
e

e
k
 t

o
 p

re
v
e

n
t 

re
a

d
m

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 h

o
s
p

it
a

l.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

M
H

G
4

5
,0

0
0

1
1

,2
5

0
  

  
  

  
1

1
,2

5
0

 
0

A
A

G

U
n

c
le

a
r 

a
n

d
 u

n
q

u
a

n
ti
fi
a

b
le

 o
u

tp
u

ts
.

W
B

-

1
5

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
&

 T
ra

in
in

g
P

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t,
 t

h
e

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 

p
ro

je
c
ts

, 
a

n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 f

o
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

M
H

G
8

9
,8

2
2

2
2

,4
5

6
  

  
  

  
2

2
,4

5
5

 
(1

)

G
G

G

W
B

-

1
6

M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
P

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 C

e
n

tr
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
to

 r
e

p
la

c
e

 

m
o

n
ie

s
 o

ri
g

in
a

lly
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 e

lig
ib

le
 f

o
r 

P
re

s
e

rv
e

d
 R

ig
h

ts
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

P
R

G
I

2
4

1
,9

3
9

6
0

,4
8

5
  

  
  

  
6

0
,4

8
6

 
1

G
G

G

9
 o

f 
1
3

Page 65



P
N

r
P

ro
je

c
t

P
ro

je
c

t 
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

S
e

c
to

r
F

u
n

d
in

g

S
tr

e
a

m

2
0

0
8

 /
 0

9
 

A
B

G

A
ll

o
c

a
ti

o
n

P
ro

fi
le

d

S
p

e
n

d

 R
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 

S
p

e
n

d

 Y
T

D
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

Spend Profile Returned

Overall RAG Status

Progress

Spend

C
o

m
m

e
n

t

W
B

-

1
7

S
tu

d
io

 3
0

6
E

m
e

rg
in

g
 s

o
c
ia

l 
fi
rm

 p
ro

v
id

in
g

 v
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g
 

a
n

d
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
a

d
u

lt
s
 

re
c
o

v
e

ri
n

g
 f

ro
m

 m
e

n
ta

l 
ill

n
e

s
s
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

M
H

G
2

6
,4

7
8

6
,6

2
0

  
  

  
  

  
6

,6
1

8
 

(2
)

A
A

G

U
n

c
le

a
r 

a
n

d
 u

n
q

u
a

n
ti
fi
a

b
le

 o
u

tp
u

ts
.

W
B

-

1
8

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 T

h
e

ra
p

e
u

ti
c
 N

e
tw

o
rk

T
h

e
ra

p
e

u
ti
c
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 a
n

d
 g

ra
d

u
a

te
 m

e
n

ta
l 

h
e

a
lt
h

 w
o

rk
e

rs
 

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
6

0
,0

0
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 -

 
0

G
G

G

W
B

-

1
9

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
&

 C
a

re
 -

 O
ld

e
r 

P
e

o
p

le

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 a
g

e
n

d
a

 

a
n

d
 i
s
 k

e
y
 t

o
 t

h
e

 s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
. 

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

M
H

C
A

G
3

5
,8

5
8

8
,9

6
4

  
  

  
  

  
8

,9
6

4
 

0

G
G

G

W
B

-

2
0

P
re

s
e

rv
e

d
 R

ig
h

ts
 G

ra
n

t 

In
c
o

m
e

 -
 O

ld
e

r 
P

e
o

p
le

F
u

n
d

in
g

 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e

d
 f

ro
m

 D
H

S
S

 i
n

 1
9

9
3

 f
o

r 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 w
e

re
 m

o
v
e

d
 i
n

to
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 

c
a

re
 f

ro
m

 l
o

n
g

 s
ta

y
 i
n

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
s

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

P
R

G
I

2
9

3
,0

0
0

7
3

,2
4

8
  

  
  

  
7

3
,2

5
1

 
3

G
G

G

W
B

-

2
1

B
la

c
k
 &

 M
in

o
ri
ty

 E
th

n
ic

 C
a

re
rs

 

R
e

s
p

it
e

D
e

liv
e

rs
 m

o
n

th
ly

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 g
ro

u
p

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 t

o
 

c
a

re
rs

.

V
o

l 
&

 

C
o

m
m

W
N

F
1

9
,5

0
0

5
,4

1
1

  
  

  
  

  
5

,4
1

1
 

0

G
G

G

W
B

-

2
2

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 I

n
c
o

m
e

 
P

ro
v
id

e
s
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 

a
d

v
ic

e
 t

o
 l
o

c
a

l 
p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 

o
ff

e
rs

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 w
h

e
n

 a
p

p
ly

in
g

 f
o

r 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

b
e

n
e

fi
ts

V
o

l 
&

 

C
o

m
m

W
N

F
3

1
,5

0
0

7
,8

7
5

  
  

  
  

  
7

,8
7

5
 

0

G
G

G

W
B

-

2
3

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 D
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 J

T
 C

o
m

m
 

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l

T
o

 f
in

a
n

c
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

a
re

 (
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l)
 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
a

n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 g

ro
u

p
 o

f 

c
lie

n
ts

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

P
R

G
I

2
6

7
,5

6
2

6
6

,8
9

1
  

  
  

  
6

6
,9

0
0

 
1

0

A
A

G

U
n

c
le

a
r 

a
n

d
 u

n
q

u
a

n
ti
fi
a

b
le

 o
u

tp
u

ts
.

W
B

-

2
4

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 D
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l

T
o

 f
in

a
n

c
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

a
re

 (
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l)
 

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
a

n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 g

ro
u

p
 o

f 

c
lie

n
ts

.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

P
R

G
I

5
2

2
,3

7
3

1
3

0
,5

9
3

  
  

  
1

3
0

,5
0

0
 

(9
3

)

A
A

G

U
n

c
le

a
r 

a
n

d
 u

n
q

u
a

n
ti
fi
a

b
le

 o
u

tp
u

ts
.

W
B

-

2
5

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 D
is

a
b

ili
ty

 D
a

y
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

F
u

n
d

in
g

 t
o

 h
e

lp
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e

 V
a

lu
in

g
 P

e
o

p
le

 

W
h

it
e

 P
a

p
e

r 
2

0
0

1

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

L
D

D
F

2
3

6
,0

0
0

5
9

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
5

8
,8

0
0

 
(2

0
0

)

G
G

G

W
B

-

2
6

A
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 A

d
u

lt
 T

ra
in

in
g

 f
o

r 

B
-T

e
c
h

 A
w

a
rd

T
ra

in
in

g
 f

o
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 w
e

lf
a

re
 

re
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

ju
v
e

n
ile

s
 a

n
d

 v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 

a
d

u
lt
s
 d

e
ta

in
e

d
 i
n

 p
o

lic
e

 c
u

s
to

d
y
.

V
o

l 
&

 

C
o

m
m

W
N

F
1

5
,0

0
0

5
,6

8
5

  
  

  
  

  
5

,6
9

4
 

9

R
R

G

H
a

v
e

 r
e

c
ru

it
e

d
 1

6
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

4
0

, 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
p

ro
fi
le

d
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
is

 o
n

 s
p

e
n

d
.

W
B

-

2
7

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 (

C
a

n
n

in
g

 C
re

s
c
e

n
t)

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
r 

(A
S

W
) 

p
o

s
ts

 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

M
H

G
8

0
,8

0
0

2
0

,2
0

0
  

  
  

  
2

4
,6

0
0

 
4

,4
0

0

R
R

R

L
a

c
k
 o

f 
c
la

ri
ty

 o
n

 a
c
tu

a
l 
s
p

e
n

d
. 

 L
im

it
e

d
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 o
n

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
. 

 T
h

is
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

r.
  

B
u

d
g

e
t 

re
m

a
in

s
 

R
E

D
 a

s
 h

ig
h

e
s
t 

q
u

o
te

d
 s

p
e

n
d

 i
s
 g

re
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 2

5
%

.

W
B

-

2
8

C
S

W
 A

s
s
e

rt
iv

e
 O

u
tr

e
a

c
h

P
ro

v
id

e
s
 i
n

te
n

s
iv

e
 d

a
ily

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 m
e

n
ta

l 

h
e

a
lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 l
iv

in
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 o

w
n

 

h
o

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
s
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 c
lie

n
ts

 l
iv

in
g

 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
tl
y
 a

n
d

 s
e

e
k
s
 t

o
 p

re
v
e

n
t 

re
a

d
m

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 h

o
s
p

it
a

l.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

M
H

G
4

9
,0

0
0

1
2

,2
5

0
  

  
  

  
1

1
,2

5
0

 
(1

,0
0

0
)

G
G

G

W
B

-

2
9

S
o

c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
rs

 (
N

o
rt

h
 

T
o

tt
e

n
h

a
m

)

F
u

n
d

s
 a

 S
o

c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
r 

p
o

s
t 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d

 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

e
a

m
 r

u
n

n
in

g
 c

o
s
t.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

M
H

G
5

0
,0

0
0

1
2

,5
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

1
,2

0
0

 
(1

1
,3

0
0

)

R
R

R

L
a

c
k
 o

f 
c
la

ri
ty

 o
n

 a
c
tu

a
l 
s
p

e
n

d
. 

 L
im

it
e

d
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 o
n

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
. 

 T
h

is
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

r.
  

B
u

d
g

e
t 

re
m

a
in

s
 

R
E

D
 a

s
 h

ig
h

e
s
t 

q
u

o
te

d
 s

p
e

n
d

 i
s
 g

re
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 2

5
%

.

1
0
 o

f 
1
3

Page 66



P
N

r
P

ro
je

c
t

P
ro

je
c

t 
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

S
e

c
to

r
F

u
n

d
in

g

S
tr

e
a

m

2
0

0
8

 /
 0

9
 

A
B

G

A
ll

o
c

a
ti

o
n

P
ro

fi
le

d

S
p

e
n

d

 R
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 

S
p

e
n

d

 Y
T

D
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

Spend Profile Returned

Overall RAG Status

Progress

Spend

C
o

m
m

e
n

t

W
B

-

3
0

S
o

c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

e
rs

 R
u

n
n

in
g

 

C
o

s
ts

F
u

n
d

s
 r

u
n

n
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 t
o

 e
n

a
b

le
 s

o
c
ia

l 

W
o

rk
e

r 
p

o
s
ts

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 m

e
n

ta
l 

h
e

a
lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

o
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

d
u

ti
e

s
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
. 

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

M
H

G
3

4
,2

0
0

8
,5

5
0

  
  

  
  

  
9

,0
0

0
 

4
5

0

R
R

G

L
im

it
e

d
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 o
n

 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
. 

 T
h

is
 h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 a
g

re
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

r.

W
B

-

3
1

H
e

a
lt
h

 i
n

 M
in

d
 -

 H
e

a
lt
h

y
 

E
a

ti
n

g

In
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
, 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
 f

o
o

d
s
 a

n
d

 

p
ro

v
id

e
 n

u
tr

it
io

n
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 t

o
 o

ld
e

r 

p
e

o
p

le
 (

5
0

+
) 

liv
in

g
 w

it
h

in
 S

O
A

 w
a

rd
s
 

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
1

4
8

,0
0

0
3

6
,9

2
7

  
  

  
  

3
8

,8
9

2
 

1
,9

6
5

G
G

G

U
p

 t
o

 5
%

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

t;
 r

e
c
o

v
e

ry
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

d
.

W
B

-

3
2

H
a

p
p

y
 O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
E

m
p

o
w

e
r 

a
t 

le
a

s
t 

3
0

 a
d

u
lt
s
, 

5
0

 y
e

a
rs

 a
n

d
 

o
ld

e
r 

p
ri
m

a
ri
ly

 f
ro

m
 B

M
E

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
, 

to
 

b
u

ild
 t

h
e

ir
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 s

o
 t

h
a

t 
re

a
l 
p

o
s
it
iv

e
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 a

re
 m

a
d

e
.

V
o

l 
&

 

C
o

m
m

W
N

F
1

7
,0

0
0

3
,9

0
4

  
  

  
  

  
4

,0
7

0
 

1
6

6

G
G

G

W
B

-

3
3

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 P
e

o
p

le
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
F

u
n

d
s
 t

h
e

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 P
e

o
p

le
 t

e
a

m
 (

o
n

e
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 R
e

v
ie

w
 m

a
n

a
g

e
r 

a
n

d
 3

 

p
ro

je
c
t 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
).

 

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

S
P

A
G

2
1

2
,0

0
0

5
3

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
5

4
,0

0
0

 
1

,0
0

0

G
G

G

W
B

-

3
4

S
a

ls
a

 C
lu

b
D

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 s

a
ls

a
 c

la
s
s
e

s
 f

o
r 

e
ld

e
rl
y
 i
n

 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
. 

C
la

s
s
e

s
 a

re
 c

o
m

b
in

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 

e
x
e

rc
is

e
, 

m
u

s
ic

, 
s
e

lf
 e

x
p

re
s
s
io

n
 a

n
d

 

s
o

c
ia

lis
in

g
.

V
o

l 
&

 

C
o

m
m

W
N

F
9

,0
0

0
3

,5
7

0
  

  
  

  
  

3
,7

1
0

 
1

4
0

G
G

G

W
B

-

3
5

M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 C
a

p
a

c
it
y
 A

c
t

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 a

 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

/ 
s
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

b
ri
e

fi
n

g
 a

n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 t

o
 

a
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 9

7
0

 s
ta

ff
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 A
d

u
lt
s
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 f

ro
m

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
8

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

M
H

C
A

G
2

0
,0

0
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 -

 
0

G
G

G

W
B

-

3
6

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 O
u

tr
e

a
c
h

 
P

ro
v
id

e
 a

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 w
e

lf
a

re
 r

ig
h

ts
 

c
a

m
p

a
ig

n
 t

o
  

‘h
a

rd
 t

o
 r

e
a

c
h

’ 
o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 

fr
o

m
 B

M
E

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

o
s
e

 l
iv

in
g

 w
it
h

 

lo
n

g
 t

e
rm

 h
e

a
lt
h

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
(s

) 
m

a
in

ly
 i
n

 

S
O

A
s

V
o

l 
&

 

C
o

m
m

W
N

F
4

5
,0

0
0

8
,6

2
9

  
  

  
  

  
5

,4
6

8
 

(3
,1

6
1

)

G
G

R

M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

%
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
t 

d
u

e
 t

o
 t

e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 

v
a

c
a

n
c
y
 n

o
w

 f
ill

e
d

.

W
B

-

3
7

F
o

ru
m

 f
o

r 
O

ld
e

r 
P

e
o

p
le

C
a

p
a

c
it
y
 b

u
ild

in
g

 o
ld

e
r 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 t

o
 e

n
a

b
le

 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 c
iv

ic
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 

V
o

l 
&

 

C
o

m
m

W
N

F
5

1
,0

0
0

1
1

,8
2

0
  

  
  

  
1

4
,0

1
4

 
2

,1
9

4

G
G

R

M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

%
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

t.

W
B

-

3
8

O
u

t 
a

n
d

 A
b

o
u

t 
- 

B
e

fr
ie

n
d

in
g

 

a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

R
e

c
ru

it
s
, 

tr
a

in
s
 a

n
d

 p
la

c
e

s
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

b
e

fr
ie

n
d

e
rs

 w
it
h

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 

is
o

la
te

d
 o

r 
w

h
o

 a
re

 a
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
s
o

c
ia

l 
is

o
la

ti
o

n

V
o

l 
&

 

C
o

m
m

W
N

F
3

5
,5

0
0

8
,8

4
7

  
  

  
  

  
8

,7
7

5
 

(7
2

)

G
G

G

W
B

-

3
9

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
S

u
p

p
o

rt
s
 t

h
e

 p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 i
n

 

th
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
, 

w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 h

ig
h

 

n
e

e
d

s
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

M
H

G
7

6
,8

1
8

1
9

,2
0

6
  

  
  

  
1

9
,2

0
6

 
0

G
G

G

W
B

-

4
0

M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
S

u
p

p
o

rt
s
 t

h
e

 p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 i
n

 

th
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
, 

w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 h

ig
h

 

n
e

e
d

s
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

M
H

C
A

G
5

1
,1

4
2

1
2

,7
8

6
  

  
  

  
1

2
,7

8
6

 
0

G
G

G

W
B

-

4
1

M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 J
t 

C
o

m
m

 

H
e

a
lt
h

S
u

p
p

o
rt

s
 t

h
e

 p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 i
n

 

th
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
, 

w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 h

ig
h

 

n
e

e
d

s
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

P
R

G
I

3
8

,2
5

0
9

,5
6

4
  

  
  

  
  

9
,5

6
4

 
0

G
G

G

W
B

-

4
2

A
fr

ic
a

n
 C

a
ri
b

b
e

a
n

 L
e

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 

C
o

u
n

c
il

A
C

L
C

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 c
o

u
n

s
e

lli
n

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o

 

B
la

c
k
 a

n
d

 A
fr

ic
a

n
 C

a
ri
b

b
e

a
n

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 

w
it
h

in
 a

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 s
e

rv
ic

e
.

V
o

l 
&

 

C
o

m
m

M
H

G
2

9
,0

0
0

7
,2

5
1

  
  

  
  

  
7

,2
5

1
 

0

G
G

G

1
1
 o

f 
1
3

Page 67



P
N

r
P

ro
je

c
t

P
ro

je
c

t 
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

S
e

c
to

r
F

u
n

d
in

g

S
tr

e
a

m

2
0

0
8

 /
 0

9
 

A
B

G

A
ll

o
c

a
ti

o
n

P
ro

fi
le

d

S
p

e
n

d

 R
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 

S
p

e
n

d

 Y
T

D
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

Spend Profile Returned

Overall RAG Status

Progress

Spend

C
o

m
m

e
n

t

W
B

-

4
3

C
A

B
P

ro
v
id

e
s
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

e
rt

 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 t

o
 m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 

in
 b

o
th

 S
t 

A
n

n
’s

 H
o

s
p

it
a

l 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
.

V
o

l 
&

 

C
o

m
m

M
H

G
1

9
,0

0
0

4
,7

4
9

  
  

  
  

  
4

,7
4

9
 

0

G
G

G

W
B

-

4
4

H
A

G
A

S
u

p
p

o
rt

s
 t

h
e

 A
lc

o
h

o
l,
 M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 W

o
rk

e
r 

a
t 

H
A

G
A

V
o

l 
&

 

C
o

m
m

M
H

G
3

0
,0

0
0

7
,5

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
9

,4
0

7
 

1
,9

0
7

A
G

R

M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

%
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

t.

W
B

-

4
5

M
IN

D
 i
n

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
S

u
p

p
o

rt
s
 t

h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
a

d
v
o

c
a

c
y
 t

o
 m

e
n

ta
l 

h
e

a
lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 a

n
d

 w
a

s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

d
 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 f
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 p

e
o

p
le

 f
ro

m
 a

fr
o

-

C
a

ri
b

b
e

a
n

  
/ 

A
fr

ic
a

n
 o

ri
g

in
.

V
o

l 
&

 

C
o

m
m

M
H

G
3

2
,0

0
0

8
,0

0
1

  
  

  
  

  
7

,9
9

8
 

(3
)

G
G

G

W
B

-

4
6

O
p

e
n

 D
o

o
r

P
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 t
o

 

p
ro

v
id

e
 e

m
o

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
ra

p
e

u
ti
c
  

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 

to
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 (

1
2

 –
 2

4
),

 p
a

re
n

ts
 a

n
d

 

c
a

re
rs

.

V
o

l 
&

 

C
o

m
m

M
H

G
2

5
,0

0
0

6
,2

4
9

  
  

  
  

  
6

,2
4

9
 

0

G
G

G

W
B

-

4
7

P
R

A
 H

a
ri
n

g
e

y
 U

s
e

r 
N

e
tw

o
rk

T
o

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 a

n
d

 f
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 

o
u

tr
e

a
c
h

 t
o

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 l
in

k
s
, 

tr
a

in
in

g
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 n
e

e
d

s
.

V
o

l 
&

 

C
o

m
m

M
H

G
1

9
,0

0
0

4
,7

4
9

  
  

  
  

  
4

,7
4

9
 

0

A
A

G

H
a

v
e

 a
g

re
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

r 
th

a
t 

ta
rg

e
ts

 /
 o

u
tp

u
ts

 n
e

e
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

la
ri
fi
e

d
 a

n
d

 

q
u

a
n

ti
fi
e

d
.

W
B

-

4
8

R
a

in
e

r
O

ff
e

rs
 a

n
 A

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 A

d
u

lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 i
n

 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
 c

u
s
to

d
y
 s

u
it
e

s
 f

o
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 

m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

, 
le

a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 

c
h

ild
re

n
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
rr

e
s
te

d
 f

o
r 

a
n

 

o
ff

e
n

c
e

.

V
o

l 
&

 

C
o

m
m

M
H

G
2

0
,0

8
1

5
,0

1
9

  
  

  
  

  
5

,0
1

9
 

0

G
G

G

W
B

-

4
9

S
m

o
k
in

g
 C

e
s
s
a

ti
o

n
 P

ro
je

c
t

In
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
1

6
+

 s
m

o
k
in

g
 

q
u

it
te

rs
 i
n

 H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 a

m
o

n
g

s
t 

p
ri
o

ri
ty

 g
ro

u
p

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 i
n

 N
IC

E
 G

u
id

a
n

c
e

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
1

0
0

,0
0

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 -
 

0

A
A

G

L
im

it
e

d
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 s

u
p

p
lie

d
 o

n
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
.

W
B

-

5
0

H
e

a
lt
h

 i
n

 M
in

d
 -

P
h

y
s
ic

a
l

A
c
ti
v
it
y

D
e

liv
e

r 
o

f 
a

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 r

e
fe

rr
a

l 

s
c
h

e
m

e
, 

b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 o

b
e

s
it
y
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

c
a

re
 

p
a

th
w

a
y
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 p

ilo
te

d

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
8

7
,5

0
0

1
6

,2
1

8
  

  
  

  
2

2
,7

5
8

 
6

,5
4

0

G
G

R

M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

%
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

t;
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
s
p

e
n

d
 

o
n

 a
d

v
e

rt
is

in
g

 a
n

d
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

fo
r 

re
fe

rr
e

rs

W
e

ll
 B

e
in

g
 T

o
ta

l
5

,1
4

3
,5

0
0

1
,7

7
2

,1
1

4
  

 1
,2

6
0

,6
9

9
 

(5
1

1
,4

1
5

)

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

 a
n

d
 C

a
p

a
c

it
y

N
C

-

0
1

B
a

s
e

lin
e

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 

s
u

rv
e

y
in

g
 p

e
o

p
le

s
' 

p
e

rc
e

p
ti
o

n
s

- 
N

e
w

 P
ro

je
c
t

R
e

s
e

a
rc

h
 t

h
a

t 
w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

c
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 r
e

s
id

e
n

t 

p
e

rc
e

p
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
.

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

5
0

,0
0

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 -
 

0

G
G

G

N
C

-

0
2

L
in

k
s
 (

L
o

c
a

l 
In

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

N
e

tw
o

rk
)

A
im

 o
f 

th
e

 L
IN

K
 i
s
 t

o
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

 l
o

c
a

l 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 t

o
 i
n

fl
u

e
n

c
e

 k
e

y
 h

e
a

lt
h

 &
 s

o
c
ia

l 

c
a

re
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 b

y
 g

iv
in

g
 

th
e

m
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g
e

r 
v
o

ic
e

. 

2
0

%
 P

u
b

lic
, 

8
0

%
 V

o
l 
&

 

C
o

m

(s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

)

L
IN

1
7

0
,0

0
0

3
0

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
3

0
,3

5
0

 
3

5
0

G
G

G

N
C

-

0
3

H
S

P
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

H
a

ri
n

g
e

y
’s

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 

A
re

a
 B

a
s
e

d
 G

ra
n

t 
o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

2
4

2
,0

0
0

2
9

,8
7

0
  

  
  

  
2

9
,8

8
5

 
1

5

G
G

G

N
C

-

0
4

H
R

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 T

ra
in

in
g

P
ro

v
id

e
s
 N

V
Q

 T
ra

in
in

g
, 

s
h

o
rt

 c
o

u
rs

e
s
 

tr
a

in
in

g
, 

S
o

c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

 T
ra

in
e

e
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 a

n
d

 

P
Q

 A
w

a
rd

s

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

A
S

C
W

R
T

6
0

6
,0

0
0

9
3

,2
2

9
  

  
  

  
8

3
,2

7
9

 
(9

,9
5

0
)

G
G

R

M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

%
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
t.

1
2
 o

f 
1
3

Page 68



P
N

r
P

ro
je

c
t

P
ro

je
c

t 
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

S
e

c
to

r
F

u
n

d
in

g

S
tr

e
a

m

2
0

0
8

 /
 0

9
 

A
B

G

A
ll

o
c

a
ti

o
n

P
ro

fi
le

d

S
p

e
n

d

 R
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 

S
p

e
n

d

 Y
T

D
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e

Spend Profile Returned

Overall RAG Status

Progress

Spend

C
o

m
m

e
n

t

N
C

-

0
5

V
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g
 B

ro
k
e

ra
g

e
 

P
ro

je
c
t

In
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
H

a
ri
n

g
e

y
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 

e
n

g
a

g
in

g
 i
n

 f
o

rm
a

l 
v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 w

it
h

in
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 g
ro

u
p

s

V
o

l 
&

 

C
o

m
m

4
0

,0
0

0
1

3
,0

9
2

  
  

  
  

  
4

,7
5

4
 

(8
,3

3
8

)

G
G

R

M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

%
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
t.

N
C

-

0
6

E
m

p
o

w
e

rm
e

n
t 

S
e

e
d

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
s
 p

ro
je

c
t 

c
o

s
ts

 w
it
h

in
 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 T

e
a

m
s

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

W
N

F
1

0
6

,0
0

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 -
 

0
G

G
G

N
C

-

0
7

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

S
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 c
o

re
 c

o
s
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e
 N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
e

rv
ic

e

P
u

b
lic

S
e

c
to

r

S
S

C
F

4
7

9
,0

0
0

9
4

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
9

6
,0

0
0

 
2

,0
0

0
G

G
G

N
C

-

0
8

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

E
m

p
o

w
e

rm
e

n
t 

N
e

tw
o

rk

in
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 l
e

v
e

l,
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

ili
ty

, 
a

n
d

 q
u

a
lit

y
 

o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 l
o

c
a

l 
n

e
e

d
 a

n
d

 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

o
h

e
s
io

n
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 g

re
a

te
r 

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 i
n

fl
u

e
n

c
e

.

V
o

l 
&

 

C
o

m
m

S
S

C
F

6
5

,0
0

0
3

2
,5

0
0

  
  

  
  

3
4

,0
9

9
 

1
,5

9
9

G
G

A

U
p

 t
o

 5
%

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

t.

N
C

-

0
9

V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 S
e

c
to

r 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
P

ro
v
id

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
ir
d

 s
e

c
to

r 

o
rg

s
, 

to
 s

tr
e

n
g

th
e

n
 i
n

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

, 
p

ro
je

c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t,

 f
in

a
n

c
e

 

a
n

d
 f

u
n

d
ra

is
in

g
, 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
 a

n
d

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 q
u

a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 

V
o

l 
&

 

C
o

m
m

3
5

,0
0

0
1

7
,5

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
1

,4
9

5
 

(1
6

,0
0

5
)

R
R

R

A
g

re
e

d
 R

E
D

 s
ta

tu
s
 w

it
h

 p
ro

je
c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

r,
 

'n
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

w
a

s
 m

a
d

e
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 /

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 /

 o
u

tp
u

ts
' g

iv
e

n
 o

n
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 F

o
rm

. 
 S

p
e

n
d

 o
n

 S
A

P
 p

a
id

 o
u

t 
to

 

H
A

V
C

O
, 

b
u

t 
o

n
ly

 £
1

4
9

5
 s

p
e

n
t 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

o
v
e

rh
e

a
d

s
.

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 a

n
d

 C
a

p
a

c
it

y
 T

o
ta

l
1

,7
9

3
,0

0
0

3
1

0
,1

9
1

  
  

  
2

7
9

,8
6

2
 

(3
0

,3
2

9
)

T
o

ta
l

2
3

,0
1

1
,3

2
2

4
,9

6
7

,2
3

1
4

,2
1

3
,0

6
6

  
 

(7
5

4
,1

6
5

)

L
e

s
s

 C
a

rr
y

 F
o

rw
a

rd
7

6
9

,4
5

9

2
0

0
8

 /
 0

9
 A

B
G

 G
ra

n
t

2
2

,2
4

1
,8

6
3

1
3
 o

f 
1
3

Page 69



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
 –

 L
in

k
in

g
 A

B
G

 a
c
ti

v
it

y
 a

ll
o

c
a
ti

o
n

 t
o

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 

Page 70



 
 
Meeting:  Enterprise Partnership Board       
 
Date:   10 December 2008   
 
Report Title: Tackling Worklessness Update 
 
Report of: Martin Tucker –Regeneration Manager (Employment 

and Skills) 
 
 
Purpose  
 
To update the Enterprise Board on progress in the main programmes tackling 
worklessness in the borough - The Haringey Guarantee, Families into Work 
and the North London Pledge – and report on work underway on developing 
apprenticeships in the Borough. 
 
Summary 
 
The Haringey Guarantee has reviewed performance in Quarters 1&2 and has 
refocused some projects and developed contingencies to ensure full delivery.  
It is forecasting 3334 job entries and 258 sustained jobs in this phase of the 
programme. 
 
Families into Work project launched at end of October and now engaging 
families at nine outreach venues in Northumberland have the first eleven 
families on board.  Added value projects in development. 
 
North London Pledge making steady progress in Haringey with 81 
Employment Support outputs and 31 Skills outputs achieved to date. 
 
A number of initiatives focusing on developing apprenticeships are currently 
under way including work with Homes for Haringey, Building Schools for the 
Future, an ULV Working Group on Public Sector Apprenticeships and a Local 
Authority Planning Group on commissioning 16-19 provision in the borough. 
 
Legal/Financial Implications  
 
N/A 
 
Recommendations 
 

1. That the Board note the developments and progress in each of the 
programmes. 

 
2. That the Board note developments on work on apprenticeships. 

 

Agenda Item 9Page 71



For more information contact: 
 
Name:  Martin Tucker 
Title:     Regeneration Manager 
Tel: 020 8489 2932 
Email address: martin.tucker@haringey.gov.uk 
 
 

Background 

This paper outlines developments and progress on the programmes tackling 
worklessness in Haringey – The Haringey Guarantee, Families into Work and 
The North London Pledge. 
 
It also reports on recent work on apprenticeships in the borough. 

 
The Haringey Guarantee 

 
Economic Regeneration undertook a review of the Haringey Guarantee in 
October 2008 looking at performance to date, challenges and forecast 
delivery to the end of the year.  As performance was low in Quarter 1 of this 
year Economic Regeneration have also developed some contingencies to 
meet any shortfall in outputs.  
 
Some contracts/SLAs have been amended to ensure delivery including 
refocusing the TPCT Working for Health project on engaging longer term IB 
claimants, increased condition management and job entries this year;  refocus 
on the Talent At Work Haringey At Work project with an increase on the 
number of “other workless residents” where they have greater proficiency and 
a slight reduction on stretch targets where they have less expertise – this is 
partly a response to current economic downturn and increasing general 
unemployment in the borough with stretch targets being taken up with 
partners demonstrating better delivery; re-allocated funding for outputs from 
providers with a shortfall to those providers forecasting to overachieve 
focussing on stretch targets; continuing developing partnerships and referral 
routes for residents using Council services and Jobcentre offices with a 
particular focus on IB claimants, JSA claimants and lone parents. 
 
Employment Action Network now fully staffed and operating from 12 
neighbourhood outreach venues across the borough.  Advisers from PCT also 
in 8 GP surgeries and Women Like Us now engaged with 20 primary schools.  
 
As a result of the review and actions above the Haringey Guarantee is now 
forecasting achieving 334 job entries by March 2008 with 258 sustained 
after 13 weeks.  
 
Regeneration Officer in Employment & Skills Team now focussed on 
developing work placement scheme and Guaranteed Interviews within the 
council involving closer working with HR and services.  
 
The Employer Zone will be operational from December 2008 with a formal 
launch in January 2008.  The Employer Zone aims to link Haringey’s 

Page 72



Employers to the full compliment of training, education & skills services on 
offer through the Haringey Guarantee & North London Pledge 
 
Families into Work 
 
Office opened in September with full team in post by late September.  
 
Since the launch of the programme on 24 October the Team have negotiated 
engagement with families in nine outreach venues including North Tottenham 
Customer Service and Tottenham Job Centre Plus.  Awareness raising 
presentations have been delivered to a range of colleagues in the Health 
Centre, Schools, Children Centre and the Job Centre. These sessions have 
generated 6 referrals. There are 4 self referrals and 1 from Northumberland 
Park Hostel.  
 
The team have agreed to work with Northumberland Hostel (a privately owned 
hotel with 143 rooms) to support residents interested in getting into work or 
training.  
 
Partnerships events are being negotiated with Job Centre Plus (In Work 
Better Off 27th November 2008 at NRC with 41 partners of IB Claimants), 
Homes for Haringey – Income Collections, and Neighbourhood Management.  
Work is underway to engage with the families of NEET pupils from 
Northumberland Park Community School from the last academic year.   
 
Further the team are working up added value projects to support families with 
Northumberland Park Community School (rolling programme of skills 
development, work placements and job starts with parents and older siblings 
of students) and Women Like Us who engage parents through local primary 
schools and support them through coaching, training and job brokerage.  
 
A  “New Year, New You” employment support marketing campaign is being 
planned for January 2009 
 
North London Pledge 
 
The North London Pledge can report steady progress in delivery of 
Employment Support and Skills outputs in Haringey. 
 
At the end of Quarter 2 81 Employment Support outputs had been delivered 
against an annual target of 57. 
 
Skills Outputs including childcare qualifications and SIA Licences are being 
delivered in Haringey alongside Basic Skills provision.   To date we have 
achieved in Haringey 20 Basic Skills against an annual profile of 33. A further 
6 Haringey learners are currently on Level 2 courses against an annual profile 
of 8, a further 24 on Basic Skills courses with 30 on Other Skills courses 
which have an annual profile of 23. 
 
Condition Management is being delivered in both Haringey and Waltham 
Forest by Haringey TPCT with Enfield delivering a service through 

Page 73



Occupational Therapy.  A Condition Management Best Practice Seminar is 
being held on 8 December 2008 at St. Ann’s Hospital. 
 
Apprenticeships 
 
A number of initiatives are underway in the borough focussing on developing 
and increasing apprenticeships. 
 
Economic Regeneration have been liaising with Homes for Haringey  and 
BSF around local labour and apprenticeships.   
 
Actions agreed to date:  
 

H4H and the contractors on Decent Homes jointly agreed a number of key 
objectives for the apprenticeship and local training programme.  
• 4-5 Apprentices per construction partner (20-25 in total) 
• Jobs fair/Open Day: March 2009 
• Local training (e.g. RLO’s, site management)  
• Work experience placements for school leavers 
• Regular Contact with local schools  
• Regular contact with Economic Regeneration’s Employment & Skills team 

(LBH) 
• Investigate funding opportunities beyond the programmes funding 
• Develop joint exit strategy and support for graduating apprentices at back 

end of programme 
• Link to DLO Apprenticeship Programme 
• Co-ordinate accreditation with College of NE London 

 
The BSF programme is at an earlier stage of development to H4H, but is adopting 
similar approaches. The first contract to be signed is for ICT managed services to 
schools. The contractor, RM, will provide 10 IT apprenticeships on a rolling basis. 
Broadly this will be one apprentice at each secondary school site. These 
apprenticeships will prioritise young people in Haringey. 
  
At the Haringey sixth form centre, the contractors Wilmott Dixon employed two 
apprentices for construction trades.  
 
All contractors working on the BSF programme will be required to engage 
apprentices on their schemes. Contractors have agreed in principle to offer 
‘work & skills’ development for NVQ level 3 & 4 in the Value Bidding Stages of 
their Contracts.  The BSF programme itself has also employed an apprentice 
for administration.  
 
Homes for Haringey have agreed to develop a joint project plan with BSF in 
regards to the acquisition, training and placement of Apprenticeships.  This 
will build on the current Decent Homes plan.  
 
BSF and Homes for Haringey to agree a joint apprenticeship recruitment drive 
in Spring 2009.  BSF and Homes for Haringey meeting with contractors on 
apprenticeships in December 2008 to progress this.   
 
Promotion of Work Skills through Partnerships and Contracts.  A new 
working group exploring practical ways of expanding work opportunities 

Page 74



through London Borough of Haringey procurement contracts has been 
established involving Procurement, HR, Children’s Services, and Economic 
Regeneration. BSF are joining this group.  The group is looking at work 
experience, jobs and apprenticeships. In the short term the group is looking 
to: 

1) Hold a Sustainable Procurement event to launch ideas and get external 
partners to the discussion table. 

2) Develop detailed scoping exercises following the event to investigate 
and progress the feasibility of introducing sustainable work 
opportunities, placements and apprenticeships for internal and external 
staff through procurement contracts.   

3) A work programme of key milestones and resource implications 
activities is proposed post event for each project and for corporate 
engagement.    
Currently the group is meeting 6-weekly and looking to hold the event 
in Spring 2009 linking to the BSF, Homes for Haringey initiatives. 

 
Employment & Skills Team are included on the new LA Planning Group with 
Children’s Services looking at local authority commissioning of 16-18 
provision with a focus on apprenticeships.  This group will meet regularly to 
begin to steer the new commissioning role for the council. 
 
ULV Working Group on Increasing the role of the Public sector in offering 
Apprenticeships recently established to coordinate activity in the ULV, 
develop an action plan and increase number of partners signed up to the 
Skills Pledge.  This links to the London Councils pan-London boroughs target 
of 2000 apprenticeships starts by 2012 – roughly 60 per borough.  A meeting 
in January 2009 of Leaders and Chief Executives will seek to confirm this 
target. 
 
Appendices  
 
None.  

Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Meeting:  Enterprise Partnership Board       
 
Date:   10 December 2008   
 
Report Title: Business and Enterprise Update 
 
Report of: Karen Galey – Head of Economic Regeneration 
 
 
Purpose  
 
To update the Enterprise Board on Business and Enterprise activities funded 
through the Area Based Grant. 
 
Summary 
 
This report refers to some of the existing projects being supported by the 
Business and Enterprise Team, including Area Based Grant projects including 
Enterprise Week, Town Centres, The Wood Green Film Festival and the 
Olympics. 
 
Legal/Financial Implications 
 
N/A. 
 
 
Recommendations 
 
That the Enterprise Board notes the report. 
 
 
For more information contact: 
 
Name:  Juneed Asad 
Title: Business and Enterprise Manager 
Tel: 020 8489 2694 
Email address: juneed.asad@haringey.gov.uk  
 
 

Agenda Item 10Page 77



UPDATE 
 
The following is an update on some of the work currently being 
undertaken by the Business and Enterprise Team. 
 
1. Area Based Grant 
 
1.1 The programme is currently on target to deliver all outputs and spend and 

current RAG status is green. Nine Business Support Initiatives are now 
running and being delivered by partner organisations across the borough.  
Initiatives are being delivered by Keeping it Simple Training, FinFutures, 
Growing Aspiring People, Haringey Education Business Partnership, Selby 
Trust, Exemplas, Ethiopian Community Centre in the United Kingdom, The 
Crouch End Project and The Open University.   

  
1.2 These initiatives support our project objectives and will achieve the 

following outputs to support business sustainability and growth, encourage 
inward investment, and promote entrepreneurship and self employment 
among our residents.  

 
• 155 existing businesses will receive support to encourage growth and 

sustainability 
• 37 businesses will achieve VAT registration 
• 78 residents will receive support and mentoring towards business start 

up. 
• 10 residents will start their own businesses 
• 150 young people at key stage 4 will benefit from an enterprise training 

programme 
• 1 new traders association will be established in the west of the 

borough. 
• 10 businesses will join existing traders associations 

 
 
1.3 Last quarter’s activity was largely focused on marketing business support 

programmes to residents and businesses to ensure that courses and 
workshops were fully subscribed with most of the delivery taking place 
over the next two quarters. 

 
1.4 Haringey Education Business Partnership has delivered 4 enterprise 

workshops to 36 students at Moselle, Fortismere, Park View Academy and 
Woodside High. Business support programmes being delivered through 
Keeping it Simple Training, Exemplas, Growing Aspiring People, Selby 
Trust and Ethiopian Community Centre in The UK have so far provided 
support to 41 businesses and 26 residents. The programme has already 
achieved one target with 10 new businesses joining a traders association 
in Crouch End through work with the Crouch End Project. The Crouch End 
Project have also organised monthly late night shopping events  to 
promote independent retailers in the area and increase footfall from 
residents who are at work during the day.    

 

Page 78



2. Enterprise Week 
 
2.1 The Business and Enterprise Team supported a number of events during 

National Enterprise Week (17th-23rd November) with almost 400 residents, 
over  60 businesses and 350 young people receiving advice and support 
from business experts and entrepreneurs to help them start their own 
business, grow their existing business and save money during the Credit 
Crunch. One of the highlights of the week was the “Black Boys in Business 
Event” on the 17th of November at the Bernie Grant Centre  where African 
and Caribbean entrepreneurs including Levi Roots, Eddie Nestor and 
Rodney Hinds shared their business secrets with an audience of over 300 
residents and young people. Haringey Education and Business 
Partnership worked with Environmental Services to deliver a week long 
programme of enterprise and recycling workshops to all year 7 pupils at 
Woodside High School.  The Ethiopian Community Centre in the UK 
provided a networking lunch for 46 budding local entrepreneurs, G.A.P 
Network put on the Black Boys in Business Event and a ‘Beat the Credit 
Crunch’ event and The Haringey Business Development Agency ran two 
workshops for Haringey Businesses on Employment Law and 
Procurement. 

 
3. Single Business Account 
 
3.1 Work continues with Customer Services to implement the Single Business 

Account.  The identifiers on the Business Description Schema have been 
matched against data on existing systems and an officer has been 
employed, on a temporary basis, to aggregate this data. Once this data 
has been aggregated we will have the first stage of the SBA in place. This 
is scheduled to be delivered by April 09.  

 
4. Olympics 
 
4.1 Members have agreed to provide £180,000 in Growth Fund monies to 

support Olympic based activity in the borough. £60,000 will be available 
for three years from April 2009 and projects will be set up to ensure that 
Haringey residents, young people and businesses will reap the benefits of 
the Olympics and the Olympic legacy. We are currently working on an 
Olympics Action Plan with other council services and NLSA. 

 
4.2 John Armitt, Head of the Olympic Delivery Authority will be meeting with 

Cllr Amin, Nick Schlittner and Karen Galey on 19th December to discuss 
how Haringey can become involved in Olympic focused activities. 

 
5. Town Centres   
 
5.1 To deliver an action plan that delivers a borough wide and rationalised 

approach to town centre development.  The document is aligned to the key 
themes of people, places and prosperity as set out in the borough’s 
regeneration strategy; ensuring our main and district town centres remain 
competitive and sustainable.  

 
5.2 The action plan will go forward through four workstreams: 

Page 79



 
• Planning and Environment 
• Business, Culture and Events 
• Safe and Clean 
• Town Centre Management 

 
5.3 The draft action plan has been circulated for review, is currently on the 

forward plan and is to be discussed by CAB on December 4th. The draft is 
due for review at Cabinet on December 16th. 

 
5.4 After the town centre action plan agreed at Cabinet, work will commence 

to deliver against actions. 
 
6. Business Pack  
 
6.1 The Business and Enterprise team are currently in the process of 

compiling a business pack, which will be circulated around the borough’s 
businesses in March 2009. The pack will form an easy to use guide for all 
of our businesses providing them with information on council services to 
business and signposting to other relevant external agencies. Copy is 
currently being circulated to the departments whose services are covered 
for their approval. 

 
7. Credit Crunch  
 
7.1 The current number of cases where Small Business Rates relief (SBR) is 

awarded is 2,372. Our property database currently lists 6,899 premises, 
many of which will have rateable values above £10,000 so will not qualify 
for the relief.   

 
7.2 Benefits and Local Taxation intend to issue a mailshot in December 

targeted at all those ratepayers who have not applied for the reduction but 
may qualify, approximately 1,000 businesses. A copy of the application 
form is available on the website, together with some guidance notes.   

 
7.3 A second mailshot, developed in collaboration between Benefits and Local 

Taxation and the Business and Enterprise Team, will be sent out in 
February with the annual rate demand outlining the support available for 
businesses located within the borough. 

 
7.4 Further to this the government has announced in the Pre Budget Report 

that all commercial empty properties with a rateable value below £15k will 
be exempt from business rates. 

 
7.5 Additional support for business includes the postponement of a 1p rise in 

small business corporation tax and the increase of National Insurance 
contribution for all employees and employers by 0.5% from April 2011 (an 
extra £1k a year for people earning £40k).   

 
8. Wood Green Film Festival 
 

Page 80



8.1 The 7th Wood Green International Short Film Festival will take place 23-29 
March 2009 at Cineworld Wood Green & selected local venues, 
showcasing the best new short films from around the world, as well as 
putting the spotlight on our own local talent. 

8.2 We are pleased to continue our long running association with Cineworld 
Wood Green who once again will be our principal screening venue 
throughout the festival. 

 
Fringe Events 

 
8.3 In addition, we will be announcing a programme of one-off screenings, 

events, talks and workshops at selected local venues throughout the 
week, bringing together the best of our local creative communities. 

 
9. Youth Film Festival 
 
9.1 We are delighted that Tottenham’s Fast Forward organisation will be 

returning to run their ever-popular Youth Film Festival for the 3rd 
successive year. The event will take place at Cineworld Wood Green on 
Saturday 28th March. For more information on the Youth Film Festival visit: 
www.fastforwardyouth.com 

 
10. Business Engagement 
 
10.1We plan to get the local Wood Green businesses involved with the Film 

Festival as much as possible. We will be approaching businesses to offer 
them the chance to participate in the festival and to benefit from 
advertising and promotional opportunities. 

 
 
 

Page 81



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Meeting:  Enterprise Board      
 
Date:   10 December 2008   
 
Report Title: No One Written Off: Reforming Welfare to Reward 

Responsibility 
 
Report of: Martin Tucker – Regeneration Manager (Employment 

& Skills)  
 
 
Purpose  
 
To inform the Enterprise Board about the borough’s response to the welfare 
reform Green Paper, ‘No one written off: reforming welfare to reward 
responsibility.’ 
 
Summary 
 
The Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) published No one written off: 
reforming welfare to reward responsibility on 21 July 2008.  This Green Paper 
builds on a welfare reform Green Paper published last year (In work, better 
off: next steps to full employment), which Haringey Council responded to, and 
contains a number of proposals that the Government believes will be crucial in 
achieving the aspiration of an 80 per cent full employment rate.  
 
The Haringey response welcomes the Green Paper proposals but there are 
concerns over the resources available to deliver the proposals and also the 
increased role of benefit sanctions potentially placing extra demands on local 
public services. 
 
The full response is appended to this report. 
 
Legal/Financial Implications 
 
Financial 
 
This report concludes that the Governments Green Paper proposals are 
generally welcomed but highlights’ concerns over the resources available to 
deliver the proposals and also the increased role of benefit sanctions 
potentially placing extra demands on local public services such as 
homelessness and adult social care which could have significant cost 
implications for Councils. Detailed financial implications of relevant proposals 
will need to be assessed as the Government releases full details of the finally 
agreed measures after the consultation process.    
Some of the proposed changes to the welfare system will be taking place as 
early as October 2008, e.g. the child maintenance disregard measure. An 

Agenda Item 12Page 83



exercise is currently underway within Benefits and Local Taxation to prepare 
for these changes and assess any cost implications associated with them, 
including making information available to residents as appropriate.   
 
Legal 
 
This report considers Government proposals in a Green Paper which does not 
give rise to any specific legal duties.  The draft consultation response does 
however highlight the possibility that the Green Paper’s proposals may have 
an impact on the local authority’s duties to support people under the National 
Assistance Act 1948.  Under that Act the local authority has a duty to support 
adults ‘who by reason of age, illness, disability or any other circumstances are 
in need of care and attention which is not otherwise available to them’.  Any 
proposals that would increase the number of people meeting that test would 
have obvious resource implications for the authority as mentioned in the 
financial comments.  The local authority should therefore carefully consider 
and respond to any Bills which may be tabled to implement the government’s 
proposals. 
Recommendations 
 
1. That the Enterprise Board notes the borough’s response to the welfare 

reform Green Paper. 
 
For more information contact: 
 
Name: Ambrose Quashie 
Title: Employment & Skills Policy Officer 
Tel: 020 8489 6914 
Email address: ambrose.quashie@haringey.gov.uk 
  
 

1. Background 

1.1 The Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) published No one written 
off: reforming welfare to reward responsibility on 21 July. The Green paper 
builds on a welfare reform Green Paper published last year (In work, better 
off: next steps to full employment), which the Council responded to, and 
contains a number of proposals which the Government believes will be 
necessary in achieving an 80 per cent full employment rate. 

1.2 The Green Paper details reforms by the Government, which have 
implications across the public, private and third sectors.  The key principle 
behind the Green Paper is to ensure that individuals on out of work 
benefits are involved in an active programme that offers them support but 
expects more in return in terms of them taking the necessary steps to 
return to work.  

 
1.3 Officers from the Economic Regeneration team have co-ordinated the 

development of the response, which takes in contributions from across the 
Council and Haringey Strategic Partnership. 

 
2. The response  

Page 84



 
2.1 The response welcomes the Green Paper proposals with the key elements 

being: 
 

General comments 
 

• Concerns that the increased role of benefit sanctions could leave some 
of our most vulnerable residents destitute with the local authority left 
with support duties under National Assistance legislation. 

• Concerns around the resources available to truly deliver the Green 
Paper proposals 

• Will Job Centre Plus (JCP) have the capacity to take on all of these 
welfare reforms particularly as they are happening in a relatively short 
space of time? 

• Will the current and future state of the economy be able to provide the 
appropriate jobs to deliver the welfare to work targets? 

 
Job Seekers Allowance claimants 
 

• We support work related activity as long as it is structured and the 
outcomes are properly communicated and evaluated. 

• ‘Work For Your Benefit’ is an inappropriate phrase to describe work 
related activity. 

• How will employers be engaged and encouraged to provide work 
related activity opportunities? 

• Prescriptive sub-contracting levels need to be imposed on prime 
employment support contractors to ensure capacity and capability is 
built within smaller and community based organisations. 

 
Drug misusers 
 

• We welcome the approach to support drug users. 
• However, current employment support provision in Haringey is 

currently targeted at ex rather than current misusers. 
• Making disclosure mandatory and linked to enforced treatment may 

well discourage those in significant need making a claim, in particular 
women and parents.   

• A cultural shift will be needed amongst employers to provide 
opportunities to this client group. 

 
Disabled and people with long-term health conditions 
 

• We support mandatory conditions being imposed upon Employment 
Support Allowance (ESA) claimants in relation to training and job 
search, provided the adequate and appropriate resources are in place. 

• An Access to Work fund should be in place to provide reasonable 
adjustments for disabled volunteers. 

• The 104 week linking rule that protects Incapacity Benefit claimants 
when they return to work or training should be revised so: 

� The 28 week qualification condition is halved to 14 weeks 

Page 85



� The requirement to inform JCP of a possible return to benefits 
after a job start should be relaxed or dropped 

 
Skills 
 

• We support the plans to provide a skills health check and training to 
lone parents one their youngest child is aged five.   

• We support the plans for extra benefit payments being made available 
to lone parents who undergo training; this should be made available to 
a lone parent whose youngest child is aged five.  There is a concern 
around training provision, particularly pre-entry level ESOL (with 
childcare). 

 
Child Poverty 
 
• We welcome the plans to fully disregard child maintenance in regards 

to Housing and Council Tax  Benefit from October 2008 and this being 
extended to out of work benefits from April 2010. 

• We support the move to support unemployed partners of benefit 
claimants into work.  

 
Simplifying and streamlining the benefits system 
 

• We support the idea of a simpler system based on a single overarching 
benefit. 

 
Contracting and funding arrangements 
 

• Local authorities should be much more involved in the commissioning 
and monitoring of prime employment support contracts.  This should 
involve joint commissioning plans between local authorities and 
DWP/JCP. 

• We welcome the introduction of the Right to Bid. 
• We are very interested in being a pathfinder area from 2011/12 to test 

out the proposal to fund employment support programmes from future 
benefit savings (AME-DEL) 

 
2.2 The full response is appended to this report. 
 
3. Next steps 
 
3.1The Government is expected to publish its response to the consultation 

before the end of the year and a Bill will be prepared in time for the next 
parliamentary session in 2009. 

 

 

 

Appendix 1: Final Green Paper response 
 
This response to the Green Paper is from Haringey Council and it also 
incorporates the views of members of the Haringey Strategic Partnership. 
 

Page 86



Introduction 
 
Haringey Council welcomes the opportunity to respond to the Government’s 
latest welfare reform Green Paper: “No one written off: reforming welfare to 
reward responsibility.” 
 
Haringey is one of the 33 London Boroughs and represents approximately 
225,000 of the capital’s residents.  Haringey is characterised as being one of 
the most deprived areas in the country and the Indices of Deprivation 2007 
found it to be the 13th most deprived district in England, and the 7th most 
deprived in London1.  Worklessness is a key issue in the borough with over 
50,000 people of working age not in employment.  These levels of 
worklessness are particularly high in the Tottenham parliamentary 
constituency where the out of work benefits claim rate is in the top 4 per cent 
in England and the joint highest in London.  
 

Tackling worklessness is a priority for the Council and to this end we launched 
the Haringey Guarantee in 2006, an innovative programme which brings 
together a diverse range of projects to support those furthest away from the 
labour market into sustained employment. The programme engages 
employers, schools and colleges, skills training providers, employment 
services, job brokers and local communities to develop structured and robust 
pathways to employment for disadvantaged residents.  These include tailored 
vocational education and training, work placements, information, advice, and 
guidance, and guaranteed interviews when applying for employment 
opportunities with partners. In turn we offer employers a Guarantee that the 
programme will provide appropriately trained and committed candidates to fill 
their vacancies.  To date, the programme has engaged over 1,400 residents 
and supported over 190 residents with complex barriers into work, many of 
whom are lone parents and long-term Job Seekers Allowance (JSA) and 
Incapacity Benefit (IB) claimants.  
 
General points 
 
Haringey Council welcomes the proposals in the Green Paper but we would 
like to outline a number of areas that we believe require further consideration 
and improvement, namely: 
 
1. We are concerned that the proposals in the Green Paper to increase the 

role of benefit sanctions in the welfare system could have a 
disproportionate effect on our most vulnerable residents leaving them, at 
worst, destitute.  In such a situation it would be the local authority and 
other public agencies such as the Primary Care Trust who would be left to 
support these people, possibly under National Assistance legislation.  This 
could have particular implications for local authorities if sanctions result in 
our residents being made homeless, for example.  We therefore want the 
Government to ensure that stringent safeguards are in place so that our 
most vulnerable residents are not imposed with sanctions that leave them 
worse off and/or destitute.  In the event of our residents being left worst off 

                                                 
1
 As measured by the Average Ranks measure of deprivation. 

Page 87



or destitute, the Council is not prepared to act as a provider of last resort 
as this will mean that we, in effect, have an unfunded mandate.    

 
2. The Green Paper proposals leave us concerned that legal advice 

organisations such as Citizens Advice Bureaus and local law centres will 
come under increasing pressure.  The plans by the Legal Services 
Commission to move towards a model of case-based single legal advice 
networks for each local area could result in contracts not meeting the 
value  of support as general advice (e.g. benefit advice) may not fall within 
the case based criteria.  The increased number of people requiring general 
benefits advice due to the Green Paper proposals could exacerbate this 
issue and we would urge that these organisations are adequately funded 
to support people who require their advice.   

 
3. We are concerned that the Green Paper offers little in terms of in work 

support for JSA claimants and lone parents.  A recent report by the 
National Audit Office2 highlighted the fact that some 40 per cent of JSA 
claimants who find work make a subsequent claim for benefits within six 
months.  While initiatives such as Train to Gain and the in work credit for 
lone parents are welcome, we feel that more resources need to be 
provided to break the cycle of welfare to work and back to welfare.  This 
could include one to one support which follows the successful Workstep 
model.   

 
4. We welcome the plans to pilot mandatory skills training for JSA claimants 

from this autumn.  However, we are concerned about the resources 
available to deliver increased training provision and the other proposals 
contained in the Green Paper. This is particularly pertinent to inner city 
authorities - such as Haringey - with ethnically and culturally diverse 
populations where the provision of ESOL, for example, is already limited 
(this problem is most acute at pre-entry level (with childcare)).  Where 
provision is so limited this could lead to even longer waiting lists, which will 
be likely to slow a jobseeker’s progression through the system.  We would 
be particularly concerned if any sanctions were to be imposed on 
jobseekers for failure to complete courses for which they are on such a list.  

 
5. The proposals in the Green Paper and also the wider welfare reform 

programme will result in sweeping changes being made in a relatively 
short period of time.  We question whether Job Centre Plus (JCP) will 
have the necessary capacity to be able to take on all of these changes.  
We also want the Government ensure that the professionals providing one 
to one support are adequately trained and skilled. 

 
6. Despite performing strongly over the past 10 years the signs are that 

current economic climate is having a negative impact on the labour 
market.  Recent data show that the number of people who are ILO 
unemployed has hit 1.79 million and the claimant count rose by 104,900 in 
the year to September 2008.  It was also recently announced that 
economic growth is flat for the first time in 16 years with a recession 

                                                 
2
 National Audit Office (2007) Sustainable employment: supporting people to stay in work and 

advance. 

Page 88



seemingly inevitable.  If the labour market and the wider economy 
continue to deteriorate we would like to see assurances that benefit 
claimants are adequately protected.  This would include ensuring 
sanctions are not imposed on claimants who make every effort to find work 
but fail to do so because of a lack of appropriate employment 
opportunities.  This is particularly relevant to groups such as lone parents 
where the availability of flexible employment opportunities is of paramount 
importance. 

 
7. Research by HM Treasury3 and the Greater London Authority4 has clearly 

shown the unique characteristics of worklessness in London with the 
capital having the lowest employment rate out of all regions and countries 
in the UK despite making such a significant contribution to national 
economic growth.  We therefore endorse the desire of the London Skills 
and Employment Board5 for more flexibility in the capital to tackle 
worklessness through initiatives such as joint commissioning to bring 
together funding for adult skills and employment support into a ‘single 
purse.’ 

 
8. Finally, we are concerned that the Impact Assessment published 

alongside the Green Paper does not provide enough information about the 
specific equalities impacts of these proposals.  This is of particular 
relevance to Haringey, which is one of the most diverse areas in the 
country.  Indeed, research by the Office for National Statistics in 2006 
found Haringey to be 4th most ethnically diverse Local Authority District in 
England and Wales6.  

 
Consultation questions 
 
Question 1: How long should ‘work for your benefit’ last at different 
stages in the claim? 
 
Haringey has an enabling measure as part of its Local Area Agreement (LAA) 
that allows Haringey Guarantee participants to access work placements for 6 
weeks, full-time without their benefits being affected.  This has been 
successful in helping people to make the transition from welfare to work.  We 
therefore see six weeks as an acceptable time period for any meaningful work 
related activity to last. 
 
Question 2: How could capacity and capability to provide full-time work 
experience in the community sector be provided and incentivised to 
produce the best employment outcomes for participants? 
 
Haringey has a business base that is largely made up of micro businesses  
The 2006 Annual Business Inquiry found that 79 per cent of the 8,500 

                                                 
3
 HM Treasury (2006) Employment opportunity for all: analysing Labour Market trends in 

London: HM Treasury 
4
 Meadows, P (2006) Working Paper 15: Worklessness in London – explaining the difference 

between London and the UK: Greater London Authority 
5
 London Skills and Employment Board (2008) London’s Future – The Skills and Employment 

Strategy for London 2008-2013 
6
 Dobbs, J et al. (2006) Focus on Ethnicity and Religion: Office for National Statistics 

Page 89



businesses in Haringey have four employees or less.  Other than the Council 
and Teaching Primary Care Trust we believe that there are few organisations 
currently with the capacity and resources to take on local placements and 
spend time developing their skills and future employability.  The Council has 
shown its commitment to help tackle worklessness through the Haringey 
Guarantee and also by signing up to the Local Employment Partnership and 
the Skills Pledge. 
 
Feedback from our voluntary and community sector partners overwhelmingly 
highlighted fair access to funding as a means of building capacity and 
capability. 
 
For these reasons we are encouraged to see the Government’s focus on the 
voluntary sector delivering full-time work experience.  However, we would like 
to take this opportunity to express our concern over moves to issue larger and 
longer contracts for employment support programmes, as articulated in the 
Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) recently published Commissioning 
Strategy, which will inevitably benefit larger providers.  Although there is a 
commitment to ensure that prime contractors sub-contract with local providers 
our recent experience with the roll-out of Pathways to Work in Haringey 
suggests that the theory is far removed from the reality on the ground.    
 
So, we would like to see the Government go further in this commitment by 
setting a level at which prime contractors must sub-contract with the voluntary 
sector and other local providers.  Although this goes against the principles 
outlined in the Commissioning Strategy around prescription, our experience 
has left us with the firm belief that this is the only way to ensure that the 
voluntary sector is not marginalised by this new contracting model.  This, in 
our opinion, will help the voluntary sector to deliver successful employment 
outcomes, whether it is through skills development, direct job brokerage or 
full-time work experience.  
 
As well as this we want to see local authorities and local strategic 
partnerships much more involved in the commissioning and monitoring of 
contracts and sub-contracts such as those issued for the forthcoming Flexible 
New Deal.  This will help to ensure that local knowledge is adequately used 
when deciding upon contract holders and in ensuring that they develop 
appropriate partnership and sub-contractual arrangements. 
 
Of course, access to fair funding is not the only issue and our voluntary and 
community sector partners identified other forms of support that could help 
build capability and capacity.  These include:  
 
• Clear recognition of third sector organisations being employers. 
• Workforce development – managers and staff will need this support to 

ensure that candidates get the best possible outcomes from their period of 
work related activity. 

• Business development. 
• Supporting the implementation of systems that will be used to aid delivery. 
 
Question 3: Is full-time ‘work for your benefit’ as an alternative to a 
sanction of loss of benefit for repeated non-compliance with work 

Page 90



search requirements an effective option for some jobseekers?  How 
should it be targeted? 
 
Work experience is seen as an integral element of the Haringey Guarantee in 
building an effective pathway from welfare to work.  In our experience, this is 
only truly beneficial to the individual if it is structured, relevant and the 
outcomes to be achieved are clearly defined at the outset and evaluated upon 
completion.  These outcomes have to be jointly agreed by the participant, the 
work placement provider and the host organisation.  If this is a model that 
‘work for your benefit’ will reflect then we believe it can be used as an 
alternative to a sanction of loss of benefit.  However, we question the legality 
of mandating a benefit claimant to undertake work related activity if they will 
not be receiving at least the minimum wage, as highlighted in a Personnel 
Today article last year7. 
 
The quality of a participant’s initial contact with an employment adviser is 
probably the most critical element of the support they will receive.  It is here 
that the barriers to employment will be identified and an action plan to 
overcome these barriers is developed.  If this barrier identification is done 
thoroughly and correctly then it should become quite clear whether a work 
placement would be beneficial to the individual concerned.  On this basis, 
work placements should be targeted at people where it has been assessed  
that it will be beneficial to them. 
 
Although the Green Paper announced that the Government “will contract with 
public, private and voluntary providers to test out a number of models of 
mandatory full-time activity”, as in our response to question 2, we have 
reservations about where meaningful full-time activity opportunities will be 
sourced from.  While initiatives such as the Jobs and Skills Pledges are 
welcome there is nothing in the Green Paper about how employers will be 
engaged and get productive placements.   
 
To ensure that work placements are meaningful and that participants are not 
left open to exploitation we would like to see the Government working with 
Trade Unions/Union Learning Representatives.  Additionally, the good 
practice that is identified through this process should be shared with small 
employers and the voluntary and community sector.  
 
We believe that for work placements to be successful the benefits have to be 
effectively communicated to the participant and employer.  We therefore view 
‘work for your benefit’ as an inappropriate term for this support as the danger 
is that it will be viewed as a penalty rather than something that provides 
genuine benefits in moving someone from welfare to work; the phrase work 
related activity is more appropriate.  We also question whether employers will 
be willing to provide genuine work related activity opportunities where it is 
viewed as a punitive measure.  
 

                                                 
7
 See Personnel Today (2007) Firms failing to pay students on internships and work-

experience placements minimum wage break the law: 
http://www.personneltoday.com/articles/2007/01/22/38977/firms-failing-to-pay-students-on-
internships-and-work-experience-placements-minimum-wage-break-the.html 
 

Page 91



Finally, we would like to highlight here our concerns about the proposed 
requirement for claimants to sign on weekly or even daily.  In our opinion this 
has the potential to alienate customers and make them more hostile and 
reluctant to accept support.  
 
Question 4: What penalties do you think would be most effective to 
deter more people from committing benefit fraud? 
 
The current system, at least in relation to Housing and Council Tax Benefit, 
allows for two options - financial penalties and court proceedings.  It is 
generally accepted by benefit practitioners that any action beyond this would 
be considered highly emotive and political. 
 
The financial penalty is known as an ‘Administration penalty’. This is a ‘levy’ 
that amounts to 30 per cent of the overpayment that has arisen due to fraud, 
and is an alternative to instigating a prosecution for fraud. However, at 
present, an admin penalty can only be imposed with the consent of the 
claimant.  By agreeing to pay the admin penalty, the claimant will not be 
prosecuted, and thus avoid action that could ultimately lead to a criminal 
conviction.  
  
Although benefit fraud is widely publicised, the existence of the Administration 
penalty is not widely known. We would therefore like to highlight the need to 
increase the effectiveness of penalties as a deterrent, by raising awareness of 
the sanctions available and the amounts of penalties that can be imposed.  
 
Finally, an option that has been suggested by some practitioners is a fixed 
penalty scheme with graduated levels according to the amount of the 
overpayment e.g.: 
 
Overpayment     Penalty 
£1-£150             £50 
£151-£500         £100 
 
However, in view of the high levels of rent and living costs in London, and the 
fact it does not take into account an individual’s ability to pay, we would have 
to give careful consideration to the impact of such a change before supporting 
such a proposal. 
 
Question 5: Do you think it would be appropriate to reduce or withdraw 
entitlement after a first [benefit fraud] offence?  How long should the 
sanction period be? 
 
Withdrawal of benefit is an option that we would be uncomfortable with and 
would not wish to consider.  We believe this action would be disproportionate 
and worsen poverty, affecting the poorest within our community. 
 
Question 6: Do you agree with the proposed approach for identifying 
problem drug use?  How should it be implemented?  Do you think that 
everyone claiming a working-age benefit should be required to make a 
declaration of whether or not they use certain specified drugs? 
 

Page 92



Once ready for work, problematic drug users, by which we mean those using 
class A drugs in a way that is leading to social and economic dysfunction, 
face significant barriers to gaining employment.  We therefore welcome the 
proposed increase in specialist support to be offered to drug users who are 
ready to find work.  
 
Because many drug users have poor work histories, skills gaps and criminal 
records we agree that in many instances it could be advantageous for them to 
declare that they have a drug problem or a history of problematic use if this 
resulted in increased support and guidance to help break down barriers to 
employment.  However, our experience to date in Haringey is that mainstream 
employment advisers have not been able to work effectively with this group. 
This has meant that Haringey’s Drug and Alcohol Action Team (DAAT) has 
commissioned its own specialist entry to employment service for people who 
have received treatment for a drugs misuse problem – Kinesis.   We are also 
aware of a lack of provision around employment support for current users.   
Moreover, we are concerned that people providing support to this client group 
do not have the necessary skills to do so and would ask that the National 
Treatment Agency work with local authorities in identifying appropriate 
providers/staff to do this work. 
 
While we welcome the plans to support people with an identified drugs 
dependency we do have serious concerns about the resources available to 
deliver the drug treatment places that will be needed to successfully deliver 
these proposals. 
 
We agree that employment advisers should be skilled in signposting drug 
uses to treatment, our concern is that non problematic drug users who are not 
suitable for structured treatment, will be identified within this process.  The 
“strengthened guidance” for JCP advisers also needs to include other forms of 
support such as training and are concerned that the necessary resources will 
not be made available to ensure that JCP advisers are equipped with the 
necessary skills to identify and help overcome the complex barriers to 
employment that people with a dependency on crack cocaine and/or opiates 
have.  
   
In terms of disclosure being mandatory and non disclosure leading to 
sanctions, we would draw attention to the fact that drug users have good 
reason not to wish to disclose information on an activity which is illegal and 
often seen as immoral, in full knowledge that disclosure to employers can lead 
to further barriers to employment; as a minimum JCP would need to agree to 
keep this information confidential.   
 
Making disclosure mandatory and linked to enforced treatment may well 
discourage those in significant need making a claim, in particular women and 
parents.  This could result in escalation of drug use and offending.  For many 
of our clients family relationships have broken down and a lot of our work is 
around encouraging active parenting; being directed into work too soon may 
further impede this. 
 
The Green Paper suggests that alcohol misuse may be included in this 
proposed system in the future.  We would question the rationale for the 

Page 93



decision to delay as in our experience alcohol misuse is a significant cause of 
worklessness and a barrier to employment. 
 
Question 7: What elements should an integrated system of drug 
treatment and employment support include?  Do you agree that a 
rehabilitation plan would help recovering drug users to manage their 
condition and move towards employment? 
 
Access to employment is a key element in our delivery of effective treatment 
to drug users and reintegration back into society.  Currently funding for this 
falls to the DAAT and we are increasingly unable to match resources to need.  
We would like to see more of this work mainstreamed – but with the 
understanding that many of this client group will never have been in paid 
employment and/or have literacy and self esteem issues.  These will need to 
be worked on before they can begin to think of entering employment.  Linked 
to this are the concerns we expressed in our response to question 6 around 
the resources available to support this particular group. 
 
We would see one element of an integrated system of drug treatment and 
employment support being flexibility in signing on. In their early stages of 
treatment many of our service users are physically unwell, emotionally 
vulnerable and have multiple appointments, we would welcome flexibility and 
support from JCP around their ability to attend appointments, possibly 
arranging co-location of signing on with treatment. 
 
Other elements that should be included in the system are educational and 
work related training, skills development in gaining a job and retaining a job, 
support to volunteer and work with employers to offer meaningful employment 
opportunities.   
 
Housing is also an issue for many of our clients and an essential element in 
being ready for work.     
 
A rehabilitation plan would be an excellent opportunity to prepare those 
engaged in treatment for employment.  However, substance misuse is a 
chronic condition and safeguards for failure/relapses need to be built in.  
 
Rehabilitation plans need also to consider the different aims our clients have 
as some will not be looking to abstinence.  In our experience those planning 
to be maintained on prescribed medication also face barriers to employment.  
 
Our concerns within the Green Paper are in ensuring the rehabilitation plan 
and any sanctions are not targeted too soon.  The Green Paper suggests 
linking Required Assessments and Drug Rehabilitation Requirement (DRR) 
attendance to sanction. In our experience those at the engagement end of 
treatment (1-12 weeks), which includes Required Assessments, are not in a 
position to significantly explore employment opportunities.  Their immediate 
needs are treatment, housing and financial management.  Sanctions could at 
this stage increase social exclusion and intensify criminal behaviour; it is also 
likely to be family and carers who indirectly bare the cost of a sanction.  
 

Page 94



In addition to skills deficits, our clients find it difficult to gain employment 
because they have poor work histories so lack the required references and 
many have criminal records. What they require is access to employers who 
are willing to offer them the opportunity to work and obtain a work history, a 
foot in the door to employment, backed up by support for both the employer 
and the employee.  Support may be needed for a significant period of time 
and Haringey’s DAAT commission a work placement officer through Kinesis to 
do just this.  It will also need to be from a provider who has knowledge of the 
client group.  In addition, a huge cultural shift in the attitudes of employers to 
drug users is needed. We would like to see central government lead the way 
on this.  Working with the employers who are signed up to the Jobs and Skills 
Pledges would be a start. 
 
Finally, we feel more could be done around support for self employment 
opportunities.  Many drug users have skills that may require capital 
investment.  The issue of self employment is applicable to all the groups that 
the proposals in this Green Paper aim to target. 
 
Question 8: When is the right time to require ESA claimants to take a 
skills health check? 
 
We believe that ESA claimants who, through the WCA, are part of the Work 
Related Activity Group should be required to take a skills health check at the 
start of their claim as long as these can be carried out in adequate and 
appropriate settings. 
 
For people who are in the Support Group we believe that voluntary 
engagement with a skills health check is appropriate. 
 

Page 95



Question 9: Should ESA customers be required to attend training in 
order to gain the identified skills they need to enter work? 
 
We believe that ESA claimants who are in the Work Related Activity Group 
should be required to attend training in order to gain the identified skills they 
need to enter work.  For people who are in the Support Group skills training 
should be voluntary. 
 
However, it should be recognised that not all ESA or JSA claimants will suffer 
from a lack of experience and/or low skills and therefore may not need to 
undertake skills training.  Leading on from this, we would also like to see a 
concrete commitment from the Government that for highly skilled and 
experienced claimants they will not be forced into inappropriate or entry level 
employment in the face of possible benefit sanctions.  
 
We would also like to reiterate our concerns over the resources available to 
deliver adequate and appropriate training opportunities as articulated in 
general point 3. 
 
Question 10: In view of the need to help lone parents develop the skills 
they need to find work, are we right to require lone parents to have a 
skills health check and training as a condition of receiving benefit? 
 
There are a significant number of lone parents in Haringey, many of whom 
require employment and training support.  The 2001 Census found there to be 
over 9,000 lone parents with at least one dependent child in the borough, 62 
per cent of whom were not in employment.  The latest DWP Benefit statistics 
show that there are currently at least 6,660 lone parents claiming Income 
Support.  Haringey also has a LAA stretch target to support 110 lone parents 
into sustained employment by March 2010.   
 
We therefore support the plans to provide a skills health check and training to 
lone parents one their youngest child is aged five.  If done positively it can be 
used to improve the self esteem of a parent.  However, the checks will have to 
be done carefully and by advisers who are adequately trained to recognise 
personal issues that lone parents may have but are unwilling to discuss.  Also, 
there will be an issue with adequate and appropriate training as set out in 
general point 3.  Additionally, more lone parents entering training will create 
even greater demand for quality childcare places.  Extra childcare places 
need to be planned for to ensure that lone parents are able to take up training 

opportunities.  The recent announcements about the ‘Free childcare for 
training and learning to work’ programme and the plans to provide free 
nursery places for all two year olds are therefore welcomed by the Council 
and its partners.  
 
Question 11: Should we pilot extra benefit payments for lone parents in 
return for training, and if so, when the youngest child is what age? 
 
We support the proposal to pilot extra benefit payments for lone parents in 
return for training.  In line with our response to question 10 we believe this 
should be made available for lone parents with a youngest child aged 5.   
 

Page 96



Although lone parents on the New Deal for Lone Parents programme can 
access a £15 training allowance we believe more should be done and would 
like to see these extra benefit payments directed towards expenses such as 
childcare costs.   
 
Question 12: Are there any other circumstances where customers 
cannot get the skills they need to enter employment under present and 
planned arrangements? 
 
Our concerns around this issue are covered in general point 3 and our 
response to question 10.  We would also like to highlight here the importance 
of improved careers advice to the individual and we are encouraged by the 
imminent pilot roll-out of the Adult Advancement and Careers Service. 
 
Question 13: How might we build on the foundations of the current rules 
so that they do not discourage unemployed people from volunteering as 
a deliberate back-to-work strategy, while retaining a clear focus on 
moving off welfare into paid employment? 
 
The Haringey Guarantee successfully provides volunteering opportunities and 
we believed that if, like work placements, they are structured, relevant and the 
outcomes to be achieved clearly defined at the outset and evaluated upon 
completion then they can be used successfully as part of a back to work 
strategy. 
 
Volunteering can be an essential first step to returning to work for people with 
long-term health conditions and we are particularly concerned about the lack 
of support available to help disabled people take up volunteering 
opportunities.  For this reason we fully support the calls to create a scheme 
similar to Access to Work to fund reasonable adjustments for disabled people. 
 
We also have concerns about the capacity to deliver meaningful volunteering 
opportunities as outlined in our responses to questions 2 and 3 around work 
related activity. 
 
Question 14: Do you agree that the WCA and WFHRA should be re-
focused to increase work-related support? 
 
We believe in the notion that anyone who can work should work, which fits 
with the principles and spirit of the social model of disability.  On this basis we 
agree that the WCA and WFHRA should be re-focused to increase work 
related support.  However, the quality of support will be critical, particularly in 
relation to helping stay in work.  Moreover, supporting people with a disability 
or long-term health condition into work will require significant resources and 
we are concerned that they won’t be adequately provided given the current 
economic climate and the tight settlement the DWP received in the last 
Comprehensive Spending Review.  This point is particularly pertinent when 
considering the proposal to reassess all exiting IB claimants under the WCA 
between 2009-2013.  There are currently (February 2008) 11,940 IB 
claimants in Haringey and to deliver to this timescale will have huge resource 
implications. 
 

Page 97



As well as the WCA and WFHRA we would also like to highlight the 
importance of Condition Management Programmes (CMPs), which were only 
given a cursory mention in the Green Paper.  Through the Haringey 
Guarantee the Haringey Teaching Primary Care Trust (HTPCT) delivers a 
successful CMP, which is assisting long-term IB claimants into work and 
follows the model of the Pathways to Work pilots, where CMPs were delivered 
by Primary Care Trusts; the support delivered through the HTPCT also 
includes engagement in GP surgeries.  We are concerned that the national 
rollout of Pathways has resulted in prime contractors not following this 
successful model, which we believe could have a negative impact on the 
Pathways programme.  
 
The Sainsbury Centre for Mental Health, in a recent briefing8, highlighted how 
people with a mental health condition are less likely to be employed than any 
other group of disabled people.  The combination of unemployment and 
mental ill health can also lead to a range of social problems such as debt and 
social isolation.  In Haringey, approximately 45 per cent of the 11,940 IB 
claimants in the borough have a mental health condition. 
 
For these reasons, we are encouraged by the Government’s intention to 
provide more support to people with a mental health condition.  Indeed, 
Haringey Teaching PCT is a transitional site for the Improving Access to 
Psychological Therapies (IAPT) programme, and the TPCT has already 
invested a considerable amount of funding to take this forward. However we 
must ensure that employment support provision is integrated with NHS 
provision and that it can operate effectively alongside IAPT practitioners and 
within the Primary Care setting, which is currently working to the 
“Implementing Care Closer to Home” agenda, as outlined in the White Paper 
“Our Health, Our Care, Our Say” (2006). This measure provides an 
opportunity to demonstrate effective implementation of cross governmental 
initiatives. 
 
We are also very supportive of piloting the Fit for Work service. There is a gap 
in work retention services, and we welcome any initiative that will support 
people with health related problems to stay in work or to return quickly to work 
whenever they are able.  
 
Question 15: What expectations should there be of people undertaking 
the personalised support we will now be offering in the Work Related 
Activity Group?  Could this include specific job search? 
 
In line with the Government’s commitment to achieve equality for disabled 
people by 2025, which we fully support, we believe that the expectations on 
ESA claimants in the Work Related Activity Group should include specific job 
search. 
 
However, we would like to question the personalised support that will be 
offered to ESA claimants in the Work Related Activity Group, for which there 
was very little detail in the Green Paper.  We presume that CMPs will play an 
integral role in this personalised support and we have articulated our concerns 

                                                 
8
 Sainsbury Centre for Mental Health (2007) Briefing 33: Mental health and employment 

Page 98



about how CMPs are being handled within the national rollout of Pathways to 
Work in our response to question 14. 
 
Whilst the Green Paper commits to the WFHRA being performed at regular 
intervals we would to highlight the importance of this being available to people 
with fluctuations conditions. 
 
In relation to job search we would also like to highlight the importance of 
flexible employment opportunities, such as part-time work, which many people 
with a health condition will need access to.  Lack of part-time employment 
opportunities are also known to be a particular issue in London.  For this 
reason, as well the issues articulated in general point 5 and our response to 
question 9, we would like to see the Government doing much more work with 
employers (especially those signed up to the Jobs and Skills Pledges) to 
ensure that more part-time, flexible and appropriate employment opportunities 
are made available to disabled people and people with a long-term health 
condition.  
 
Question 16: How can we make Access to Work more responsive to the 
needs of claimants with fluctuating conditions – including mental health 
conditions? 
 
We accept that making Access to Work more responsive to the needs of 
claimants with fluctuating conditions is a difficult issue to tackle.  We would 
suggest that the role of social enterprises and in particular, social firms can 
play an important role here.  A social firm based on an agency model that 
takes on disabled people with fluctuating conditions to perform certain tasks 
as and when needed could make it easier for these people to access work 
opportunities and also to determine what reasonable adjustments Access to 
Work could fund.  The added benefit would be the disabled person having an 
employer that is sympathetic to their condition.  We would therefore like to see 
the Government do more to support social enterprise and social firm 
development in this area. 
 
To help people with fluctuating conditions stay in work we would also like to 
see Access to Work funding support such as personal assistants in the 
workplace. 
 
For people with common mental health problems we would like to see all 
Access to Work assessors given mental health first aid training.  This would 
help to increase the confidence people have in the Access to Work 
programme and also allow the assessors to better direct people to appropriate 
support.  
 

Page 99



Question 17: What additional flexibilities in the system or forms of 
support would claimants with multiple and complex problems need to 
enable them to meet the new work-focused requirements in the Green 
Paper? 
 
We fully support the 104 week linking rule that protects IB claimants when 
they return to work or training.  However, we feel that this rule needs to be 
strengthened to improve work incentives.  So, we would like to see the 28 
week qualification condition halved to 14 weeks and the requirement to inform 
JCP of a possible return to benefits after a job start relaxed or dropped 
altogether. 
 
Question 18: What are the key features of an action planning approach 
that would best support employees and employers to take the steps for 
the employee to make a swifter return to work? 
 
We believe that a phased approach will be key in ensuring that an action 
planning approach works.  Some of the key features will include: 
 
• The availability of occupational health support 
• The option for the employee to take on lighter or changed job duties, which 

could include part-time working. 
• Possible redeployment if an individual is assessed as not being able to 

carry out the duties they were doing before they fell ill. 
• Support for line managers to help them understand and accommodate 

people returning to work. 
  
Question 19 
 
No question 19. 
 
Question 20: What approach might be suitable to assist partners of 
benefit claimants who can work into employment? 
 
We support the move to support unemployed partners of benefit claimants 
into work and we also fully support the child maintenance disregard that will 
apply to Housing and Council Tax Benefit from October 2008 and the plans to 
extend this disregard to out of work benefits from April 2010.   
 
We have recently established a project called Families Into Work project in 
Northumberland Park – one of the country’s most deprived wards with the 
highest JSA claim rate in London – which aims to tackle generational 
worklessness by initially supporting 100 families over a three year period.  In 
our Children’s Centres we are also planning to start information sessions on 
issues such as childcare, training and jobs to engage partners.   
 
However, we do believe that some caution should be exercised in the 
proposed approach as there are vulnerable groups who could be 
disproportionately affected.  These include women claiming benefits who are 
victims of domestic violence and/or prostitution; children who are in these 
families could also be adversely affected.   
 

Page 100



We also feel that the Government needs to go further to support employment 
amongst couples irrespective of whether they claim out of work benefits.  The 
Institute for Public Policy Research published a study of the low-paid and the 
working poor earlier this year9.  One of the main recommendations from the 
study was to increase work incentives for second earners in a couple through 
a Personal Tax Credit Allowance (PTCA).  The PTCA would allow both adults 
in eligible families to each earn £100 a week before their entitlement to 
Working Tax Credits (WTC) started to be withdrawn.  Under the PTCA a 
family earning minimum wage would be £36 a week (or £1,872 a year) better 
off if a second adult moved into part-time work than under the current system.  
The report also called for WTC for couples with families to be increased by 
one third to £91.31 a week (or £4,748 a year) from, reflecting the higher 
poverty line for this family type.  It was estimated that this reform would 
benefit 1.6 million families and lift 200,000 children out of poverty, at a cost of 
£1.6 billion.  We endorse this approach to assist partners of benefit claimants 
who can work into employment, by making work more attractive, and to also 
help tackle child poverty.  
 
Question 21: What are the next steps in enabling disabled people, 
reliably and easily, to access an individual budget if they want one?  
Should they include legislation to give people a right to ask for a budget 
or will the other levers the Government has got prove sufficient?  What 
are the safeguards that should be built in?  How can this be done? 
 
Haringey Council is implementing a “a 3 year transforming social care 
programme” in response to “Putting People First” a concordat between central 
and local government and its partners to develop personalisation in which 
there will be pilot projects specifically designed to develop self assessment, 
individual budgets and self directed support plans, service user group by 
service use group. The programme will include consultation with stakeholders. 
The programme will ensure roll out of individual budgets and self directed 
support, service user group by service user group, over the next 3 years. 
Adult Social Care would welcome the involvement of the DWP in this 
programme locally.     
 
The question about safeguards depends on what is to be safeguarded i.e. : 
 
• Vulnerable citizens rights to a service  
• Budgetary limits  
• Protection of the vulnerable citizen from abuse  
 
All of these will have to be brought into balance.  
 
The question of a right to an individual budget will depend on the national 
review of eligibility currently being undertaken by the Commission for Social 
Care Inspection (CSCI). At the moment the right to an individual budget would 
only be available to those service users deemed to meet the fair access 
criteria of having critical or substantial needs in Haringey. It is thought that 
CSCI might widen the criteria because of the Department of Health’s 

                                                 
9
 Cooke, G. and Lawton, K. (2008) Working out of poverty, a study of the low-paid and the 

'working poor': Institute for Public Policy Research 

Page 101



commitment to prevention and because the current system does not work in 
the vulnerable citizens interest. 
 
We also believe that a key part of enabling disabled people is giving them 
good advice and information about the quality of provision available to them.  
This should be available before they take up their service and while they are 
receiving this service as well.  For this reason we would like to see the 
development of a ‘Which’ type good providers list; to make this locally specific 
it should be quality monitored by Local Authorities.  
 
Question 22: Is a system based on a single overarching benefit the right 
long-term aspiration?  How could a simpler system be structured so as 
to meet varying needs and responsibilities? 
 
We support the idea of a simpler system based on a single overarching 
benefit.  In such a system, assessing need will be critically important in 
helping to meet need, accommodating responsibilities and also determining 
the conditionality that needs to be attached to the receipt of benefit. 
 
For this to work, it could be possible to have a system similar to the 
forthcoming Employment Support Allowance, for example, where needs, 
responsibilities and conditionality are determined based on the group a 
claimants is assessed as being in. 
 
Question 23: Would moving carers currently on IS onto JSA be a 
suitable way of helping them to access the support available to help 
combine caring with paid work or preparing for paid work? 
 
Carers are an integral part of our society and make a significant contribution 
to our economy.  Research by Leeds University10, on behalf of Carers UK, 
found that in 2007 carers saved the economy approximately £87 billion a 
year.  This contribution needs to be clearly recognised in the face of possible 
stricter work search conditions being applied to carers receiving benefits.  
 
Nevertheless, we believe that moving carers from IS to ESA as opposed to 
JSA could be a more effective way of helping them to access the support 
available to combine caring with paid work or preparing for paid work.  
However, this will need to be based on a thorough and adequate assessment 
if this is to work effectively and a safeguard that carers will not be compelled 
to have work search conditions attached to the receipt of benefit if the results 
of the assessment deem it inappropriate.  There will also have to safeguards 
introduced to ensure that carers receive some temporary financial assistance 
once their caring responsibilities come to an end. 
 
It is also important that carers have the resources invested in them to support 
their aspirations beyond their caring role.  This support should include respite 
from caring responsibilities to better enable them to fulfil their aspirations.  At 
this point, we would like to reiterate the issues identified in general point 3 and 
our responses to question 15 around training and employment opportunities. 

                                                 
10

 Buckner, L and Yeandle, S (2007) Valuing carers – calculating the value of unpaid care: 
Carers UK 

Page 102



 
Question 24: How might we reform Bereavement Benefit and IIDB to 
provide better support to help people adjust to their new circumstances 
while maintaining the work focus of the modern welfare state? 
 
No specific comments. 
 
Question 25: Are lump sum payments a good way of meeting people’s 
needs?  Do they give people more choice and control?  Could we make 
more use of them? 
 
No specific comments. 
 
Question 26: What information would providers need to make the Right 
to Bid effective?  How would the evaluation process need to work to 
give providers confidence that their ideas would be evaluated fairly and 
effectively?  How do we get the balance right between rewarding those 
who come up with new ideas and the obligation to tender projects? 
 
We welcome the Right to Bid proposal as a way of encouraging and 
promoting innovation in helping people back to work. 
 
To support providers who wish to access funding from the Right to Bid we 
believe that various information will need to available, namely: 
 
• Improved labour market statistics to give a clearer picture of the scale and 

nature of worklessness in local areas.  Benefit claimant data can provide 
useful information at a borough or sub-borough level but what is really 
needed is improvements to the Labour Force Survey/Annual Population 
Survey to ensure that the results derived for local areas are more robust.  
This can be principally done by boosting the target sample in London 
boroughs, which is currently 450 economically people compared to 510 
economically residents in Local Authority Districts outside of London.  
Given the unique complexities of worklessness in London we feel that this 
London sample should be at least 510 with a strong case for it being 
increased further. 

• Guidelines on the levels of geography which apply to the Right to Bid. 
• Guidance on the duration of successful projects for planning purposes. 
• Any lower or upper limits on the amount of money that organisations can 

access. 
• Any requirements around match funding.  
 
We feel the evaluation process will need the following to give providers 
confidence that their ideas would be evaluated effectively and fairly: 
 
• Upfront and transparent information about how proposals will be evaluated 

and/or scored.  This could include factors such as expectations around 
outcomes to be achieved, the target groups to be supported, value for 
money and, importantly, how it adds value and links to existing provision.  

• The option to request evidence that proposals have been robustly tested 
against an evaluation framework. 

 

Page 103



In terms of getting the balance right between rewarding those who come up 
with new ideas and the obligation to tender projects, we feel that provision 
such as Pathways to Work, the forthcoming Flexible New Deal and European 
co-financing arrangements will meet this obligation.  The Right to Bid could 
therefore be used as a small fund used solely to test out innovative ideas. 
 
Question 27: What would the processes around contributing to 
commissioning and performance management look like in a range of 
different partnership areas?  How might they best be managed to 
achieve the desired outcomes? 
 
We welcome the Government’s desire to include local areas much more in the 
design and delivery of mainstream employment programmes.  Indeed the 
Haringey Guarantee has already been very successful in adding value to what 
is already being delivered by mainstream providers in the borough.  We are 
also now delivering the North London Pledge, in partnership with Enfield and 
Waltham Forest Councils, which is helping to support mainstream activity 
across the Upper Lee Valley. 
 
To ensure that the planned ‘national spine’ is supported by appropriate local 
provision adequate partnership arrangements need to be established.  Again, 
this is something that is happening in Haringey where the Council’s 
relationship with JCP is strong.  However, more can be done and we feel that 
consideration should be given to co-commissioning arrangements and a fully 
devolved model being delivered though Local Strategic Partnerships as well 
as Multi Area Agreements and other sub-regional arrangements.  The 
experience and expertise we have acquired through the Haringey Guarantee 
have given us a firm belief that we can meet the challenge of co-
commissioning and full devolution. 
 
A major issue in relation to multi area working is around the lack of 
consistency with sub-regional boundaries.  For this ‘national spine’ to work we 
feel that there needs to be more consistency across national and regional 
government in terms of recognised sub-regional boundaries.  
 
We would like to see joint commissioning plans developed between DWP/JCP 
and local areas.  This will help to ensure that provision is meeting local 
priorities and is complementary rather than conflicting.  Where possible we 
would also like to see joint monitoring arrangements established as well.  This 
is particularly relevant to the work done through the Haringey Guarantee as 
we are not allowed to engage with residents who are already on mainstream 
employment programmes.  However, whether someone is on a mainstream 
programme is not always as clear cut as it may seem and in our experience, 
disputes have arisen over this very issue.  More solid partnerships through 
joint commissioning and monitoring would help to prevent this.  
 
Question 28: How could a link be made to the radical proposals for the 
pilots, which seek to reward providers for outcomes out of the benefit 
savings they achieve? 
 
We welcome the proposal to reward providers for outcomes out the benefit 
savings they achieve.  Indeed, as part of the negotiations for our first LAA we 

Page 104



unsuccessfully requested an enabling measure to allow us to keep a 
proportion of the benefit savings achieved through helping our residents back 
into work.  However, we would like to caution that this needs to be carefully 
implemented.  There will not be any savings until people start to come off 
benefits and this won’t happen until extra support is brought into the system.  
There is also an assumption that people coming off benefits will not be at 
least equally replaced in the welfare system.  
 
Haringey now has a LAA target to reduce the out of work benefits claim rate 
by 4.7 percentage points by 2010/11.   We also have stretch targets to 
support 110 lone parents, 120 long-term JSA claimants, and 180 long-term IB 
claimants into sustained employment by March 2010.  All of these targets 
have reward payments attached to them.  We would like to see a situation 
where these reward payments are directly related to the benefit savings that 
are achieved through us moving residents from welfare to work.  Currently 
payments are made upon achieving at least 60 per cent of our individual 
stretch targets.  We would encourage payments to be directly linked to every 
individual benefit claimant we support into sustained employment.  Although 
the current proposals related to IB/ESA claimants we would eventually like 
this to be extended to include JSA claimants. 
 
If this approach was to prove successful we would not like to see the Annual 
Managed Expenditure budget slashed to the extent that adequate resources 
cannot be ploughed back into employment support programmes.  
 
Nevertheless, we are pleased that this approach will be tested in three 
pathfinder areas from 2010/11 and we would be very interested in working 
with you to test these proposals further as a pathfinder area from 2011/12. 
 
Question 29: How effective are current monitoring and evaluation 
arrangements for City Strategies? 
 
No specific comments. 
 
 

Page 105



Page 106

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Main Discussion Item -LAA Refresh
	6 LAA Update
	Scorecard
	Risk Register (inc appendicies)
	Working N F (part of LAA Update)

	7 Area Based Grant Review
	ABG ANNex
	ABG 2 Appendix

	9 Tackling Worklessness Update
	10 Business and Enterprise Update
	12 No One Written Off: Reforming Welfare to Reward Responsibility

